
 

 

Please ask for Democratic Services: Telephone 01775 764693  

e-mail: demservices@sholland.gov.uk 

 

REVISED 
AGENDA 2 
 
 
 

 
 

Committee - GOVERNANCE AND AUDIT COMMITTEE 
 
Date & Time - Thursday, 28 July 2022 at 4.00 pm 
 

Venue - Meeting Room 1, Council Offices, Priory Road, 
Spalding 

 
 

Membership of the Governance and Audit Committee: 
 
Councillors: F Biggadike, H J W Bingham (Vice-Chairman), C J T H Brewis, T A Carter 
(Chairman), M Hasan, M D Seymour and S C Walsh 
 
Quorum 3. 

 
 

 If you would like to attend this meeting as 
a member of the public, please contact 

Democratic Services via email at 
demservices@sholland.gov.uk or via 

telephone on 01775 764693. 

 

Persons attending the meeting are 
requested to turn mobile phones to silent. 

 
 
Democratic Services 
Council Offices, Priory Road 
Spalding, Lincs PE11 2XE 
 
Date:  27 July 2022 

Public Document Pack

Page 1

mailto:demservices@sholland.gov.uk


AGENDA 
PLEASE NOTE TIMINGS 
ARE APPROXIMATE 
 
TIME 
4.00pm 1.  Apologies for absence. 

  
 

4.01pm 2.  Declaration of Interests -  
(Where a Councillor has a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest 
the Councillor must declare the interest to the meeting 
and leave the room without participating in any 
discussion or making a statement on the item, except 
where a Councillor is permitted to remain as a result of a 
grant of dispensation).  
 

 

4.02pm 3.  Minutes -  
To sign as a correct record the minutes of the meeting 
held on 17 March 2022 (copy enclosed). 
 

(Pages 5 - 
22) 

4.05pm 4.  Actions -  
An update on actions which arose at the 17 March 2022 
Governance and Audit Committee meeting (enclosed). 
 

(Pages 23 
- 30) 

4.15pm 5.  South Holland District Council - Auditor's Annual Report 
for year ended 31 March 2021 -  
Report of EY enclosed. 
 

(Pages 31 
- 62) 

4.30pm 6.  South Holland District Council - Initial Audit Plan year 
ended 31 March 2022 -  
Report of EY enclosed. 
 

(Pages 63 
- 110) 

4.45pm 7.  Progress Report on Internal Audit Activity -  
To examine the progress made between 9 March 2022 
and 18 July 2022 in relation to the completion of the 
Annual Internal Audit Plan for 2021/22 (report of Faye 
Haywood, Head of Internal Audit enclosed). 
 

(Pages 
111 - 130) 

5.00pm 8.  Annual Report and Opinion 2021/22 -  
To provide the Council with an Annual Report and 
Opinion for 2021/2022 drawing upon the outcomes of 
Internal Audit work performed over the course of the 
year. The report also concludes on the Effectiveness of 
Internal Audit (report of Faye Haywood, Head of Internal 
Audit enclosed). 
 

(Pages 
131 - 146) 

5.15pm 9.  Annual Treasury Management Review 2021/22 -  
Report of the Interim Treasury and Investment Manager 
(PSPS) enclosed. 
 

(Pages 
147 - 166) 

5.30pm 10.  Q4 Risk Report 2021/22 -  
To provide an update on the Council’s strategic risks for 
the period 1 January 2022 to 31 March 2022 (report of 

(Pages 
167 - 180) 

Page 2



the Assistant Director – Corporate enclosed). 
 

5.40pm 11.  Governance and Audit Committee Work Programme -  
To set out the Work Programme of the Governance and 
Audit Committee (report of the Assistant Director – 
Finance enclosed). 
 

(Pages 
181 - 190) 

5.45pm 12.  Any other items which the Chairman decides are urgent.  
 
NOTE: No other business is permitted unless by 

reason of special circumstances, which 
shall be specified in the minutes, the 
Chairman is of the opinion that the item(s) 
should be considered as a matter of 
urgency. 

 

 

Page 3



This page is intentionally left blank



- 41 - 
 

Minutes of a meeting of the GOVERNANCE AND AUDIT COMMITTEE held in the 
Council Chamber, Council Offices, Priory Road, Spalding, on Thursday, 17 March 
2022 at 4.00 pm. 
 

PRESENT 

  
T A Carter (Chairman) 

 
 

 

F Biggadike 
H J W Bingham 
 

C J T H Brewis 
M Hasan 
 

M D Seymour 
S C Walsh 
 

 

In Attendance:  M Hodgson (Associate Partner, Ernst & Young), F Haywood (Head of 
Internal Audit (SHDC), Eastern Internal Audit Services), the Assistant Director - 
Finance, the Deputy Chief Finance Officer (Corporate) (PSPS) and the Democratic 
Services Team Leader. 
 
 
 Action By 

31. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE.   

  

 There were none.  

   

32. DECLARATION OF INTERESTS   

  

 There were none.  

   

33. MINUTES   

  

 The minutes of the meeting of the Governance and Audit 
Committee held on 13 January 2022 were signed by the 
Chairman as a correct record. 
 
With regard to updates from the meeting, the Chairman confirmed 
the following: 
 

• Minute 26 – the Committee had raised an issue regarding 
bonds bought from the Municipal Bonds Agency.  It was noted 
that a response from Link Group had been circulated with 
regard to the framework that was in place. 

 

• Minute 26 – Officers had discussed the issue of the authorised 
limit for external debt with Link Group. 

 
The Assistant Director Finance confirmed that with regard to the 
Link Group and the contract, a conversation had taken place with 
the Chief Finance Officer (PSPS) who had advised that the 
contract for Link Group was a PSPS contract. A quote to renew 
services with them had been received, as the contract was due to 

 

Page 5

Agenda Item 3.



- 42 - 
 
GOVERNANCE AND AUDIT COMMITTEE - 
17 March 2022 

 

 

expire that month, and other alternatives in the market to provide 
these services were also being looked at.  A further update would 
be provided to the Committee when more information was 
available. 
 
The Deputy Chief Finance Officer (Corporate) provided an update 
on the authorised limit for debt – a question had been asked at 
the last meeting on how the limit was calculated, and the officer 
explained the procedure of how the limit was assessed and how 
the value was calculated. 
 
The Chairman commented that it was interesting that the Link 
Group contract was now coming up for renewal and it had been 
timely that the Committee had raised this – going forward, the 
Committee would wish to be advised of any future contract 
renewal earlier in the process. 

   

34. 2020/21 AUDIT RESULTS REPORT   

  

 Consideration was given to the South Holland District Council 
Audit Results Report for the year ended 31 March 2021, produced 
by Ernst Young. 
 
The Associate Partner (EY) provided the following update: 
 

• The report provided assurances in order that the financial 
statements could be approved at the next agenda item. 

• The main points of the report were: 

• The materiality level being worked to was £1.133million – 
anything above this amount that was wrong would impact on 
the ability to issue an unqualified audit opinion, and any audit 
differences above £57,000 were being reported; 

• Updates to the risk assessment following release of the Audit 
Plan in July 2021 were around pension risk, which had 
increased to ‘significant’ due to a change in actuary at the 
pension fund (the risk was that the actuary was not providing a 
full and complete data set upon which it could make liability 
judgements – EY had undertaken some checks to ensure that 
this data transfer was in order and satisfactory responses  had 
been received).   

• Outstanding items – Fraud letters were received on 15 March 
(there was nothing further for EY to do upon receipt of these); 
responses to Value for Money queries were received on 7 
March (follow up questions had been issued and responses 
received yesterday) – as a result there were no significant 
risks to the Value for Money conclusion and no additional work 
was required.  No further items had to be raised for attention 
within the audit report and an audit results addendum had 

 

Page 6



- 43 - 
 
GOVERNANCE AND AUDIT COMMITTEE - 
17 March 2022 

 

 

been issued today to this effect. 

• Areas of audit focus were summarised and the conclusion to 
this was that all procedures had been completed and all 
required assurances had been provided.  There were a limited 
number of disclosure differences identified through 
performance of these procedures, and there were three audit 
differences.  Sufficient information had been received to 
provide an audit assurance. 

• With regard to audit differences, these were detailed within 
Section 4 of the report – 1) There were two unadjusted audit 
differences (totalling £375,000, below the materiality level and 
would not impact the audit opinion, but was above the 
reporting threshold), and these were detailed within Section 4 
of the report.  The Committee would need to agree with 
management’s decision not to alter the financial statements, 
and the rationale would need to be included in the Letter of 
Representation; and 2) There was an adjusted audit difference 
of £1.216million resulting from the audit of the Lincolnshire 
Pension Fund. 

• In conclusion, the draft Financial Statements were robust and 
supporting information received throughout the audit was 
equally as good – the Committee could therefore take 
assurance from this.  An Unqualified Audit Opinion had been 
given and further information on this was provided at Section 3 
of the report. 

• The Associate Partner (EY) thanked the Assistant Director 
Finance and Deputy Chief Finance Officer (Corporate) for their 
support with the audit. 

• The Associate Partner (EY) advised the Audit Certificate could 
not be issued alongside the Audit Opinion because HM 
Treasury and the National Audit Office had not issued 
guidance on the thresholds for who and who not to audit for 
that.  All auditors were awaiting this guidance before the Audit 
Certificate could be provided. 

 
The following points were raised: 
  

• Was the £1.216 million difference in liability because of assets 
(audit difference with regard to the Lincolnshire Pension Fund) 
reviewed every three years, or annually? 

o The Pension Fund was subject to a valuation 
performed by the Actuary every three years, and 
that valuation drove the level of contributions made 
by admitted bodies (employers’ rate paid into the 
fund to support future payments to pensioners). The 
figures quoted in the report were as a result of the 
annual review undertaken by EY as part of the 
Pension Fund audit. The difference between the two 

Page 7



- 44 - 
 
GOVERNANCE AND AUDIT COMMITTEE - 
17 March 2022 

 

 

reviews was that the Actuary was looking at the 
income being received in year from 
employers/employees to fund it, and the EY audit 
was looking at asset values and what this meant for 
the pension liability. 

• In response, members asked whether future contributions 
would be affected. 

o The Assistant Director Finance reiterated the point 
made by the auditor regarding the three-year review 
and advised a meeting had been held recently with 
the Actuary to discuss the next three-year review 
and how the fund was currently performing.  

 

• Members noted that within Section 7 of the report, EY had 
been unable to complete the audit, and asked for some 
indication regarding the fees. 

o The auditor responded with approximate figures for 
the planned fee for 2020/21 – Group account 
consolidation was a requirement and the amount 
would be as stated; changes in work required would 
be a minimum of what was determined last year (at 
least £19,934 of the figure quoted of £26,540); 
additional procedures such as Government Grants, 
new standards and the Value for Money conclusion 
were at least £8,500 (a standard).  The audit had 
gone well, but there had been some delays in 
receiving information, which would need to be 
reflected. 

 

• Appendix A referred to an opinion of doing the accounts as a 
‘going concern’ - what was the alternative, and did most 
councils run their finances as a going concern? 

o Every council prepared their accounts on a going 
concern basis (there was no option under the 
Code).  There was a legal and an accounting view 
with regard to this.  Preparing accounts under ‘going 
concern’ was the legal view as services to local 
residents would always have to be provided.  From 
an accounting perspective, a level of funds to 
support this was required – not just a level of 
reserves, but the cash flow to pay salaries etc.  

 
AGREED: 
 
That the 2020/21 Audit Results report be received. 

   

35. APPROVAL OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 2020/21   

  

Page 8



- 45 - 
 
GOVERNANCE AND AUDIT COMMITTEE - 
17 March 2022 

 

 

 Consideration was given to the report of the Deputy Chief 
Executive – Corporate Development (S151) which sought 
approval for the Annual Governance Statement for inclusion with 
the Council’s published Financial Statements, and approval of the 
Audited Financial Statements 2020/21 for publication. 
 
Officers highlighted the following points: 
 

• The external audit of the Financial Statements was now 
complete, as covered in the previous agenda item.  All 
outstanding information had now been provided to EY, and 
there were no further issues arising. 

 

• Members were asked to give delegated authority for further 
amendments, if required, and approval of the Financial 
Statements to the S151 Officer and the Chairman of the 
Committee – the report would be signed off next week. 

 

• There were a small number of presentational adjustments 
made to ensure compliance with the Code of Practice on Local 
Authority Accounting.  Enhanced disclosures had also been 
made in relation to the grants note, with more detail on income 
and expenditure relating to Covid grants.    

 

• An adjustment had been made to the pension liability following 
the revised report that was received, which contained updated 
asset values.  This had resulted in a reduction of the net 
pension liability of £1.2million. 

 

• Two audit differences remained unadjusted.  The Council’s 
share of PSPS’s net pension liability had been estimated to be 
overstated by £283,000 due to PSPS’s accounts and audit 
process being concluded before the revised pension report 
was received.  EY also identified a grant receivable, due to be 
accounted for in 2020/21 (£91,000) but included in 2021/22.  
These items were not material. 

 
 AGREED: 
 
1) That the Financial Statements 2020/21 (Appendix A) be 

approved; 

 

2) That the S151 Officer, in consultation with the Chairman of the 

Committee, be authorised to approve any amendments, if 

required, after the Committee date and prior to the official 

signing of the Accounts; 

 

 

Page 9



- 46 - 
 
GOVERNANCE AND AUDIT COMMITTEE - 
17 March 2022 

 

 

3) That the Annual Governance Statement 2020/21 be approved; 

and 

 
4) That, following review and approval by the Committee of the 

letter of representation to EY (Appendix B), the S151 Officer 
and Chairman of the Committee be authorised to sign it on the 
Committee’s behalf. 

   

36. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 2021/22 - ACCOUNTING POLICIES   

  

 Consideration was given to the report of the Deputy Chief 
Executive – Corporate Development (S151) which requested that 
the Committee review and agree the Accounting Policies for 
inclusion in the Financial Statements 2021/22. 
 
The Accounting Policies were appended to the report at Appendix 
A.  The polices were prepared in line with CIPFA’s Code of 
Practice on Local Authority Accounting 2021/22.  It was good 
practice to consider and agree the accounting policies in advance 
of the production and approval of the draft accounts, and the 
report formed an annual review by the Governance and Audit 
Committee. 
 
There had only been minor areas of change within the Code of 
Practice in 2021/22, none of which required amendments to be 
made to accounting policies. 
 
Since Boston Borough Council became a shareholder of PSPS 
Ltd on 1 April 2021, the shares of assets, liabilities, income and 
expenditure that the authority was required to include within its 
Financial Statements, regarding the joint operation had reduced 
from 37% to 28%.  This was reflected in the financial liabilities 
section of the accounting policies and would be fully disclosed in 
the joint operations note. 
 
The release of the template accounting policies and disclosure 
notes was still being awaited from Link Asset Services.  Once 
received, these would be reviewed against the draft accounting 
policies, and any required adjustments would be made. 
 
The 2021/22 unaudited Financial Statements needed to be 
completed by 31 July 2022 and would be presented to the 
Committee when complete.  The accounting policies would be 
included within the Statements, and any minor changes made 
during the Statements production process would be agreed with 
the S151 Officer and highlighted to the Committee on that date. 
 
The following points were raised: 

 

Page 10



- 47 - 
 
GOVERNANCE AND AUDIT COMMITTEE - 
17 March 2022 

 

 

 

• Members asked why the Link template accounting policies had 
not yet been received. 

o Officers responded that this was not unusual – they 
were normally received in March/April and officers 
would undertake the comparison when the templates 
arrived. 

 
AGREED: 
 
That, following review by the Committee, the Accounting Policies 
for 2021/22 at Appendix A be agreed. 

   

37. Q3 RISK REPORT   

  

 Consideration was given to the report of the Assistant Director – 
Governance (Monitoring Officer) which provided an update to the 
Committee on the progress of the Council’s identified strategic 
risks. 
 
In the absence of the Senior Change, Improvement and 
Performance Business Partner, the Assistant Director – Finance 
updated the Committee on the main points detailed within the 
Risk Report. 
 

• The risk of a cyber incident had been increased slightly in line 
with the national trend for Cyber Security threats across Public 
Sector which had almost doubled in the past 12 months, linked 
to the ongoing conflict between Russia and Ukraine. 

• The risk of a breach of regulatory compliance had been 
lowered as Covid restrictions had recently been lifted, and the 
regular and fast-paced changes in law and guidance that were 
previously the norm were no longer being seen. 

• The risk around council financial positions had increased 
slightly as a detailed budget review process was being 
planned for the 2023/24 year however, pressures were 
starting to be seen.  Earlier in the month, the Council had 
approved the budget for 2022/23 however there were a 
number of unknown factors on the horizon such as Fair 
Funding and Business Rates re-set. 

• The risk monitoring changes to policy and legislation in 
relation to Covid had been lowered. Covid legislation enforced 
by the Council had now been repealed, the Public Protection 
service continued to work with LCC on outbreak management 
although this demand had decreased significantly 

• The risk of changes to the Council’s strategic partnership had 
reduced as the strategic partnership was further embedded 
and the programme management board continued to focus on 

 

Page 11



- 48 - 
 
GOVERNANCE AND AUDIT COMMITTEE - 
17 March 2022 

 

 

ensuring the partnership delivered on its objectives – the 
rationale to lower the risk was focused on key mitigations that 
were now in place such as a single Corporate Leadership 
Team (Chief Executive, Deputy Chief Executives and 
Monitoring Officer) and the meetings of the Stakeholder Group 
(Leaders, Deputy Leaders and Finance Portfolio Holders) 
which continued to take place on a six weekly basis providing 
a mechanism for cross Council discussions. 

 
The following points were raised, and the Assistant Director 
advised that any questions requiring a response would be fed 
back to the Senior Change, Improvement and Performance 
Business Partner to action: 
 

• Members commented that these were very uncertain times, 
and that officers should be thanked for their hard work in 
dealing with the issues 

 

• The Chairman commented that there were a few areas where 
she would have expected there to have been movement 
(Vulnerability Risk, and Decision Making) however, she was 
comfortable with the status of most risks within the report. 

 

• A recent decision had been to set up a S&ELCP Community 
Lottery – was there any risk to the Council surrounding this, for 
example any financial risks, or that a private firm would be 
employed to undertake this (and if so, had the bid been 
competitive)?   

o The Assistant Director – Finance responded that 
risks would have been considered before the 
decision was made.  Officers would provide a 
response to the issue raised, and this would be 
circulated to the Committee prior to the next 
meeting. 

 

• Members raised the issue of staff retention – could the current 
risk score be backed up as there appeared to be a number of 
vacancies.  The employment market was currently very 
competitive - was the staffing situation in line with other 
Councils and were there sufficient incentives in place to retain 
staff within the Partnership?  

• The Chairman commented that a lot of work had been done 
around staff retention however, a fuller response on this was 
requested from officers. 

• Members followed up by asking whether there could be an 
increase in staff costs if there were vacancies – was there a 
contingency for this? 

o The Assistant Director – Finance responded that, as 

Page 12



- 49 - 
 
GOVERNANCE AND AUDIT COMMITTEE - 
17 March 2022 

 

 

part of the budget setting process, there were a 
number of assumptions made on the national pay 
increase. With regard to individual recruitment 
issues, it was possible to add a market supplement 
for difficult to recruit posts.  A fuller response would 
be provided to members.   

 

• Members asked that, following discussions at the meeting of 
the Performance Monitoring Panel the previous evening, 
closer scrutiny over the next reporting period be applied to the 
Parkwood leisure contract, and to the performance of the 
PSPS contract.  It was felt that there were potential underlying 
issues, and risks around these areas did not appear to have 
changed.   

 
AGREED: 
 
That the content of the report be noted. 

   

38. PROGRESS REPORT ON INTERNAL AUDIT ACTIVITY   

  

 Consideration was given to the report of the Head of Internal 
Audit which examined progress made between 5 January 2022 to 
8 March 2022 in relation to the completion of the Internal Audit 
Plan for 2021/22. 
 
The Head of Internal Audit introduced the report and highlighted 
the following points within the Progress Report and its 
appendices: 
 

• Section 2.1 highlighted that three audits (Legal Services; 
Budget Sustainability Savings; and Digital Strategy) had been 
postponed at the request of management, the reasons 
predominantly being as a result of the impact of partnership 
working 

• Section 3.1 highlighted that 63% of the Plan had been 
completed.  A few audits had been rescheduled, but good 
progress was being made and all was on track to provide an 
opinion at the July meeting. 

• Section 4.4 confirmed that three reports had been finalised 
and issued – Cyber Security (Reasonable Assurance); 
Licensing (Substantial Assurance) and Payroll (Audit 
Lincolnshire) (Reasonable Assurance).   

• Section 4.6 advised that work on Corporate Fuel Cards had 
been concluded.  The policy and process had been 
considered and no significant concerns had been raised.  
However, it had been requested that business intelligence be 
undertaken over the use of fuel and bearer cards. 

 

Page 13



- 50 - 
 
GOVERNANCE AND AUDIT COMMITTEE - 
17 March 2022 

 

 

• Appendix 1 provided a visual representation of progress in the 
completion of the agreed audit work  

• Appendix 2 provided an executive summary and details on 
finalised reports. 

• The maturity assessment of Cyber Security was in a different 
format to what the Committee usually received.  This was a 
very bespoke piece of work undertaken by TIAA and a lot of 
insight into the review was provided.  The outside line (blue) of 
the spider diagram at item 10 within the Summary at Appendix 
2 indicated the aspirations of the Authority and PSPS around 
cyber security.  Evidence of the current situation was shown 
by the green line. Further information regarding the current 
position against aspiration was provided in the accompanying 
table. 

 
The following points were raised: 
 

• Members raised concerns that requests for deferment due to 
the impact of partnership working (at section 2.1) should not 
become a default reason for delays. 

o The Head of Internal Audit confirmed that 
deferments were to be avoided wherever possible 
and that where requested, a viable reason was 
needed. 

 

• The Chairman commented that the spider diagram referred to 
was useful. 

 

• With regard to cyber security, it would be interesting to know 
how PSPS’s  level of cyber control compared to other 
contractors.  In addition, why was the supply chain element 
not tighter than it was? 

o The Head of Internal Audit responded that she could 
not comment on the control framework for other, 
larger organisations, but the supplier element was a 
new feature to the maturity assessment so it was 
not unusual to see a lower assessment at this stage.  
It was an area that continued to move, and which 
required quick adaptability and that Reasonable was 
a good result.    

 

• At Appendix 2 under Issues to be Addressed (previous audit 
recommendations), it was stated that ‘the audit reviewed the 
previous internal audit recommendations, of which two 
remained outstanding relating to updating of the Hackney 
Carriage and Private Hire Licensing Policy……’.  How long 
ago had the previous audit been, and why had these not been 
dealt with by Licensing? 

Page 14



- 51 - 
 
GOVERNANCE AND AUDIT COMMITTEE - 
17 March 2022 

 

 

o The Head of Internal Audit commented that the 
Committee had been provided with information on 
the Licensing recommendations that were important.  
She would check on progress of this item and report 
back to the Committee. 

 

• At Appendix 2 under Issues to be Addressed (Complaints, 
Appeals and Revocation of licenses) members commented 
that it was good that complainants would be notified of the 
outcome of their complaints in a timely manner – this was 
required to encourage the public to engage with the Authority 
where necessary. 

 

• At Appendix 2 under Issues to be Addressed (other issues 
noted), members asked why the statement ‘Digital licence 
applications are now received by the Licencing Team via email 
and processed in the same way as hard copy applications’ 
was included. 

o The Head of Internal Audit agreed that it seemed 
more of a comment than an issue and would check 
a reason for this with the auditor.  

 

• The Chairman did not like the layout used for the Payroll audit, 
and did not feel that it was very user friendly and the 
difference in the various ways of reporting made comparison 
difficult. 

o The Head of Internal Audit advised that the layout 
was from an Audit Lincolnshire report that had been 
completed.  The Committee’s views would be fed 
back.  

 

• With regard to the Payroll Audit (Key Messages), it was stated 
that there was a snag list of actions to be implemented – what 
was the timescale for this? 

o The Head of Internal Audit advised that she would 
obtain and share this information. 

 

• Members commented that with regard to the Payroll audit, 
there was a medium risk stated relating to fraudulent or 
incorrect payments – was the medium risk as a result of fraud 
or process. 

o The Head of Internal Audit confirmed that no fraud 
had been found, and that the risk was around 
processing risks. 

 

• At Appendix 2 under Issues to be Addressed (Positive 
Findings), it was stated the Council had an up-to-date 
Gambling Act 2002 policy dated January 2022, which adhered 

Page 15



- 52 - 
 
GOVERNANCE AND AUDIT COMMITTEE - 
17 March 2022 

 

 

to guidance issued by the Gambling Commission.  In light of 
the issue raised earlier in the meeting regarding the 
Community Lottery, members requested that it be confirmed 
that this adhered to the Council’s Gambling Policy? 

o The Head of Internal Audit confirmed that, although 
this was not an issue specifically related to the 
Committee’s remit, a response to the question 
would be sought. 

 
AGREED: 
 
That the information detailed within the report be noted. 

   

39. FOLLOW UP REPORT ON INTERNAL AUDIT 
 RECOMMENDATIONS  

 

  

 Consideration was given to the report of the Head of Internal 
Audit which provided members with the position on the progress 
made by management in implementing agreed Internal Audit 
recommendations for the period 2 November 2021 to 8 March 
2022. 
 
The Head of Internal Audit introduced the report and highlighted 
the following points: 
 

• The report was looking much healthier than it had in the past, 
due to officer involvement, and the support provided by the 
Committee in ensuring that outstanding actions were 
addressed. 

• The outstanding recommendation (from 2017/18) relating to 
Asset Management had now been resolved; 

• With regard to the Strategic Housing audit area detailed at 
Appendix 2, the responsible officer had highlighted that the 
original idea had been for the development of a strategy to 
cover all areas of development however, this had since been 
reconsidered and had been broken down into different 
activities.  The original risk had been that, from the 
opportunities presented, it was not clear whether Welland 
Homes would take these on or whether they would be dealt 
with through shared ownership, HRA Strategy or internal 
investment.  This had now been broken down into key pieces 
of work, and completion of the policies and outline documents 
was being undertaken step by step.  It could now be confirmed 
that the shared ownership strategy and the HRA strategy were 
resolved, that the Welland Homes Strategy would shortly be 
considered by the Policy Development Panel and Cabinet.  In 
considering the original risk raised, it was concluded that much 
work had been done in this area and that it was now possible 

 

Page 16



- 53 - 
 
GOVERNANCE AND AUDIT COMMITTEE - 
17 March 2022 

 

 

to sign this off as the original risk had been mitigated.  
 
The following points were raised: 
 

• Members questioned whether there had been any movement 
with regard to the Environmental Services item (SH2020 – Car 
Parks). 

o The Assistant Director – Finance confirmed that the 
Procurement Manager had advised that the tender 
specification was currently being written, with the 
intention of it being published within the next couple of 
weeks.  The indicative timeline was for a new contractor 
to be appointed by the end of July at the latest. 

o The Head of Internal Audit confirmed that the original 
recommendation stated that officers consider what to 
do, rather than providing confirmation that a contract 
was in place.  By instructing Procurement to take this 
forward and to work on a tender specification, this 
recommendation had been satisfied. 

 
AGREED: 
 
That the content of the report be noted. 

   

40. ANNUAL INTERNAL AUDIT PLAN 2022/23   

  

 Consideration was given to the report of the Head of Internal 
Audit which provided an overview of the stages followed prior to 
the formulation of the Annual Internal Audit Plan for 2022/23. 
 
The Internal Audit Plan provided the basis for the Annual Audit 
Opinion on the overall adequacy and effectiveness of South 
Holland District Council’s framework of governance, risk 
management and control. 
 
The Strategic and Annual Internal Audit Plan 2022/23 was 
attached as an appendix to the report. 
 
The Head of Internal Audit introduced the report and highlighted 
the following points: 
 

• In formulating the Audit Plan, consideration had been given to 
areas which could be provided by each Internal Audit provider. 

• Consideration had been given to the Authority’s Strategic Risk 
Register and any previous assurance gradings given, and a 
plan of work had been formulated which gave the Authority 
assurance over the key risks.   

• Leisure was included within the first half of the year. 

 

Page 17



- 54 - 
 
GOVERNANCE AND AUDIT COMMITTEE - 
17 March 2022 

 

 

• 170 days in total had been built in for 2022/23. 

• Members were invited to provide any feedback and comments 
on individual areas for audit. 

 
The following points were raised: 
 

• When considering audits for the year ahead, was there 
capacity built in to accommodate unannounced audits where 
no pre-warning was given? 

o The Head of Internal Audit advised that the process 
followed was the risk-based internal auditing approach, 
driven by the key risks faced by the Council at that time, 
and in line with the Public Sector Internal Audit 
Standards.  Any internal audit provider would consider 
this when putting their plan together.  Picking audits at 
random would be good however, in view of coverage 
and best use of that coverage, a plan with risk in mind 
was more important. 

o The Chairman suggested that members should feed in 
suggestions for audits of any areas that they felt should 
be looked at. 

o The Assistant Director – Finance advised that, built into 
the audit plan days, there was capacity for the S151 
Officer and other officers of the Council to instruct 
auditors to investigate specific areas that they felt would 
benefit from an audit.  An example of this was the audit 
around Fuel Cards, which had not been included in the 
original audit plan.  The S151 Officer reserved the right 
to flex the audit plan to address any perceived risks to 
the Council. 

 

• As detailed within the report, the 2022/23 plan provided details 
of the audit work that would be undertaken in the year by both 
TIAA and Assurance Lincolnshire 

 
AGREED: 
 
That the Annual Internal Audit Plan 2022/23 be noted and 
approved. 

   

41. AUDIT COMMITTEE SELF-ASSESSMENT EXERCISE   

  

 The Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy 
(CIPFA) document on ‘audit committee’s practical guidance for 
local authorities and police” laid out the guidance on the function 
and the operation of audit committees.  It represented CIPFA’s 
view of best practice and incorporated the position statements 
previously issued. 

 

Page 18



- 55 - 
 
GOVERNANCE AND AUDIT COMMITTEE - 
17 March 2022 

 

 

 
The Governance and Audit Committee had been undertaking self-
assessments since 2008, and consideration was given to the 
updated CIPFA Audit Committee Self-Assessment Checklist 
following updates made at the January 2022 meeting. 
 
The Head of Internal Audit introduced the report, and highlighted 
the following areas: 
 

• The information within the appendix had been fed in from 
consideration of the self-assessment at the last meeting of the 
Committee in January 2022; 

• All responses within the first table were answered ‘Yes’ with 
the exception of question 4 which had been answered ‘Partly’; 

• Commentary for items highlighted as part of the exercise 
undertaken at the January meeting were detailed underneath 
the first table; 

• Section 1.8 of the covering report provided information on the 
changes made, and actions to be taken forward: 

o In response to Question 4 – A member-style bulletin to 
be considered to highlight the work of the Committee.  
The Head of Internal Audit commented that the 
Committee should discuss this and potentially add the 
suggestion to its programme of work.  She also advised 
of an example of a good leaflet that had been used by 
other authorities a number of years ago which the 
Committee could consider using.   

o In response to Question 6 – This response had moved 
to a yes, following research of the approach taken at 
other Councils.  It was confirmed that in line with the 
guidance, the Committee reports to full Council and 
produces a report annually as an assessment of their 
performance. The Head of Internal Audit confirmed that 
by producing an annual report to Council, this area 
would be satisfied. 

o In response to Question 18 – The Committee 
considered the answer to be ‘yes’ to this question 
however, it had been agreed that feedback would be 
requested at year end from officers interacting with 
them.  The Head of Internal Audit commented that 
surveys could be undertaken at end of year – Internal 
Audit would send a survey to the Chairman of the 
Committee to obtain feedback on Internal Audit’s work, 
and they would also send out a survey to officers to 
obtain feedback on their interaction with the 
Governance and Audit Committee.  The results would 
then be shared with the Committee.  The Chairman 
asked for confirmation that this action would sit with 

Page 19



- 56 - 
 
GOVERNANCE AND AUDIT COMMITTEE - 
17 March 2022 

 

 

Internal Audit and the Head of Internal Audit responded 
that it would, and that the action would be passed over 
to the new auditor in due course.  

o In response to Question 15, it had been suggested that 
the CIPFA Audit Committee Core Knowledge and Skills 
Framework be circulated to Committee members 
annually, and that if any gaps were identified, training 
should be requested. 

 
The following points were raised: 
 

• Members commented that it was important for there to be a 
wider knowledge of the role of the Governance and Audit 
Committee amongst councillors, and that a wider 
understanding of its vital role was needed. 

o The Head of Internal Audit agreed that wider 
understanding of the role was important.  The 
common perception was that the Committee 
focussed predominantly on finance however, 
governance and risk management were also 
important areas within its remit.  

 

• Members commented that it was sometimes difficult to 
encourage councillors to be members of the Committee and 
could attendance of the Committee be looked at? 

o Although the Governance and Audit Committee at 
SHDC had a healthy attendance record, it was 
noted that attendance was not included within any 
annual reporting. 

 

• Members commented that, with regard to the effectiveness of 
the Committee, the Head of Internal Audit had commented 
earlier in the meeting that engagement with officers had 
improved following the Committee’s determination to assist in 
improving the completion of historic audit recommendations.  
The Committee would often request that officers attend a 
meeting to explain the situation with regard to outstanding 
actions.  The Committee’s involvement had resulted in a real 
change in attitude and produced results.  

 
AGREED: 
 
That the report and attached checklist at Appendix 1 be noted as 
an accurate reflection of the discussion and points raised at the 
meeting of the Governance and Audit Committee on 12 January 
2022. 

   

Page 20



- 57 - 
 
GOVERNANCE AND AUDIT COMMITTEE - 
17 March 2022 

 

 

42. GOVERNANCE AND AUDIT COMMITTEE WORK 
 PROGRAMME  

 

  

 Consideration was given to the report of the Assistant Director – 
Finance which set out the Work Programme of the Governance 
and Audit Committee. 
 
Also attached to the report was a schedule of training provided to 
the Committee since 2019 and suggested future topics.  Members 
were requested to consider the information and any future training 
options. 
 
The Democratic Services Team Leader and the Assistant Director 
– Finance advised the Committee of the following: 
 

• The 2022/23 Schedule of Meetings had yet to be finalised – 
once it had, the Work Programme would be populated with the 
meeting dates for the forthcoming year, along with items for 
consideration at each of those meetings; 

• A package of training to be delivered to Committee members 
was currently being considered.  This would support members 
and ensure that councillors had the appropriate skills and tools 
required to be effective members of the Committee.  It was 
also hoped that this would make membership of the 
Governance and Audit Committee a more attractive option for 
councillors. 

• The focus for the Committee had, until now been very finance-
focussed and it was therefore important to strengthen 
governance-related skills and knowledge. 

• It was suggested that the first topics for training could be 
around cyber security and pensions. 

• Where appropriate, it was suggested that training sessions be 
undertaken together with members of the equivalent 
committees within the S&ELCP. 

 
The following points were raised: 
 

• Members commented that it would be good to undertake 
training jointly for common areas.  It was suggested that the 
training could be opened up to all other members who were 
interested. 

 

• Members commented that the topic of pensions was one that 
often arose, and training in this area would be valuable. 

 

• Members agreed that the list of future topics suggested within 
the report were the right ones and where possible, they should 
be aligned across all three authorities.  

 

Page 21



- 58 - 
 
GOVERNANCE AND AUDIT COMMITTEE - 
17 March 2022 

 

 

 
AGREED: 
 
That the report be noted. 

   

43. ANY OTHER ITEMS WHICH THE CHAIRMAN DECIDES ARE 
 URGENT.  

 

  

 There were none.  

   

 
 
 
(The meeting ended at 5.20 pm) 
 
(End of minutes)
 

Page 22



 

 ACTIONS  

 = completed, * = in hand, x = outstanding    1 
 

 
 

 ACTIONS FROM THE GOVERNANCE AND AUDIT 
MEETING HELD ON 17 MARCH 2022 

 

 

Item 
No. 

 Item Title Officer Responsible 

33 
21/22 

 Minutes (13 January 2022)  

  Contract with Link Group – A further update to be provided to the 
Committee when more information was available. 
RESPONSE:  
The contract for the provision of Treasury Management Support 
currently provided by Link Asset Services is currently being 
renewed.  An open competition for the provision of Treasury 
Management Support is now underway through an ESPO 
Framework for a three year contract with the option to extend for 
a further two years.  The contract will provide services across all 
three members of S&ELCP.  The deadline for tender submissions is 
Monday 11th July at which point an assessment of applications 
received will be undertaken.   
 

Sam Knowles 

  Contract with Link Group – The Committee to be advised of any 
future contract renewal earlier in the process. 
RESPONSE: 
This has been noted by officers, and the Committee will be advised 
towards the end of the proposed three year contract whether the 
option to extend for a further two years is to be taken or not.   

Sam Knowles 

    

35 
21/22 

 Approval of Financial Statements 2020/21  

  That the S151 Officer and Chairman of the Committee sign the 
Letter of Representation to EY. 
RESPONSE:  
This has been done. 

Sam Knowles 

  •   

36 
21/22 

 Financial Statements 2021/22 – Accounting Policies  

  2021/22 unaudited Financial Statements to be completed by 31 
July 2022 and presented to the Committee when completed.  
Accounting policies to be included within the Statements, and any 
minor changes made during the Statements production process to 
be agreed with the S151 Officer and highlighted to the Committee 
on that date. 
RESPONSE:  
The 2021/22 unaudited Financial Statements will be presented to 
the meeting of the Governance and Audit Committee on 22 
September 2022.    

Ellie Stacey/Sam Knowles 

    

37  48. Q3 Risk Report  

Page 23

Agenda Item 4.



 

 ACTIONS  

 = completed, * = in hand, x = outstanding    2 
 

21/22 

  S&ELCP Community Lottery - A recent decision had been to set up 
a S&ELCP Community Lottery – was there any risk to the Council 
surrounding this, for example any financial risks, or that a private 
firm would be employed to undertake this (and if so, had the bid 
been competitive)?  - Officers to provide a response to this raised 
issue, to be circulated to the Committee prior to the next meeting. 
RESPONSE: 
 
The following information was included within the original 
Portfolio Holder Decision (Portfolio Holder for Communities and 
Facilities) published on 23 February 2022 
 
On behalf of the South and East Lincolnshire Councils Partnership,  
South Holland District Council will contract with Gatherwell to  
provide external lottery management and this will be closely  
monitored. 
 
Gatherwell Ltd are the principle External Lottery Managers  
(ELM), supporting over 90 local authorities across the country and  
have extensive experience and track record of success in the public 
 sector. Alternative ELM providers do operate but do not have the 
 specialism of local authority run schemes or only deal with  
charities and not local good causes or do not provide the  
administration of the scheme  
 
Having completed research and established Gatherwell Limited as  
a suitable supplier of a lottery service, an exemption is required to  
appoint Gatherwell Limited as no tender process has been  
undertaken.  The Contract Procedure Rules allow Cabinet to waive 
 the requirements of the Contract procedure Rules as follows: 

 
Except where the Public Contracts Regulations 2006 apply, the 
Cabinet has the power to waive any requirements within these 
Contract Procedure Rules for specific projects. An exemption under 
this Rule 3 allows a contract to be placed by direct negotiation with 
one or more suppliers rather than in accordance with Rule 9. (See 
the Log of Delegations to Officers for details of officers who may 
action this Rule.) 
  
The value of this contract is below the threshold for services 
(£213,477 incl. VAT) in the Public Contracts Regulations 2015 
(which have superseded the 2006 regulations quoted in the 
Contract Procedure Rules).  However, it is likely that the contract 
would fall under the definition of being a concession.  The 
Concession Contracts Regulations 2016 would apply to a contract 
such as this and are similar to the Public Contracts Regulations 
2015.  However, the value of this contract falls well below the 
threshold for concessions (£5,336,937 incl. VAT).   

Emily Spicer 

Page 24



 

 ACTIONS  

 = completed, * = in hand, x = outstanding    3 
 

  
Cabinet via Executive Decision have therefore waived the 
requirements of the Contract Procedure Rules to allow a contract 
to be directly awarded to Gatherwell Limited.   
  
The contract with Gatherwell Limited has a minimum term of 1 
year and then rolls on automatically with the Council able to then 
give three months’ notice to end the agreement at any time.  The 
agreement will be kept under review and officers will monitor the 
market to determine if there are other providers who enter the 
market that would allow a competitive process to be undertaken in 
the future.   

  Staff retention - could the current risk score be backed up as there 
appeared to be a number of vacancies.  The employment market 
was currently very competitive - was the staffing situation in line 
with other Councils and were there sufficient incentives in place to 
retain staff within the Partnership? – Full response requested from 
officers. 
RESPONSE: 
Across the partnership we currently have 10 roles we are actively 
recruiting to. None of those active are in the areas we find more 
challenging to recruit – being Environmental Health; Planning (Dev 
Mgt); Project/Programme Management.  However, I know from 
experience that these roles are challenging for all employers 
including other Local Government employers.  Our resourcing 
team are more networked locally and confirm that other 
Lincolnshire Councils have reported similar issues with increased 
levels of turnover and struggling to recruit to core roles.   
 
The Great Resignation is not looking to slow, recent CIPD survey 
found that 20% of workers surveyed would likely quit their current 
role in next 12 months, up from 16% in 2021.  Pay and incentives 
are part of the picture, but Harvard Business/Gallup and other 
notable research companies are looking at what employees value:  

• Flexibility 

• Outcomes over outputs – being able to see impact they 
have to organisation 

• Diverse and Inclusive employers 

• Learning & Development offering – ability to grow skills 
and develop 

• Stability/Security 
 

Corey Gooch 

  Staffing costs - Members followed up by asking whether there 
could be an increase in staff costs if there were vacancies – was 
there a contingency for this? - The Assistant Director – Finance 
responded that, as part of the budget setting process, there were a 
number of assumptions made on the national pay increase. With 
regard to individual recruitment issues, it was possible to add a 

Corey Gooch 
 

Page 25



 

 ACTIONS  

 = completed, * = in hand, x = outstanding    4 
 

market supplement for difficult to recruit posts.  A fuller response 
would be provided to members.   
RESPONSE: 
The HR manager has confirmed there are currently no active 
vacancies in positions that we are struggling to recruit to and this is 
not leading to increased staffing costs at this time. 
The Assistant Director – Corporate has advised that there are a 
number of very technical posts that sometimes pose a challenge to 
recruit to due to the skill set/qualification required but the 
Partnership, on the whole, doesn’t have any recruitment 
challenges. 

  39. Parkwood leisure contract - Members asked that, following 
discussions at the meeting of the Performance Monitoring Panel the 
previous evening, closer scrutiny over the next reporting period be 
applied to the Parkwood leisure contract, and to the performance 
of the PSPS contract.  It was felt that there were potential underlying 
issues, and risks around these areas did not appear to have changed. 

40. RESPONSE: 

41. This will be reviewed and reflected on the next iteration of the risk 
register. 

Corey Gooch 

  42.   

38 
21/22 

 43. Progress Report on Internal Audit Activity  

 x Outstanding recommendations – Hackney Carriage and Private 
Hire Licensing Policy - At Appendix 2 under Issues to be Addressed 
(previous audit recommendations), it was stated that ‘the audit 
reviewed the previous internal audit recommendations, of which 
two remained outstanding relating to updating of the Hackney 
Carriage and Private Hire Licensing Policy……’.  How long ago had 
the previous audit been, and why had these not been dealt with by 
Licensing? -  Head of Internal Audit to check on progress of this 
item and report back to the Committee. 
RESPONSE: 
 

Faye Haywood 

 x At Appendix 2 under Issues to be Addressed (other issues noted), 
members asked why the statement ‘Digital licence applications are 
now received by the Licencing Team via email and processed in the 
same way as hard copy applications’ was included? - The Head of 
Internal Audit to check a reason for this with the auditor.  

44. RESPONSE: 

45.  

Faye Haywood 

  The Chairman did not like the layout used for the Payroll audit, and 
did not feel that it was very user friendly and the difference in the 
various ways of reporting made comparison difficult. Head of 
Internal Audit to feed back Committee’s views. 
RESPONSE: 
This was noted and the Chairman’s views would be fed back. 
 

Faye Haywood 

Page 26



 

 ACTIONS  

 = completed, * = in hand, x = outstanding    5 
 

 x With regard to the Payroll Audit (Key Messages), it was stated that 
there was a snag list of actions to be implemented – what was the 
timescale for this? - The Head of Internal Audit to obtain and share 
this information. 
RESPONSE: 
 

Faye Haywood 

    

  At Appendix 2 under Issues to be Addressed (Positive Findings), it 
was stated the Council had an up-to-date Gambling Act 2002 policy 
dated January 2022, which adhered to guidance issued by the 
Gambling Commission.  In light of the issue raised earlier in the 
meeting regarding the Community Lottery, members requested 
that it be confirmed that this adhered to the Council’s Gambling 
Policy – A response to this question to be sought from officers. 
RESPONSE: 
The Gambling Act 2005 Statement of Principles adopted by the 
Council relates to SHDC exercising its functions in relation to the 
Gambling Act 2005. This lottery is not within the scope of the 
licensing authority therefore the current policy would not be 
applicable. The Gambling Commission are the licensing body and 
the regulator for this lottery. 
 
The Council will be required to register a local authority lottery 
with the Gambling Commission and run under an operating licence 
in accordance with the Gambling Act 2005. A licensed local 
authority may then use an External Lottery Manager (ELM) to 
manage all, or part, of the lottery.  An ELM is defined in section 
257 of the Act as someone that is a person or a body who makes 
arrangements for a lottery on behalf of a local authority but is not 
a member, officer, or employee of the authority. Gatherwell Ltd, is 
a registered External Lottery Manager certified by the Gambling 
Commission. 
 

Emily Spicer/Donna Hall 

    

41 
21/22 

 Audit Committee Self-Assessment Exercise  

 * Question 4 - Is the role and purpose of the audit committee 
understood and accepted across the authority? -  A member-style 
bulletin to be considered to highlight the work of the Committee.  
The Head of Internal Audit commented that the Committee should 
discuss this and potentially add the suggestion to its programme of 
work.  She also advised of an example of a good leaflet that had 
been used by other authorities a number of years ago which the 
Committee could consider using.   
RESPONSE: 
To be considered as part of the training plan being developed. 
 

Christine Morgan/Andrea 
Tait in liaison with Sam 
Knowles/Faye 
Haywood/Chairman 

Page 27



 

 ACTIONS  

 = completed, * = in hand, x = outstanding    6 
 

 * Question 6 – Are the arrangements to hold the committee to 
account for its performance operating satisfactorily? - This 
response had moved to a yes, following research of the approach 
taken at other Councils.  It was confirmed that in line with the 
guidance, the Committee reports to full Council and produces a 
report annually as an assessment of their performance. The Head 
of Internal Audit confirmed that by producing an annual report to 
Council, this area would be satisfied. 
RESPONSE: 
To be introduced.  Governance and Audit Committee 19 January 
2023 to consider what information to include within the annual 
report. 
 

Christine Morgan/Andrea 
Tait, in liaison with Sam 
Knowles and Chairman 

 * Question 18 – Has the Committee obtained feedback on its 
performance from those interacting with the committee or relying 
on its work? - The Committee considered the answer to be ‘yes’ to 
this question however, it had been agreed that feedback would be 
requested at year end from officers interacting with them.  The 
Head of Internal Audit commented that surveys could be 
undertaken at end of year – Internal Audit would send a survey to 
the Chairman of the Committee to obtain feedback on Internal 
Audit’s work, and they would also send out a survey to officers to 
obtain feedback on their interaction with the Governance and 
Audit Committee.  The results would then be shared with the 
Committee.  The Chairman asked for confirmation that this action 
would sit with Internal Audit and the Head of Internal Audit 
responded that it would, and that the action would be passed over 
to the new auditor in due course.  
RESPONSE: 
It was noted that Internal Audit would undertake this function at 
end of year. 
 

Faye Haywood/Internal 
Audit 

 * Question 15 – Has the membership of the committee been 
assessed against the core knowledge and skills framework and 
found to be satisfactory? -  It had been suggested that the CIPFA 
Audit Committee Core Knowledge and Skills Framework be 
circulated to Committee members annually, and that if any gaps 
were identified, training should be requested. 
RESPONSE: 
To be incorporated as part of the Training Plan. 

Sam Knowles 

    

42 
21/22 

 Governance and Audit Committee Work Programme  

  2022/23 Schedule of Meetings – Work Programme to be populated 
with dates in 2022/23, along with items for consideration at each of 
those meetings. 
RESPONSE: 

Andrea Tait in liaison 
with Christine Morgan 
and Sam Knowles 
 

Page 28



 

 ACTIONS  

 = completed, * = in hand, x = outstanding    7 
 

This action has been completed – dates of meetings and items for 
consideration are included within the Work Programme report at all 
meetings. 

 * Training package: 

• List of future training topics appended to the report was correct 
and where possible (for common areas), should be aligned 
across the three authorities within the S&ELCP. 

• Training to be opened up to all other interested members. 

• Pensions and cyber security to be the first areas for training 
RESPONSE: 
Development of the Training Plan is in progress, and these areas 
to be taken forward. 

Sam Knowles 

 

Page 29



This page is intentionally left blank



Ref: EY-000092651-01

South Holland District 
Council

25 March 2022

Auditor’s Annual Report 
Year ended 31 March 2021

Page 31

Agenda Item 5.



Ref: EY-000092651-01

Contents

South Holland District Council 1

Public Sector Audit Appointments Ltd (PSAA) issued the “Statement of responsibilities of auditors and audited bodies”. It is available from the PSAA 
website (https://www.psaa.co.uk/audit-quality/statement-of-responsibilities/)).The Statement of responsibilities serves as the formal terms of 
engagement between appointed auditors and audited bodies. It summarises where the different responsibilities of auditors and audited bodies begin 
and end, and what is to be expected of the audited body in certain areas. 
The “Terms of Appointment and further guidance (updated April 2018)” issued by the PSAA sets out additional requirements that auditors must comply 
with, over and above those set out in the National Audit Office Code of Audit Practice (the Code) and in legislation, and covers matters of practice and 
procedure which are of a recurring nature.
This report is made solely to the Governance and Audit Committee and management of South Holland District Council in accordance with the 
statement of responsibilities. Our work has been undertaken so that we might state to the Governance and Audit Committee and management of South 
Holland District Council those matters we are required to state to them in this report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law we 
do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the Governance and Audit Committee and management of South Holland District Council
for this report or for the opinions we have formed. It should not be provided to any third-party without our prior written consent.
Our Complaints Procedure – If at any time you would like to discuss with us how our service to you could be improved, or if you are dissatisfied with the 
service you are receiving, you may take the issue up with your usual partner or director contact. If you prefer an alternative route, please contact Hywel 
Ball, our Managing Partner, 1 More London Place, London SE1 2AF. We undertake to look into any complaint carefully and promptly and to do all we 
can to explain the position to you. Should you remain dissatisfied with any aspect of our service, you may of course take matters up with our 
professional institute. We can provide further information on how you may contact our professional institute.

Section Page
01 - Executive Summary 02

02 - Purpose and responsibilities 05

03 - Financial statements audit 07

04 - Value for Money 15

05 – Other reporting issues 26

Appendix 1 – Audit Fees 28

Page 32



Ref: EY-000092651-01

Section 1

Executive Summary

Page 33



Ref: EY-000092651-01

Executive Summary: Key conclusions from our 2020/21 audit

South Holland District Council 3

Area of work Conclusion

Opinion on the Council’s:

Financial statements Unqualified – the financial statements give a true and fair view of 
the financial position of the Council and Group as at 31 March 
2021 and of its expenditure and income for the year then ended. 
The financial statements have been prepared properly in 
accordance with the CIPFA/LASAAC Code of Practice on Local 
Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 2020/21.
We issued our Audit Report on the 22 March 2022.

Going concern We have concluded that the Chief Financial Officer’s use of the 
going concern basis of accounting in the preparation of the 
financial statements is appropriate.

Consistency of other information 
published with the financial 
statements 

Financial information in the financial statements was consistent 
with the audited accounts.

Area of work

Reports by exception:

Value for money (VFM) We had no matters to report by exception on the Council’s VFM 
arrangements. 
We have included our VFM commentary in Section 04.

Consistency of the Annual 
Governance Statement

We were satisfied that the Annual Governance Statement was 
consistent with our understanding of the Council.

Public interest report and other 
auditor powers

We had no reason to use our auditor powers.

Page 34



Ref: EY-000092651-01

Executive Summary: Key conclusions from our 2020/21 audit

South Holland District Council 4

As a result of the work we carried out we have also:

Outcomes Conclusion

Issued a report to those charged with 
governance of the Council
communicating significant findings 
resulting from our audit.

We issued our Audit Results Report on the 22 February 2022 to the 
Governance and Audit Committee. We issued an Addendum 
Update report on the 17 March 2022 in relation to Value for Money. 

Issued a certificate that we have 
completed the audit in accordance 
with the requirements of the Local 
Audit and Accountability Act 2014 and 
the National Audit Office’s 2020 Code 
of Audit Practice.

We have not yet issued our certificate for 2020/21 as we have not 
yet performed the procedures required by the National Audit Office 
on the Whole of Government Accounts submission. The guidance 
for 2020/21 is delayed and has not yet been issued to auditors.

Fees

We carried out our audit of the Council’s financial statements in line with the “Terms of Appointment and 
further guidance (updated April 2018)” issued by the PSAA. As outlined in the Audit Results Report we 
were required to carry out additional audit procedures to address audit risks in relation to accounting for 
Covid-19 related Government Grant Income, the new pension fund actuary, Going Concern, the valuation 
of Property, and the new NAO Code for VFM. As a result, we will discuss the associated additional fee with 
the Chief Financial Officer before submitting it to PSAA Ltd for determination. We include details of the 
audit fees in Appendix 1. 

We would like to take this opportunity to thank the Council staff for their assistance during the course of our 
work. 

Mark Hodgson
Associate Partner
For and on behalf of Ernst & Young LLP

Page 35



Ref: EY-000092651-01

Section 2

Purpose and 
responsibilities

Page 36



Ref: EY-000092651-01

Purpose and responsibilities

South Holland District Council 6

Purpose

The purpose of the Auditor’s Annual Report is to bring together all of the auditor’s 
work over the year. A core element of the report is the commentary on VFM 
arrangements, which aims to draw to the attention of the Council or the wider 
public relevant issues, recommendations arising from the audit and follow-up of 
recommendations issued previously, along with the auditor’s view as to whether 
they have been implemented satisfactorily.

Responsibilities of the appointed auditor

We have undertaken our 2020/21 audit work in accordance with the Audit Plan 
that we issued on 16 July 2021. We have complied with the NAO's 2020 Code of 
Audit Practice, International Standards on Auditing (UK), and other guidance 
issued by the NAO. 

As auditors we are responsible for:

Expressing an opinion on:

• The 2020/21 financial statements; 

• Conclusions relating to going concern; and

• The consistency of other information published with the financial statements, 
including the annual report.

Reporting by exception:

• If the governance statement does not comply with relevant guidance or is not 
consistent with our understanding of the Council;

• If we identify a significant weakness in the Council’s arrangements in place to 
secure economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources; and

• Any significant matters that are in the public interest.

Responsibilities of the Council

The Council is responsible for preparing and publishing its financial statements, 
annual report and governance statement. It is also responsible for putting in 
place proper arrangements to secure economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its 
use of resources.

This report summarises 
our audit work on the 
2020/21 financial 
statements.

Page 37



Ref: EY-000092651-01

Section 3

Financial Statement 
Audit

Page 38



Ref: EY-000092651-01 South Holland District Council 8

Financial Statement Audit

Key issues

The Statement of Accounts is an important tool for the Council’s to show how 
it has used public money and how it can demonstrate its financial 
management and financial health. 

On the 22 March 2022, we issued an unqualified opinion on the financial 
statements. We reported our detailed findings to the Governance and Audit 
Committee on the 17 March 2022. We issued an Addendum Update on the 17 
March 2022. We outline below the key issues identified as part of our audit, 
reported against the significant risks and other areas of audit focus we 
included in our Audit Plan.

Financial Statement Audit

We have issued an 
unqualified audit opinion 
on the Council’s 2020/21 
financial statements.

Significant risk Conclusion

Misstatements due to fraud or error -
management override of controls

An ever present risk that management is 
in a unique position to commit fraud 
because of its ability to manipulate 
accounting records directly or indirectly, 
and prepare fraudulent financial 
statements by overriding controls that 
otherwise appear to be operating 
effectively. 

We did not identify any material weakness in controls or 
evidence of material management override.

We did not identify any instances of inappropriate judgements 
being applied, or of any management bias in accounting 
estimates.

We did not identify any inappropriate journal entries or other 
adjustments to the financial statements. 

Inappropriate capitalisation of revenue 
expenditure

Under ISA 240 there is a presumed risk 
that revenue may be misstated due to 
improper revenue recognition. In the 
public sector, this requirement is modified 
by Practice Note 10 issued by the 
Financial Reporting Council, which states 
that auditors should also consider the risk 
that material misstatements may occur by 
the manipulation of expenditure 
recognition. We have identified an 
opportunity and incentive to capitalise 
expenditure under the accounting 
framework, to remove it from the General 
Fund. 

Our sample testing of additions to Property, Plant and 
Equipment found that they had been correctly classified as 
capital and included at the correct value.

Our sample testing did not identify any revenue items that were 
incorrectly classified.

Our data analytics procedures did not identify any journal entries 
that incorrectly moved expenditure into capital codes.

Continued over.

Page 39



Ref: EY-000092651-01 South Holland District Council 9

Financial Statement Audit

Significant Risk Conclusion

Accounting for Covid-19 related grant 
funding

In response to the Covid-19 pandemic, the 
Council have received significant levels of grant 
funding, both to support 

the Council and to pass on to local businesses. 
Each of these grants will have distinct 
restrictions and conditions that will impact the 
accounting treatment of these. 

Given the volume of these grants, and the new 
conditions for the Council to understand the 
accounting impact of, 

there is a significant risk that these may be 
misclassified in the financial statements or 
inappropriately treated from an accounting 
perspective. 

Our sample testing of Covid related grant funding did not 
identify any grants that were incorrectly classified as 
specific or non-specific in nature, or any grants where the 
incorrect accounting treatment was applied. 

Our work also did not identify any grants where South 
Holland’s assessment of their role as Agent or Principal 
was against the general trend in other Councils.

We identified the need for management to revisit this 
disclosure to present Covid grants where the Council acted 
as an agent separately. Management provided a revised 
note which sufficiently covered this audit observation.

Pension valuations and disclosures

Accounting for the pension scheme involves 
significant estimation and judgement. At 31 
March 2021 the pension liability totalled £45.2 
million. The information disclosed is based on 
the IAS 19 report issued to the Council by the 
actuary to the administering body. ISAs (UK and 
Ireland) 500 and 540 require us to undertake 
procedures on the use of management experts 
and the assumptions underlying fair value 
estimates. 

We initially set pension valuation and 
disclosures as an inherent risk. However, during 
the audit we identified that Lincolnshire Pension 
Fund had changed actuary from Hymans 
Robertson to Barnett Waddingham from 1 April 
2020. We consider this a trigger event to elevate 
the inherent risk to significant. 

We reviewed the assessment of the Pension Fund actuary 
by PwC and EY Pensions and undertook the work required 
without identifying any issues.

We agreed the Council’s IAS 19 disclosures to the 
actuaries’ report to ensure these are fairly stated in the 
accounts. As a result of the response from Lincolnshire 
Pension Fund auditors highlighting a material movement in 
the valuation of investment assets of the fund, the Council 
obtained a revised actuary report and updated the 
Council’s liability figure. The Council decided not to update 
the Public Sector Partnership Services Ltd (PSPS) liability 
figure on the grounds of materiality. 

We did not identify any issues in relation to the change in 
actuary at the Pension Fund. The Council’s Pension 
Liability fell within our tolerable threshold range following 
relevant audit procedures. 

Financial Statement Audit (continued)

Continued over.

Page 40



Ref: EY-000092651-01 South Holland District Council 10

Financial Statement Audit

Other area of audit focus Conclusion

Valuation of Property, Plant, and 
Equipment and Investment Properties

The fair value of Property, Plant and 
Equipment (PPE) and Investment Properties 
represents a significant balance in the 
Council’s accounts and is subject to valuation 
changes, impairment reviews and depreciation 
charges. 

At 31 March 2021 the net book value of PPE 
was £201.7 million, and the fair value of 
investment properties was £1.6 million. We 
note that within PPE, our focus is on Land and 
Buildings and Surplus Assets. 

Management is required to make material 
judgemental inputs and apply estimation 
techniques to calculate the year-end balances 
recorded in the balance sheet.

Our work did not identify any issues with the valuation of 
Property, Plant & Equipment and investment properties. 

National non-domestic rates appeals 
provision

The calculation of the NNDR Appeals 
Provision is estimate based. Statistics 
compiled by the Ministry for Housing, 
Communities and Local Government, reveal 
that councils were forecasting net additions to 
appeal provisions totalling £927 million this 
financial year, and £1.2 billion next year. The 
reason behind the forecast increase is that, 
due to the impact of Covid-19, businesses are 
likely to seek reductions based on a decrease 
in rental prices on which rateable values are 
based.

Our work did not identify any issues with the assumptions 
used by Council’s specialist in the calculation of the NNDR 
appeals provision. 

Where the Council had made local adjustments to reflect on 
local knowledge and developing appeals, these were also 
found to be reasonable.

Financial Statement Audit (continued)

Continued over.

In addition to the significant risks identified, we also concluded on the following areas of audit focus or 
inherent risk.

Page 41



Ref: EY-000092651-01 South Holland District Council 11

Financial Statement Audit

Other area of audit focus Conclusion

Recoverability of receivables (debtors)

As a result of the impact of Covid-19, there 
may be increased uncertainty around the 
recoverability of receivables. 

The provision for these bad debts is an 
estimate, and calculation requires 
management judgement. We would expect the 
Council to revisit their provision for bad debt 
calculation in light of Covid-19 and assess the 
appropriateness of this estimation technique. 
Given that there might be some subjectivity to 
the recoverability of debtors the Council will 
need to consider the level of any provision for 
bad debts.

Our work did not identify any issues with the 
reasonableness, accuracy or sufficiency of the provision for 
the recoverability of receivables made. 

Our sample testing of trade receivables also did not identify 
any issues around the recoverability of debtors held on the 
balance sheet at year end. 

Accounting for Collection Fund disclosures

During 2020/21, in response to the financial 
hardship faced by individuals and businesses, 
there may be lower levels of recovery of 
collection fund income. There are also specific 
sectors including retail, hospitality and leisure 
that have received additional business rates 
relief for the financial year. There is therefore 
an inherent risk of incorrect accounting based 
on the significant level of change in the year.

Our work did not identify any issues with the accounting for 
Collection Fund disclosures.

New payroll system

The Council implemented a new payroll 
system during the financial year. As with any IT 
upgrade there is a risk that the relevant 
financial information has not been 
appropriately transferred to the new system 
leading to material misstatement in the 
2020/21 financial statements.

Our work performed did not identify any issues with the 
implementation of the new payroll system.

Financial Statement Audit (continued)

Continued over.

Page 42



Ref: EY-000092651-01 South Holland District Council 12

Financial Statement Audit

Other area of audit focus Conclusion

Going concern disclosures

The Council is required to carry out an 
assessment of its ability to continue as a 
going concern for the foreseeable future, 
being at least 12 months after the date of the 
approval of the financial statements. There is 
a risk that the Council’s financial statements 
do not adequately disclose the assessment 
made, the assumptions used and the 
relevant risks and challenges that have 
impacted the going concern period.

We did not identify any events or conditions in the course of 
our audit that may cast significant doubt on the entity’s ability 
to continue as going concern.
Management have used the basis of their assessment to 
produce the disclosures included within the draft financial 
statements.
We were satisfied that the revised disclosure note 
appropriately sets out the circumstances surrounding the 
financial implications prevalent at the date of authorisation of 
the financial statements.

Auditing Accounting Estimates

ISA 540 (Revised) - Auditing Accounting 
Estimates and Related Disclosures applies 
to audits of all accounting estimates in 
financial statements for periods beginning on 
or after December 15, 2019. This revised 
ISA responds to changes in financial 
reporting standards and a more complex 
business environment which together have 
increased the importance of accounting 
estimates to the users of financial 
statements and introduced new challenges 
for preparers and auditors. The revised ISA 
requires auditors to consider inherent risks 
associated with the production of accounting 
estimates. 

We did not identify any issues in respect of estimates included 
within the financial statements. 

Financial Statement Audit (continued)

Continued over.

Page 43



Ref: EY-000092651-01 South Holland District Council 13

Financial Statement Audit

Financial Statement Audit (continued)

Our application of materiality
When establishing our overall audit strategy, we determined a magnitude of uncorrected misstatements that 
we judged would be material for the financial statements as a whole.

Item Thresholds applied

Planning 
materiality

We determined planning materiality to be £1.133 million as 2% of gross revenue 
expenditure reported in the accounts. We consider gross revenue expenditure to be one 
of the principal considerations for stakeholders in assessing the financial performance of 
the Council.

Reporting 
threshold

We agreed with the Governance and Audit Committee that we would report all audit 
differences in excess of £0.057 million.

We also identified the following areas where misstatement at a level lower than our overall materiality level 
might influence the reader. For these areas we developed an audit strategy specific to these areas. The areas 
identified and audit strategy applied include:
► Remuneration disclosures: We audited all disclosures and undertook procedures to confirm material 

completeness.
► Related party transactions. We audited all disclosures and undertook procedures to confirm material 

completeness.

Page 44



Ref: EY-000092651-01 South Holland District Council 14

Financial Statement Audit

Financial Statement Audit (continued)

Audit differences
Management corrected, within the authorised financial statements, one audit difference in relation to:

► Pension Fund Liability – As a result of our audit procedures under IAS19 in respect of the Pension Liability, 
we were informed by the Pension Fund auditor that Investment Valuations within the Pension Fund were 
understated. The Council obtained a revised actuarial report which showed a reduction in the Council’s 
share of the Pension Fund Liability by £1.216 million. 

We also identified a small number of misstatements in disclosures which management corrected. 

There were two audit difference identified for which management did not adjust the financial statements:

► As a result of our audit procedures under IAS19 in respect of the Pension Liability, we were informed by the 
Pension Fund auditor that Investment Valuations within the Pension Fund were understated. As reported 
above, the Council has adjusted for the South Holland element of the pension fund liability. However, the 
difference relating to the Council’s share of the shared service provider Public Sector Partnership Services 
Pension Liability by £0.283 million. 

► As a result of our year-end cut-off procedures we identified one transaction which had been incorrectly 
omitted from the 2020/21 Statement of Accounts. The difference relates to grant income of £0.092 million 
which had been accounted for in 2021/22 instead of 2020/21. 

As both differences were not material, either individually or cumulatively, Management chose not to amend 
for the differences, which was ratified by the Governance and Audit Committee and confirmed within the 
Council’s letter of representation to us. 

Page 45



Ref: EY-000092651-01

Section 4

Value for Money

Page 46



Ref: EY-000092651-01 South Holland District Council 16

Value for Money (VFM)

Scope and risks

We have complied with the NAO’s 2020 Code and the NAO’s Auditor Guidance 
Note in respect of VFM. We reported our VFM risk assessment to the 
Governance and Audit Committee on the 17 March 2022 which was based on a 
combination of our cumulative audit knowledge and experience, our review of 
Council and committee reports, meetings with the Chief Financial Officer and her 
team and evaluation of associated documentation through our regular 
engagement with management and the finance team. We reported that we had 
not identified any risks of significant weaknesses in the Council’s VFM 
arrangements for 2020/21. we included this assessment in our Audit Results 
report – Addendum – VFM Risk Assessment dated 17 March 2022.

Reporting

We completed our planned VFM arrangements work in February and March 
2022 and did not identify any significant weaknesses in the Council’s VFM 
arrangements. As a result, we had no matters to report by exception in the audit 
report on the financial statements. 

VFM Commentary

In accordance with the NAO’s 2020 Code, we are required to report a 
commentary against three specified reporting criteria:

• Financial sustainability
How the Council plans and manages its resources to ensure it can continue to 
deliver its services;

• Governance
How the Council ensures that it makes informed decisions and properly 
manages its risks; and

• Improving economy, efficiency and effectiveness:
How the Council uses information about its costs and performance to improve 
the way it manages and delivers its services.

We did not identify any 
risks of significant 
weaknesses in the 
Council’s VFM 
arrangements for 
2020/21.

We had no matters to 
report by exception in 
the audit report.

Our VFM commentary 
highlights relevant 
issues for the Council 
and the wider public.

Page 47



Ref: EY-000092651-01

South Holland District Council

17

VFM Commentary

Introduction and context

The 2020 Code confirms that the focus of our work should be on the arrangements that 
the audited body is expected to have in place, based on the relevant governance 
framework for the type of public sector body being audited, together with any other 
relevant guidance or requirements. Audited bodies are required to maintain a system of 
internal control that secures value for money from the funds available to them whilst 
supporting the achievement of their policies, aims and objectives. They are required to 
comment on the operation of their governance framework during the reporting period, 
including arrangements for securing value for money from their use of resources, in a 
governance statement.

We have previously reported the VFM work we have undertaken during the year 
including our risk assessment. The commentary below aims to provide a clear narrative 
that explains our judgements in relation to our findings and any associated local context.

For 2020/21, the significant impact that the Covid-19 pandemic has had on the Council 
has shaped decisions made, how services have been delivered and financial plans have 
necessarily had to be reconsidered and revised. 

We have reflected these national and local contexts in our VFM commentary.

Financial sustainability
1. How the body ensures that it identifies all the significant financial pressures that 
are relevant to its short and medium-term plans and builds these into them

The finance team work with the individual departments to set the budget each year. The 
individual department managers will be aware of the financial pressures affecting their 
service area. The draft budget goes to the Corporate Management Team (CMT) and  
members of the Council for further discussion and consideration. 

The Council also prepares a Medium Term Financial Strategy (MTFS). Both the budget 
and associated Medium Term Financial Strategy are taken to the Full Council in 
February for consideration and approval.

2. How the body plans to bridge its funding gaps and identifies achievable savings

As part of the budget papers for 2020/21, a savings efficiency target was identified. Initial 
savings and income generating opportunities were identified and monitored as part of the 
quarterly monitoring process. Any timing issues relating to when savings materialise can 
be managed through the use of reserves to mitigate timing issues.

Since 2020/21, the Council’s management structure has seen a lot of change, as the 
previous 10 year relationship with Breckland Council was dissolved on 1st May 2021. On 
the 1st October 2021, the Council formed a strategic partnership with East Lindsey 
District Council and Boston Borough Council. An Annual Delivery Plan was produces to 
identify opportunities of achieving efficiencies across this new partnership.

The Council has 
had the 
arrangements we 
would expect to 
see to enable it 
to plan and 
manage its 
resources to 
ensure that it can 
continue to 
deliver its 
services.

Page 48



Ref: EY-000092651-01 South Holland District Council 18

VFM Commentary

Financial sustainability (continued)

3. How the body plans finances to support the sustainable delivery of 
services in accordance with strategic and statutory priorities

The Council has a Corporate Plan in place, which is refreshed annually to ensure it 
is relevant to the current political and economic climate. The Plan will then be fully 
updated every 4 years. 

4. How the body ensures that its financial plan is consistent with other plans 
such as workforce, capital, investment, and other operational planning which 
may include working with other local public bodies as part of a wider system

The different budgets (capital, treasury, and revenue) are set annually at the same 
time to ensure consistency of approach. The salary budgets are set from 
establishment information to ensure this is in line with workforce planning 
assumptions. The annual budget links to the Corporate Plan to ensure there is 
sufficient funding to deliver on the Council's priorities. 

The Capital Strategy and the Medium Term Financial Plan both show the strategic 
links to other key Council policies such as Corporate Risk Management, IT, Digital, 
Housing, Treasury Management and Corporate Asset Management. 

5. How the body identifies and manages risks to financial resilience, e.g. 
unplanned changes in demand, including challenge of the assumptions 
underlying its plans.

The Council identifies and manages risks to financial resilience through quarterly 
performance reports, which go to Cabinet meetings for discussion. These reports 
provide information on the forecast full year financial performance for revenue, 
capital, and treasury. They also provide more detail on any significant variances 
identified between budget and forecast outturn.

The Council will consider financial implications of identified risks in the Strategic 
Risk register, which includes considering the controls and mitigations in place, and 
monitoring and reporting any developments in relation to those risks. 

The budget and Medium Term Financial Strategy also considers key risks to 
delivering the budget, and assesses their likelihood and impact, as well as detailing 
the relevant mitigation actions in place.

The Council has had the 
arrangements we would 
expect to see to enable 
it to plan and manage its 
resources to ensure that 
it can continue to deliver 
its services.

Page 49



Ref: EY-000092651-01 South Holland District Council 19

VFM Commentary

Governance
1. How the body monitors and assesses risk and how the body gains 
assurance over the effective operation of internal controls, including 
arrangements to prevent and detect fraud

The Council has a Strategic Risk Register in place.  Risks are scored against a risk 
matrix and held on the Pentana system. These are updated quarterly and presented 
to the Governance and Audit Committee, where they are appropriately challenged. 

Service managers are responsible for their departmental risks and they will receive 
notifications every quarter to assess their risks on the system and update them for 
the latest position. The Corporate Improvement Team collate the risks and work with 
stakeholders and risk owners to ensure that the risks continue to be identified 
correctly and mitigated against. 

The Council has an Internal Audit function in place. The Internal Audit Plan for the 
year was presented and discussed at the Governance and Audit Committee. Internal 
Audit also present regularly to the Committee throughout the year about their 
progress against the plan and the outcome of their audits, culminating in the Head of 
Internal Audit Opinion for the financial year.

2. How the body approaches and carries out its annual budget setting 
process

The budget is prepared by the finance team with input from all individual 
departments. Departments are not allowed to account for any growth unless it is 
contractual or inflationary. The Finance team works with the individual departments 
in putting this together. Once the overall budget is drafted, it is reviewed to ensure 
that there are no large unexplained variances in relation to the previous year. If any 
such variances are identified, they ensure the rationale for it is clear and linked to 
corporate or service priorities. 

The draft budget is reviewed by the Corporate Management Team, and Members in 
January for discussion, and to consider any further comments or observations which 
might need to be factored in. Following that, the budget is presented to Cabinet and 
the Full Council in February for final approval prior to the start of the financial year.

The Council has had the 
arrangements we would 
expect to see to enable 
to make informed 
decisions and properly 
manage its risks.

Page 50



Ref: EY-000092651-01 South Holland District Council 20

VFM Commentary

Governance (continued)
3. How the body ensures effective processes and systems are in place to 
ensure budgetary control; to communicate relevant, accurate and timely 
management information (including non-financial information where 
appropriate); supports its statutory financial reporting requirements; and 
ensures corrective action is taken where needed.

Cabinet is responsible for overseeing the overall financial performance of the 
Council. They receive quarterly performance reports to monitor the Council's 
performance against the budget and updated yearly forecasts. The Council's 
Performance Monitoring Panel also receives and discusses these performance 
reports.

The quarterly performance reports aim to provide Members, businesses and 
residents with an overview of how the Council is performing against a number of key 
indicators and to highlight how key services have performed whilst the organisation 
continues to respond to ongoing challenges. Non-financial information, for example: 
volume of calls received by the Council, average wait time for calls, and number of 
visits to the Council's website, is included in these reports.

The Council has had the 
arrangements we would 
expect to see to enable 
to make informed 
decisions and properly 
manage its risks.

Page 51



Ref: EY-000092651-01 South Holland District Council 21

VFM Commentary

Governance (continued)

4. How the body ensures it makes properly informed decisions, supported by 
appropriate evidence and allowing for challenge and transparency.  This 
includes arrangements for effective challenge from those charged with 
governance/audit committee.

Committee papers are prepared using a proforma template which considers all the 
key implications of the report in question. This includes consideration of background, 
expected benefits, recommendations, implications, and whether there are any wards 
or communities affected by the decision. 

Full Council is the key decision-making body of the Council. Every elected member 
of the Council is able to attend these meetings and has a vote on all decision items. 
A decision also requires a majority of voting members approval in order to be 
passed. 

There are two Overview and Scrutiny Committees that support the work of the 
Cabinet and the Council as a whole. These are the Performance Monitoring Panel 
(PMP), and the Policy Development Panel (PDP). They allow wider involvement in 
Council business by including non-councillors from the wider public sector, as well 
as voluntary and community groups, to help them in their work. These Committees 
may make reports and recommendations to the Cabinet and Council as a whole on 
its policies, budget and service delivery. The PMP can 'call-in' a decision of the 
Cabinet that has been made but not yet implemented, or may recommend that the 
Cabinet reconsider their decision.

The Governance and Audit Committee meets quarterly, and there is an extra 
meeting in July to review the draft financial statements. This Committee is 
comprised of appropriately experienced members, and has clear terms of reference. 
There is a standing item on the agenda around training, whereby Members can 
request for additional training should they require it.

The Council has had the 
arrangements we would 
expect to see to enable 
to make informed 
decisions and properly 
manage its risks.

Page 52



Ref: EY-000092651-01 South Holland District Council 22

VFM Commentary

Governance (continued)

5. How the body monitors and ensures appropriate standards, such as 
meeting legislative/regulatory requirements and standards in terms of 
officer or member behaviour (such as gifts and hospitality or 
declarations/conflicts of interests).

The Council has a ‘Members Code of Conduct’ and an ‘Officers Code of Conduct’ 
in place. There is a Gifts and Hospitality Register, which is held in a hard copy by 
the Monitoring Officer. Committee meetings all have a standing agenda item for 
the formal declarations of interests. Declarations for related party transactions are 
done annually, and Corporate Management Team also perform a Companies 
House check on Members and senior officers.   

The Monitoring Officer is legally responsible for monitoring the compliance of the 
Council’s policies. The Monitoring Officer deals with any complaints that are 
raised, and they are also able to engage an independent person, if needed, to 
review a complaint. The Council has a formal whistleblowing policy in place, with 
appropriate prominence on the Council’s website and for staff.

The Council’s policies are reviewed and updated on a regular basis, for example 
the ‘Whistleblowing’, and the ‘Counter-fraud, Corruption, and Bribery’ policies are 
reviewed every 3 years.

The Council has had the 
arrangements we would 
expect to see to enable 
it to use information 
about its costs and 
performance to improve 
the way it manages and 
delivers services.

Page 53



Ref: EY-000092651-01 South Holland District Council 23

VFM Commentary

Improving economy, efficiency and effectiveness
1. How financial and performance information has been used to assess 
performance to identify areas for improvement.

Cabinet reviews the quarterly financial performance reports, and any 
overspending against budget would be challenged in that forum. The 
Performance Monitoring Panel (PMP) also receives quarterly performance 
reports, which look at several key strategic indicators and outlines performance 
against these. Metrics from each quarter are compared and quarter-to-quarter 
change is reported. Performance and business intelligence metrics cover areas 
such as customer/digital, environmental services, housing, revenues and 
benefits, HR, communities, inward investment, and planning. Comments are also 
included to explain variances.

2. How the body evaluates the services it provides to assess performance 
and identify areas for improvement

The Council has an established Performance Management Strategy setting our 
how it monitors performance and the delivery of objectives and risks. The 
Corporate Improvement and Performance Team manage the Council's corporate 
planning cycle, performance management framework, and the policy framework.

The Council measures its performance through the quarterly performance reports 
that are presented to the Performance Monitoring Panel and Policy Development 
Panel. Where performance is below plan, these reports highlight the action being 
taken to seek the required improvement. Individual service managers also report 
on how to improve and address any issues identified. 

The Governance and Audit Committee reviews information relating to risk 
management, audit, and treasury management on a quarterly basis. The 
Council’s budget ensures the provision of the appropriate resources required to 
deliver the Council’s Plan, and the types of action necessary to enable them to be 
affordable, to allow balanced budgets to be delivered.

The Council has had the 
arrangements we would 
expect to see to enable 
it to use information 
about its costs and 
performance to improve 
the way it manages and 
delivers services.

Page 54



Ref: EY-000092651-01 South Holland District Council 24

VFM Commentary

Improving economy, efficiency and effectiveness (continued)

3. How the body ensures it delivers its role within significant partnerships, 
engages with stakeholders it has identified, monitors performance against 
expectations, and ensures action is taken where necessary to improve

The Council's most significant partnership is the contract with Public Sector 
Partnership Services Ltd (PSPS), which holds regular board meetings and the 
board consists of a members and officer representative from each of the three 
Councils that own the company. 

The Council also had a shared management arrangement in place with Breckland
Council during 2020/21. A Memorandum of Understanding was in place for this 
long standing arrangement, which sets out the governance arrangements for 
shared management and joint working. As a result of the evolving needs of both 
Councils to meet the challenges of the Covid-19 pandemic, Full Council approved 
in February 2021 that the existing shared management arrangements with 
Breckland Council would cease with effect from May 2021.

For other partnerships, the Council holds a Partnership Register, which records 
the key details of what service is being provided, the key partners involved and 
the reporting framework around the partnership.

4. How the body ensures that commissioning and procuring services is 
done in accordance with relevant legislation, professional standards and 
internal policies, and how the body assesses whether it is realising the 
expected benefits.

The Council’s constitution sets out polies and procedures that they have for 
procuring services, as well the delegation to individuals and Committee’s for and 
on the Council’s behalf.  

The procurement services was delivered by Breckland Council (as part of the 
partnership agreement), and they were responsible for providing advice on 
procurement, running the procurement process and ensuring that established 
Council procurement procedures are followed. 

The main council contract is with Public Sector Partnership Services Ltd (PSPS) 
(in conjunction with East Lindsey District Council & Boston Borough Council from 
1st April 2021), for the delivery of the majority of the Councils back office 
services, including procurement. 

There are relevant governance frameworks in place for these partnership 
arrangements, predominantly through Shared Services Boards and Service Level 
Agreements, and the Council continues to keep its role in these activities under 
review.

The Council has had the 
arrangements we would 
expect to see to enable 
it to use information 
about its costs and 
performance to improve 
the way it manages and 
delivers services.

Page 55



Ref: EY-000092651-01 Suffolk County Council 25

VFM Commentary

Forward look

Looking forward to 2021 and beyond

Although we did not identify any significant weaknesses in the Council’s value for 
money arrangements there is one item in relation to governance that we wish to 
bring to your attention. 

In August 2021, the South & East Lincolnshire Councils Partnership - between 
East Lindsey District Council, Boston Borough Council and South Holland District 
Council - was agreed by all three member Councils. A Memorandum of 
Agreement between all three councils was signed at the end of September, with 
the Partnership officially coming into being from 1 October 2021.

This Partnership initially sees the three Councils share a Corporate Management 
Team.

All three Councils continue to retain their own identity and to be accountable to 
their local communities, however, sharing expertise, teams and resources will 
allow each Council to make significant savings – key to their individual Medium 
Term Financial Plans. The councils also hope the partnership will provide a 
stronger voice when it comes to securing future Government growth funding and 
influencing how services are delivered locally in the future.

This partnership will be a focus of our 2021/22 Value for Money procedures as 
we seek to understand the impact of any capacity pressures that a single 
Corporate Management Team responsible for the accountability of three 
individual authorities may lead to. 

On the 1 October 2021, 
the Council formed the 
strategic partnership 
with East Lindsey 
District Council and 
Boston Borough 
Council.

Page 56



Ref: EY-000092651-01

Section 5

Other Reporting 
Issues

Page 57



Ref: EY-000092651-01

Annual Governance Statement
We are required to consider the completeness of disclosures in the Council’s Annual Governance 
Statement, identify any inconsistencies with the other information of which we are aware from our work, and 
consider whether it complies with relevant guidance. We had no matters to report.

Whole of Government Accounts
We have not yet performed the procedures required by the National Audit Office (NAO) on the Whole of 
Government Accounts consolidation pack submission. The guidance for 2020/21 is yet to be issued. We will 
liaise with the Council to complete this work as required. 

Report in the Public Interest 
We have a duty under the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 to consider whether, in the public interest, 
to report on any matter that comes to our attention in the course of the audit in order for it to be considered 
by the Council or brought to the attention of the public.
We did not identify any issues which required us to issue a report in the public interest.

Other powers and duties
We identified no issues during our audit that required us to use our additional powers under the Local Audit 
and Accountability Act 2014.

Other Reporting Issues

South Holland District Council 27

Control Themes and Observations
As part of our work, we obtained an understanding of internal control sufficient to plan our audit and 
determine the nature, timing and extent of testing performed. Although our audit was not designed to 
express an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control, we are required to communicate to you significant 
deficiencies in internal control identified during our audit.
We adopted a fully substantive approach and have therefore not tested the operation of controls.
Our audit did not identify any control issues to bring to the attention of the Governance and Audit Committee.

Page 58



Ref: EY-000092651-01

Appendix A

Audit Fees

Page 59



Ref: EY-000092651-01

Our fee for 2020/21 is in line with the audit fee reported in our Annual Results Report presented to the 
Governance and Audit Committee on 17 March 2022.

Audit Fees

South Holland District Council 29

Description

Final Fee 
2020/21

£’s

Scale Fee 
2020/21 

£’s

Final Fee 
2019/20

£’s
Initial Scale Fee – Code work 34,293 34,293 34,293
2019/20 Fee Variation as approved by PSAA (Note 1) - - 19,934
Revised Scale Fee 34,293 34,293 54,227

Additional work:
Changes in work required to address professional and 
regulatory requirements and scope associated with risk  
(see Note 2)

33,175

Audit of the group account consolidation (Note 2) 4,640

2020/21 Additional Procedures required in response to the 
additional risks identified in this Audit Plan in respect of:
• Accounting for Covid-19 related Government Grant 

income, NDR Appeals provision, Collection Fund 
Accounting, Recoverability of Receivables, Going 
Concern, change in actuary, new payroll system and 
delays in receiving working papers. 

Note 3 -

Total fees (excluding VAT) TBC 34,293 54,227

Note 1 – PSAA Ltd determined the Fee Variation on 22 October 2021. 

Note 2 – For 2019/20 we proposed an increase to the scale fee to reflect the increased level of audit work 
required which has been impacted by a range of factors, as detailed in our 2019/20 Audit Results Report. 
Our proposed increase has been discussed with management and has now been determined by PSAA. For 
2020/21 the scale fee has again been re-assessed to take into account the same recurring risk factors as in 
2019/20 and is subject to approval by PSAA Ltd. Note that PSAA Ltd have increased their scale fee variation 
rates by 25% for 2020/21 and as a result we have applied this increase to within our calculation.

Note 3 – As set out in this report, we have had to perform additional audit procedures to respond to the 
financial reporting and associated audit risks pertaining to Covid-19, the change in actuary and the new 
payroll system. We have also encountered delays in relation to the receipt of audit evidence.

We will report the respective final fees formally, once they have been determined by PSAA Ltd.

We confirm we have not undertaken any non-audit work.

Page 60



Ref: EY-000092651-01

EY | Assurance | Tax | Transactions | Advisory

Ernst & Young LLP

© Ernst & Young LLP. Published in the UK.
All Rights Reserved.

The UK firm Ernst & Young LLP is a limited liability partnership 
registered in England and Wales
with registered number OC300001 and is a member firm of Ernst & 
Young Global Limited.

Ernst & Young LLP, 1 More London Place, London, SE1 2AF.

ey.com

Page 61



This page is intentionally left blank



South Holland 
District Council

Initial Audit Plan
Year ended 31 March 2022 

4 July 2022

P
age 63

A
genda Item

 6.



2

4 July 2022

Dear Governance and Audit Committee Members

We are pleased to attach our Initial Audit Plan which sets out how we intend to carry out our responsibilities as auditor. Its purpose is 
to provide the Governance and Audit Committee with a basis to review our proposed audit approach and scope for the 2021/22 
audit in accordance with the requirements of the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014, the National Audit Office’s 2020 Code of 
Audit Practice, the Statement of Responsibilities issued by Public Sector Audit Appointments (PSAA) Ltd, auditing standards and 
other professional requirements. It is also to ensure that our audit is aligned with the Committee’s service expectations.

This plan summarises our initial assessment of the key risks driving the development of an effective audit for South Holland District 
Council, and outlines our planned audit strategy in response to those risks. 

This report is intended solely for the information and use of the Governance and Audit Committee and management, and is not 
intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties.

We welcome the opportunity to discuss this report with you on 28 July 2022 as well as understand whether there are other matters 
which you consider may influence our audit.

Yours faithfully 

Mark Hodgson

Associate Partner

For and on behalf of Ernst & Young LLP

Enc

Governance and Audit Committee
South Holland District Council
Council Offices
Priory Road
Spalding
PE11 2XE

P
age 64



3

Contents

Public Sector Audit Appointments Ltd (PSAA) issued the “Statement of responsibilities of auditors and audited bodies”. It is available from the PSAA website (https://www.psaa.co.uk/managing-audit-
quality/statement-of-responsibilities-of-auditors-and-audited-bodies/).The Statement of responsibilities serves as the formal terms of engagement between appointed auditors and audited bodies. It
summarises where the different responsibilities of auditors and audited bodies begin and end, and what is to be expected of the audited body in certain areas. 
The “Terms of Appointment and further guidance (updated July 2021)” issued by the PSAA (https://www.psaa.co.uk/managing-audit-quality/terms-of-appointment/terms-of-appointment-and-further-
guidance-1-july-2021/) sets out additional requirements that auditors must comply with, over and above those set out in the National Audit Office Code of Audit Practice (the Code) and in legislation, and 
covers matters of practice and procedure which are of a recurring nature.
This report is made solely to the Governance and Audit Committee and management of South Holland District Council in accordance with the statement of responsibilities. Our work has been undertaken so 
that we might state to the Governance and Audit Committee and management of South Holland District Council those matters we are required to state to them in this report and for no other purpose. To 
the fullest extent permitted by law we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the Governance and Audit Committee and management of South Holland District Council for this report 
or for the opinions we have formed. It should not be provided to any third-party without our prior written consent.

Overview of our 
2021/22 audit strategy01 Audit risks02 Audit 

materiality
04 Scope of our 

audit
05

Appendices09Audit team06 Audit 
timeline07 Independence08

Value for 
Money risks

03

V
F
M

P
age 65

https://www.psaa.co.uk/managing-audit-quality/statement-of-responsibilities-of-auditors-and-audited-bodies/)
https://www.psaa.co.uk/managing-audit-quality/terms-of-appointment/terms-of-appointment-and-further-guidance-1-july-2021/


4

Overview of our 2021/22
audit strategy

01 01

P
age 66



5

Overview of our 2021/22 audit strategy

Audit risks and areas of focus

Risk / area of focus
Risk 

identified 
Change from 

PY
Details

Misstatements due to fraud 
or error

Fraud risk No change in 
risk or focus

As identified in ISA 240, management is in a unique position to perpetrate fraud 
because of its ability to manipulate accounting records directly or indirectly and 
prepare fraudulent financial statements by overriding controls that would otherwise 
appear to be operating effectively (Management Override). 

Inappropriate capitalisation 
of revenue expenditure 
including Revenue 
Expenditure Funded from 
Capital Under Statute 
(REFCUS)

Fraud risk
No change in 
risk or focus

Linking to our fraud risk identified above, we have determined that a way in which 
management could override controls is through the inappropriate capitalisation of 
revenue expenditure to understate revenue expenditure reported in the financial 
statements, given the extent of the Council’s capital programme and Revenue 
Expenditure Funded from Capital Under Statute.

Implementation of new 
General Ledger system

Significant 
Risk

New risk in 
2021/22

The Council implemented a new General Ledger (GL) system from 1 April 2021. This 
represents a change to the fundamental accounting system of the Council.

As with any major IT upgrade programme, there is a risk that 100% of the relevant 
financial information has not been appropriately transferred to the new system, leading 
to material misstatement in the 2021/22 financial statements. There is also a risk that 
the new general ledger system does not map the transactions to the correct part of the 
financial statements. We therefore consider this to be a significant audit risk. 

The following ‘dashboard’ summarises the significant accounting and auditing matters outlined in this report. It seeks to provide the 
Governance and Audit Committee with an overview of our initial risk identification for the upcoming audit and any changes in risks identified in 
the current year 

P
age 67



6

Overview of our 2021/22 audit strategy

Risk / area of focus
Risk 

identified 
Change from 

PY
Details

Accounting for COVID-19 
related government grants

Inherent Risk
Reduced risk in 
2021/22 from 

prior year

The Council has received a significant level of government funding in relation to COVID-
19, including a number of new grants in 2021/22. There is a need for the Council to 
ensure that it accounts for these grants appropriately, taking into account any 
associated restrictions and conditions. As there have been new, individually material, 
grants received during the year, including the COVID-19 Additional Relief Fund we have 
retained this as a risk area. However, as the Council correctly accounted for COVID 
related grant income in 2020/21 we have downgraded the risk from significant to 
inherent. 

Pension Valuation and 
Other Disclosures

Inherent Risk
Reduced risk in 
2021/22 from 

prior year

The Local Authority Accounting Code of Practice and IAS19 require the Council to 
make extensive disclosures within its financial statements regarding the Local 
Government Pension Scheme (LGPS) in which it is an admitted body.
The Authority’s current pension fund deficit is a material and sensitive item and the 
Code requires that this liability be disclosed on the Authority’s Balance Sheet. 
The information disclosed is based on the IAS 19 report issued to the Authority by the 
Pension Fund Actuary. Accounting for this scheme involves significant estimation and 
judgement and due to the nature, volume and size of the transactions we consider this 
to be a higher inherent risk. This has been downgraded from a significant risk in the 
prior period when the Pension Fund changed actuary (from Hymans Robertson to 
Barnett Waddingham).

Valuation of Land and 
Buildings and Investment 
Property

Inherent Risk
No change in 
risk or focus

The fair value of Property, Plant and Equipment (PPE) and Investment Property 
represents a significant balance in the Council’s accounts and is subject to valuation 
changes, impairment reviews and depreciation charges. Management is required to 
make material judgemental inputs and apply estimation techniques to calculate the 
year-end Land & Buildings balances recorded in the Balance Sheet. 

As a result of our work last year we did not identify any material issues with the work of 
the external valuer. We are also not aware of any other trigger events that would give 
rise to a significant risk, and therefore this remains an inherent risk.

P
age 68



7

Overview of our 2021/22 audit strategy

Risk / area of focus
Risk 

identified 
Change from 

PY
Details

Valuation of Council 
Dwellings

Inherent Risk
No change in 
risk or focus

Council dwellings represent a significant balance in the Council’s accounts (£176 million 
at 31 March 2021) and are subject to valuation changes, impairment reviews and 
depreciation charges. As the value of Council houses are significant, and the outputs 
from the valuer are subject to estimation, there is a higher inherent risk that balances 
may be under/overstated or the associated accounting entries incorrectly posted. Note 
– there is no change in valuer for this class of asset, so no increased risk designation.

National Non-Domestic 
Rates (NNDR) Appeals 
Provision 

Inherent Risk
No change in 
risk or focus

Due to the impact of COVID-19, there is a possibility that businesses are likely to seek 
reductions based on a decrease in rental prices on which rateable values are based. The 
Council’s NNDR Appeals Provision is a material estimate, totalling £1.6 million for the 
Collection Fund as a whole. In light of this, we consider there to be a higher inherent 
risk of misstatement of the Council’s NNDR appeals provision.

Recoverability of 
Receivables (Debtors)

Inherent Risk
No change in 
risk or focus

As a result of the long term impact of COVID-19 and other market uncertainties there 
may be increased uncertainty around the recoverability of Receivables. The provision 
for these bad debts is an estimate, and calculation requires management judgement. 
We would expect the Council to revisit their provision for bad debt calculation in light of 
ongoing uncertainty and assess the appropriateness of this estimation technique.

Infrastructure Assets Inherent Risk
New risk in 
2021/22

An issue has been raised via the NAO’s Local Government Technical Group that some 
local authorities are not writing out the gross cost and accumulated depreciation on 
highways infrastructure assets when a major part/component has been replaced or 
decommissioned. This matter is currently under consideration by CIPFA and the Council 
hold Infrastructure Assets, with a net book value of £0.391 million at 31 March 2021. 

We have raised an Inherent risk in this area to ensure the correct accounting treatment 
is applied that takes into account any updated guidance from CIPFA and that the 
Council has appropriate evidence to support that treatment.

P
age 69



8

Overview of our 2021/22 audit strategy

Materiality

Audit
differences

£60,000

Materiality has been set at £1.184 million, for the audit of the Council, which represents 2% of the prior year’s gross 
expenditure on provision of services. Note: for the Group audit, this materiality has been calculated on the Group’s prior year 
gross expenditure as £1.186 million (rounded). 

Performance materiality has been set at £0.890 million, which represents 75% of materiality. Note: for the 
Group entities (South Holland Homes and Welland Homes) we have allocated a performance materiality of 
£0.180 million.

We will report all uncorrected misstatements relating to the primary statements including the 
group (Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement, Balance Sheet, Movement in 
Reserves Statement, Cash Flow Statement and Collection Fund) greater than £0.038 million.  
Other misstatements identified will be communicated to the extent that they merit the 
attention of the Governance and Audit Committee.

Planning
materiality

£1.184m
Performance 

materiality

£0.98m

We also identify areas where misstatement at a lower level than our overall materiality level might influence the reader and develop an audit strategy 
specific to these areas, including:

• Remuneration disclosures including Member allowances: we will agree all disclosures back to source data, and Member allowances to the agreed 
and approved amounts; and

• Related party transactions we will test the completeness of related party disclosures and the accuracy of all disclosures by checking back to 
supporting evidence.

P
age 70



9

Overview of our 2021/22 audit strategy 

Audit scope

This Initial Audit Plan covers the work that we plan to perform to provide you with:

• Our audit opinion on whether the financial statements of South Holland District Council and Group give a true and fair view of the financial position as at 31 March 
2022 and of the income and expenditure for the year then ended; and

• Our commentary on your arrangements to secure value for money in your use of resources for the relevant period. We include further details on VFM in Section 
03. 

We will also review and report to the National Audit Office (NAO), to the extent and in the form required by them, on the Council’s Whole of Government Accounts 
return.

Our audit will also include the mandatory procedures that we are required to perform in accordance with applicable laws and auditing standards. When planning the audit 
we take into account several key inputs:

• Strategic, operational and financial risks relevant to the financial statements;

• Developments in financial reporting and auditing standards;

• The quality of systems and processes;

• Changes in the business and regulatory environment; and,

• Management’s views on all of the above.

By considering these inputs, our audit is focused on the areas that matter and our feedback is more likely to be relevant to the Council. 

Taking the above into account, and as articulated in this audit plan, our professional responsibilities require us to independently assess the risks associated with 
providing an audit opinion and undertake appropriate procedures in response to that. Our Terms of Appointment with PSAA allow them to vary the fee dependent on 
“the auditors assessment of risk and the work needed to meet their professional responsibilities”. PSAA are aware that the setting of scale fees has not kept pace with 
the changing requirements of external audit with increased focus on, for example, the valuations of land and buildings, the auditing of groups, the valuation of pension 
obligations, the introduction of new accounting standards such as IFRS 9 and 15 in recent years as well as the expansion of factors impacting the ISA 540 (revised) and 
the value for money conclusion. Therefore to the extent any of these or any other risks are relevant in the context of South Holland District Council’s audit , we will 
discuss these with management as to the impact on the scale fee.

Effects of climate-related matters on financial statements and Value for Money arrangements

Public interest in climate change is increasing. We are mindful that climate-related risks may have a long timeframe and therefore while risks exist, the impact on the 
current period financial statements may not be immediately material to an entity. It is nevertheless important to understand the relevant risks to make this evaluation. In 
addition, understanding climate-related risks may be relevant in the context of qualitative disclosures in the notes to the financial statements and value for money 
arrangements. We make inquiries regarding climate-related risks on every audit as part of understanding the entity and its environment. As we re-evaluate our risk 
assessments throughout the audit, we continually consider the information that we have obtained to help us assess the level of inherent risk. 

P
age 71



10

Overview of our 2021/22 audit strategy 

Value for money conclusion

We include details in Section 03 but in summary:

• We are required to consider whether the Council has made ‘proper arrangements’ to secure economy, efficiency and effectiveness on its use of 
resources.

• Planning on value for money and the associated risk assessment is focused on gathering sufficient evidence to enable us to document our 
evaluation of the Council’s arrangements, to enable us to draft a commentary under three reporting criteria (see below). This includes identifying 
and reporting on any significant weaknesses in those arrangements and making appropriate recommendations. 

• We will provide a commentary on the Council’s arrangements against three reporting criteria:

• Financial sustainability – How the Council plans and manages its resources to ensure it can continue to deliver its services;

• Governance – How the Council ensures that it makes informed decisions and properly manages its risks; and

• Improving economy, efficiency and effectiveness – How the Council uses information about its costs and performance to improve the way 
it manages and delivers its services.

• The commentary on VFM arrangements will be included in the Auditor’s Annual Report.

Timeline

The Ministry of Housing, Communities and Local Government established regulations to extend the target date for publishing audited local authority 
accounts from 31 July to 30 September, for a period of two years (i.e. covering the audit of the 2020/21 and 2021/22 accounting years). In December 
2021, the Department for Levelling Up, Housing and Communities (DLUHC) announced proposals to extend the deadline for the publication of audited 
accounts to 30 November 2022 for 2021/22.

In Section 07 we include a provisional timeline for the audit. We will work with the Council to ensure that appropriate publication wording is published by 
the date set out above.

P
age 72



11

Audit risks02 01

P
age 73



12

Audit risks

Our response to significant risks 

What will we do?

In order to address this risk we will carry out a range of procedures including:

• Inquire of management about risks of fraud and the controls put in place to address those risks.

• Understand the oversight given by those charged with governance of management’s processes over 
fraud.

• Consider of the effectiveness of management’s controls designed to address the risk of fraud.

• Perform mandatory procedures regardless of specifically identified fraud risks, including:

• Testing the appropriateness of journal entries recorded in the general ledger and other 
adjustments made in the preparation of the financial statements

• Assessing accounting estimates for evidence of management bias, and

• Evaluating the business rationale for significant unusual transactions.

We will utilise our data analytics capabilities to assist with our work.

Having evaluated this risk we have considered whether we need to perform other audit procedures not 
referred to above. We concluded that only those procedures included under ‘Inappropriate capitalisation 
of revenue expenditure (including REFCUS)’ are required, as set out on the following page.

We have set out the significant risks (including fraud risks denoted by*) identified for the current year audit along with the rationale and expected
audit approach. The risks identified below may change to reflect any significant findings or subsequent issues we identify during the audit.

What is the risk?

The financial statements as a whole are not 
free of material misstatements whether 
caused by fraud or error.

As identified in ISA (UK and Ireland) 240, 
management is in a unique position to 
perpetrate fraud because of its ability to 
manipulate accounting records directly or 
indirectly and prepare fraudulent financial 
statements by overriding controls that 
otherwise appear to be operating 
effectively. 

We identify and respond to this fraud risk on 
every audit engagement.

Misstatements due to fraud 
or error *

P
age 74



13

Audit risks

Our response to significant risks (continued) 
What is the risk?

Under ISA 240 there is a presumed risk that 
revenue may be misstated due to improper revenue 
recognition. In the public sector, this requirement is 
modified by Practice Note 10 issued by the Financial 
Reporting Council, which states that auditors should 
also consider the risk that material misstatements 
may occur by the manipulation of expenditure 
recognition. 

We have identified an opportunity and incentive to 
capitalise expenditure under the accounting 
framework, to remove it from the general fund. In 
arriving at this conclusion we have considered the 
continuing pressure on the revenue budget and the 
financial value of its annual capital programme 
which is many times out materiality level.

This could then result in funding of that expenditure, 
that should properly be defined as revenue, through 
inappropriate sources such as capital receipts, 
capital grants, or borrowing.

What will we do?

In order to address this risk we will carry out a 
range of procedures including:

• Obtaining an analysis of capital additions in 
the year, reconciling to the Fixed Assets 
Register (FAR), and reviewing the 
descriptions to identify whether there are 
any potential items that could be revenue 
in nature; and

• Sample Test Property, Plant and 
Equipment additions, and REFCUS 
additions, if material, to ensure that the 
expenditure incurred and capitalised is 
clearly capital in nature or appropriate to 
be treated as REFCUS.

We will utilise our data analytics capabilities 
to assist with our work, including journal entry 
testing.  We will assess journal entries more 
generally for evidence of management bias 
and evaluate for business rationale.

Financial statement impact

We have assessed that the risk of misreporting 
revenue outturn in the financial statements is 
most likely to be achieved through:

• Revenue expenditure being inappropriately 
recognised as capital expenditure at the 
point it is posted to the general ledger.

• Expenditure being inappropriately 
transferred by journal from revenue to 
capital codes on the general ledger at the 
end of the year.

If this were to happen it would have the impact 
of understating revenue expenditure and 
overstating property, plant and equipment 
additions and/or Revenue Expenditure 
Financed as Capital Under Statute (REFCUS) in 
the financial statements.

Inappropriate capitalisation of revenue 
expenditure including Revenue 
Expenditure Funded from Capital Under 
Statute (REFCUS)*

P
age 75



14

Audit risks

Our response to significant risks (continued) 

What will we do?

In order to address this risk we will carry out a range of 
procedures including:

• Investing the control procedures implemented by the 
Council to ensure the data from the old system 
transferred accurately and completely into the new 
system;

• Uploading the 2021/22 data from the new system 
into our data analytics tool. We will use our data 
analytics tool to check the mapping of the data to the 
2021/22 financial statements (100% coverage);

• Agreeing the 2021/22 opening balances to the 
2020/21 closing balances and corroborating to the 
audited 2020/21 financial statements;

• Applying data analytic trending analysis and 
investigate any material differences;

• Using transactions testing applied to Balance Sheet 
and Income & Expenditure statement accounts to 
provide further assurance on the mapping applied to 
the 2021/22 data; and

• Reviewing the design and use of IT application 
controls within the new financial system to ensure 
the IT control environment remains stable.

What is the risk?

The Council implemented a new General Ledger 
(GL) system during the period. The Unit 4 
(Agresso) system replaced the previous 
Microsoft Dynamics AX system on 1 April 2021.

As with any major IT upgrade programme, there 
is a risk that 100% of the relevant financial 
information has not been appropriately 
transferred to the new system, leading to 
material misstatement in the 2021/22 financial 
statements. There is also a risk that the new 
general ledger system does not map the 
transactions to the correct part of the financial 
statements.

In addition, we need to be assured that the IT 
control environment within the new financial 
system is working as designed.

Implementation of a new 
General Ledger (GL) System

Financial statement impact

Given that the general ledger system 
is the fundamental accounting 
system for the Council, there is a risk 
that the implementation of a new 
system could lead to a material 
misstatement, either due to the data 
being transferred to the system 
incorrectly, or the new system 
generating incorrect journal entries. 

P
age 76



15

Audit risks

Other areas of audit focus 

What is the risk/area of focus? What will we do?

Accounting for COVID-19 related government grants

In response to the COVID-19 pandemic, the Council have received 
significant levels of grant funding, both to support the Council and 
to pass on to local businesses. Each of these grants will have distinct 
restrictions and conditions that will impact the accounting treatment 
of these. We are aware of new COVID-19 grant income in 2021/22 
for example the COVID-19 Additional Relief Fund (CARF) where the 
Council has received £1.5 million. 

Given the volume of these grants, the new conditions for the Council 
to understand the accounting impact of, there is an inherent risk 
that these may be misclassified in the financial statements or 
inappropriately treated from an accounting perspective. 

In order to address this risk we will carry out a range of procedures including:

• Consider the Council’s judgement on material grants received in relation to 
whether it is acting as an agent or a principal; and

• Encourage the finance team to provide its assessment of grant accounting 
well before it prepares the statements so that we can provide an early view 
on its proposed accounting treatment.

Pension Liability Valuation & other pension disclosures

The Authority makes extensive disclosures within its financial 
statements regarding its membership of Lincolnshire Pension Fund 
Scheme administered by Lincolnshire County Council. At 31 March 
2021 the liability totalled £44.0 million.

The information disclosed is based on the IAS 19 report issued to 
the Authority by the actuary to the Lincolnshire Pension Fund. 

Accounting for this scheme involves significant estimation and 
judgement and therefore management engages an actuary to 
undertake the calculations on their behalf.

We undertake procedures on the use of management experts and 
the assumptions underlying fair value estimates.

In order to address this risk we will carry out a range of procedures including:

• Liaise with the auditors of Lincolnshire Pension Fund, to obtain assurances 
over the information supplied to the actuary in relation to South Holland 
District Council;

• Assess the work of the Pension Fund actuary (Barnett Waddingham) 
including the assumptions they have used, by relying on the work of PWC -
Consulting Actuaries commissioned by the National Audit Office for all local 
government sector auditors, and by considering any relevant reviews by the 
EY actuarial team; and 

• Review and test the accounting entries and disclosures made within the 
Authority’s financial statements in relation to IAS19 considering fund assets 
and the Authority’s liability.

We have identified other areas of the audit, that have not been classified as significant risks, but are still important when considering the risks of
material misstatement to the financial statements and disclosures.

P
age 77



16

Audit risks

Other areas of audit focus (continued) 
What is the area of focus? What will we do?

Valuation of Land and Buildings and Investment Property

The fair value of Property, Plant and Equipment (PPE) and Investment 
Properties (IP) represents a significant balance in the Council’s accounts and is 
subject to valuation changes, impairment reviews and depreciation charges. 

At 31 March 2021 the net book value of PPE was £201.7 million, and the fair 
value of Investment Properties (including Group) was £9.0 million. We note 
that within PPE, our focus is on Land and Buildings and Surplus Assets.

Management is required to make material judgemental inputs and apply 
estimation techniques to calculate the year-end balances recorded in the 
Balance Sheet.

In order to address this risk we will carry out a range of procedures 
(which include the group balances) including:

• Consider the work performed by the valuer, including the 
adequacy of the scope of the work performed, their professional 
capabilities and the results of their work;

• Sample test key asset information used by the valuer in 
performing their valuation (e.g. floor plans to support valuations 
based on price per square metre);

• Consider the annual cycle of valuations to ensure that assets have 
been valued within a 5 year rolling programme as required by the 
Code for PPE. We have also considered if there are any specific 
changes to assets that have occurred and that these have been 
communicated to the valuer;

• Review assets not subject to valuation in 2021/22 to confirm that 
the remaining asset base is not materially misstated;

• Consider changes to useful economic lives as a result of the most 
recent valuation; and

• Test accounting entries have been correctly processed in the 
financial statements.

Valuation of Council Dwellings

Council dwellings represent a significant balance in the Council’s accounts 
(£176 million at 31 March 2021) and are subject to valuation changes, 
impairment reviews and depreciation charges. As the value of council houses 
are significant, and the outputs from the its valuer are subject to estimation, 
there is a higher inherent risk balances may be under/overstated or the 
associated accounting entries incorrectly posted.

In order to address this risk we will carry out a range of procedures 
including:

• Consider the work performed by the Council’s valuer, including the 
adequacy of the scope of the work performed, their professional 
capabilities and the results of their work; and

• Test a sample of beacon valuations to comparable sales to ensure 
that the approach is reasonable; and

• Consider specifically the use of indices to derive the 31 March 
valuation.

P
age 78



17

Audit risks

Other areas of audit focus (continued) 

What is the area of focus? What will we do?

National Non-Domestic Rates (NNDR) Appeals Provision 

The calculation of the NNDR Appeals Provision is estimate based. Given the impact 
of COVID-19 on businesses seeking reductions in rateable values, there is a risk of 
material misstatement of the appeals provision due to the nature of the provision 
and the uncertainty around the full impact of COVID-19. 

In light of this we consider there to be an inherent risk of misstatement of the 
Council’s NNDR appeals provision.

We will consider the Council’s estimation of the NNDR appeals 
provision by performing the following:

• Review the assumptions made by the Council’s NNDR appeals 
provision specialist; and

• Assess the reasonableness of any local adjustments made by 
the Council on the NNDR appeals provision.

Bad debt provision and recoverability of debtors

As a result of the long term impact of COVID-19 and other market uncertainties 
there may be increased uncertainty around the recoverability of receivables. This 
includes large value debtors with subsidiary companies. The provision for these 
bad debts is an estimate, and calculation requires management judgement. We 
would expect the Council to revisit their provision for bad debt calculation in light 
of COVID-19 and assess the appropriateness of this estimation technique. Given 
that there might be some subjectivity to the recoverability of debtors the Council 
will need to consider the level of any provision for bad debts. We have therefore 
raised as an inherent risk in our audit strategy.

In order to address this risk we will carry out a range of 
procedures including:

• Review the calculation of the Bad Debt Provision for 
reasonableness and accuracy; and 

• Consider the recoverability of debts in testing a sample of 
trade receivables.

Accounting for Infrastructure Assets

An issue has been raised via the NAO’s Local Government Technical Group that 
some local authorities are not writing out the gross cost and accumulated 
depreciation on highways infrastructure assets when a major part/component has 
been replaced or decommissioned. This matter is currently under consideration by 
CIPFA and the Council hold Infrastructure Assets, with a net book value of £0.391 
million at 31 March 2021.

As a result of not writing out gross cost and accumulated depreciation where 
components are replaced, there is a risk that, if this is the case for elements not 
fully depreciated, assets in the Balance Sheet could be overstated. As a result, we 
have raised an Inherent risk in this area.

In order to address this risk we will carry out a range of 
procedures including:

• Continue to discuss the matter with the Council as guidance 
on accounting for Infrastructure Assets is updated;

• Understand the Infrastructure Assets balance and the 
individual assets comprising this balance; and

• Understand the Council’s process for writing out gross cost 
and accumulated depreciation on the Infrastructure Assets 
balance to determine whether this is materially correct at the 
Balance Sheet date.

P
age 79



18

Value for Money Risks03 01V
F
M

P
age 80



19

Value for Money

Council’s responsibilities for value for money

The Council is required to maintain an effective system of internal control that supports the achievement of its policies, aims and objectives while 
safeguarding and securing value for money from the public funds and other resources at its disposal. 

As part of the material published with the financial statements, the Council is required to bring together commentary on the governance framework and 
how this has operated during the period in a governance statement. In preparing the governance statement, the Council tailors the content to reflect its 
own individual circumstances, consistent with the requirements of the relevant accounting and reporting framework and having regard to any guidance 
issued in support of that framework. This includes a requirement to provide commentary on arrangements for securing value for money from the use of 
resources.

V
F
M

Auditor responsibilities

Under the NAO Code of Audit Practice we are required to consider whether the Council has put in 
place ‘proper arrangements’ to secure economy, efficiency and effectiveness on its use of 
resources. The Code requires the auditor to design their work to provide them with sufficient 
assurance to enable them to report to the Council a commentary against specified reporting 
criteria (see below) on the arrangements the Council has in place to secure value for money 
through economic, efficient and effective use of its resources for the relevant period.

The specified reporting criteria are:

• Financial sustainability – How the Council plans and manages its resources to ensure it can 
continue to deliver its services.

• Governance – How the Council ensures that it makes informed decisions and properly manages 
its risks.

• Improving economy, efficiency and effectiveness – How the Council uses information about its 
costs and performance to improve the way it manages and delivers its services.

Arrangements for 
securing value for money

Financial 
Sustainability

Improving 
Economy, 

Efficiency & 
Effectiveness 

Governance 

P
age 81



20

Value for Money

Planning and identifying risks of significant weakness in VFM arrangements

The NAO’s guidance notes requires us to carry out a risk assessment which gathers sufficient evidence to enable us to document our evaluation of the Council’s 
arrangements, in order to enable us  to draft a commentary under the three reporting criteria. This includes identifying and reporting on any significant 
weaknesses in those arrangements and making appropriate recommendations. 

In considering the Council’s arrangements, we are required to consider: 

• The Council’s governance statement; 

• Evidence that the Council’s arrangements were in place during the reporting period; 

• Evidence obtained from our work on the accounts; 

• The work of inspectorates and other bodies; and 

• Any other evidence source that we regards as necessary to facilitate the performance of our statutory duties. 

We then consider whether there is evidence to suggest that there are significant weaknesses in arrangements. The NAO’s guidance is clear that the assessment 
of what constitutes a significant weakness and the amount of additional audit work required to adequately respond to the risk of a significant weakness in 
arrangements is a matter of professional judgement. However, the NAO states that a weakness may be said to be significant if it:

• Exposes – or could reasonably be expected to expose – the Council to significant financial loss or risk; 

• Leads to – or could reasonably be expected to lead to – significant impact on the quality or effectiveness of service or on the Council’s reputation; 

• Leads to – or could reasonably be expected to lead to – unlawful actions; or 

• Identifies a failure to take action to address a previously identified significant weakness, such as failure to implement or achieve planned progress on 
action/improvement plans. 

We should also be informed by a consideration of: 

• The magnitude of the issue in relation to the size of the Council;  

• Financial consequences in comparison to, for example, levels of income or expenditure, levels of reserves (where applicable), or impact on budgets or 
cashflow forecasts; 

• The impact of the weakness on the Council’s reported performance; 

• Whether the issue has been identified by the Council’s own internal arrangements and what corrective action has been taken or planned; 

• Whether any legal judgements have been made including judicial review; 

• Whether there has been any intervention by a regulator or Secretary of State; 

• Whether the weakness could be considered significant when assessed against the nature, visibility or sensitivity of the issue; 

• The impact on delivery of services to local taxpayers; and 

• The length of time the Council has had to respond to the issue. 

V
F
M

P
age 82



21

Value for Money

Responding to identified risks of significant weakness 

Where our planning work has identified a risk of significant weakness, the NAO’s guidance requires us to consider what additional evidence is needed to 
determine whether there is a significant weakness in arrangements and undertake additional procedures as necessary, including where appropriate, 
challenge of management’s assumptions. We are required to report our planned procedures to the Governance and Audit Committee. 

V
F
M

Reporting on VFM 

Where we are not satisfied that the Council has made proper arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources 
the Code requires that we should refer to this by exception in the audit report on the financial statements.

In addition, the Code requires us to include the commentary on arrangements in the Auditor’s Annual Report. The Code states that the commentary 
should be clear, readily understandable and highlight any issues we wish to draw to the Council’s attention or the wider publ ic. This should include details 
of any recommendations arising from the audit and follow-up of recommendations issued previously, along with our view as to whether they have been 
implemented satisfactorily.

Status of our 2021/22 VFM planning 

We have yet to complete our detailed VFM risk planning. However, one area of focus will be on the arrangements that the Council has in place in relation 
to the South & East Lincolnshire Councils Partnership with East Lindsey District Council and Boston Borough Council. 

In August 2021, the South & East Lincolnshire Councils’ Partnership - between East Lindsey District Council, Boston Borough Council and South Holland 
District Council - was agreed by all three member Councils. A Memorandum of Agreement between all three councils was signed at the end of September 
2021, with the Partnership officially coming into being from 1 October 2021.

This Partnership initially sees the three Councils share a Corporate Management Team.

All three Councils hope to retain their own identity and to be accountable to their local communities, however, sharing expertise, teams and resources 
will hopefully allow each Council to make significant savings – key to their individual Medium Term Financial Plans. The Councils also hope the 
partnership will provide a stronger voice when it comes to securing future Government growth funding and influencing how services are delivered locally 
in the future.

This partnership will be a focus of our 2021/22 Value for Money procedures as we seek to understand the impact of any capacity pressures that a single 
Corporate Management Team responsible for the accountability of three individual authorities may lead to. 

We will provide an update on the outcome of our VFM planning and our planned response to any additional identified risks of significant weaknesses in 
arrangements at a future Governance and Audit Committee meeting.

P
age 83



22

Audit materiality04 01

P
age 84



23

Materiality

For planning purposes, materiality for 2021/22 has been set at £1.186 million for the
Group, and £1.184 million for the Council. This represents 2% of the Council and the
Group’s prior year gross expenditure on provision of services. It will be reassessed
throughout the audit process. We consider that gross expenditure on the provision of
services is the area of biggest interest to the users of the Council’s accounts. We have
provided supplemental information about audit materiality in Appendix C.

Audit materiality

Group
Gross expenditure

on provision of services

£59.3m Group Planning
materiality

£1.186m

Group 
performance 

materiality

£0.890m
Audit

differences

£60,000

Materiality

Planning materiality – the amount over which we anticipate misstatements 
would influence the economic decisions of a user of the financial 
statements.

Performance materiality – the amount we use to determine the extent of 
our audit procedures. We have set performance materiality at £0.890 
million for the group and £0.890 million for the Council which represents 
75% of planning materiality, This reflects the relatively lower level 
expectation of misstatements in our 2021/22 financial statement audit.

Component performance materiality range – we determine component 
performance materiality as a percentage of Group performance materiality 
based on risk and relative size to the Group. 

Audit difference threshold – we propose that misstatements identified 
below these thresholds (Group and Council) are deemed clearly trivial. The 
same threshold for misstatements is used for component reporting. We will 
report to you all uncorrected misstatements over this amount relating to 
the comprehensive income and expenditure statement, balance sheet, 
housing revenue account and collection fund that have an effect on income 
or that relate to other comprehensive income.

Other uncorrected misstatements, such as reclassifications and 
misstatements in the cashflow statement and movement in reserves 
statement or disclosures, and corrected misstatements will be 
communicated to the extent that they merit the attention of the 
Governance and Audit Committee, or are important from a qualitative 
perspective. 

Specific materiality – We have set a materiality threshold of £5,000 for 
related party transactions and members’ allowances. For officers 
remuneration including exit packages we will apply materiality of £1,000 in 
line with bandings. This reflects our understanding that an amount less than 
our materiality would not influence the economic decisions of users of the 
financial statements in relation to these disclosures.

.

Key definitions

We request that the Governance and Audit Committee confirm its understanding of, 
and agreement to, these materiality and reporting levels.

Council
performance
materiality

£0.890m

Council
Gross expenditure

on provision of services

£59.2m
Council

Planning
materiality

£1.184m

Audit
differences

£60,000

P
age 85



24

Audit materiality

Materiality
The amount we consider material at the end of the audit may differ from our initial determination. At this stage, however, it is not feasible to anticipate 
all the circumstances that might ultimately influence our judgement. At the end of the audit we will form our final opinion by reference to all matters that 
could be significant to users of the financial statements, including the total effect of any audit misstatements, and our evaluation of materiality at that 
date.

We also identify areas where misstatement at a lower level than our overall materiality level might influence the reader and develop an audit strategy 
specific to these areas, including:

• Remuneration disclosures including councillor allowances: we will agree all disclosures back to source data, and councillor allowances to the agreed 
and approved amounts.

• Related party transactions: we will test the completeness of related party disclosures and the accuracy of all disclosures by checking back to 
supporting evidence.

P
age 86



25

Scope of our audit05 01

P
age 87



26

Objective and Scope of our Audit scoping

Under the Code of Audit Practice, our principal objectives are to undertake work to support the provision of our audit report to the audited body and to 
satisfy ourselves that the audited body has made proper arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources to the 
extent required by the relevant legislation and the requirements of the Code.

We issue an audit report that covers:

1. Financial statement audit

Our opinion on the financial statements: 

• whether the financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial position of the audited body and its expenditure and income for the period 
in question; and 

• whether the financial statements have been prepared properly in accordance with the relevant accounting and reporting framework as set out in 
legislation, applicable accounting standards or other direction. 

Our opinion on other matters:
• whether other information published together with the audited financial statements is consistent with the financial statements; and 
• where required, whether the part of the remuneration report to be audited has been properly prepared in accordance with the relevant accounting 

and reporting framework.

Other procedures required by the Code:
• Examine and report on the consistency of the Whole of Government Accounts schedules or returns with the body’s audited financial statements for 

the relevant reporting period in line with the instructions issued by the NAO.

2. Arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness (value for money)

As outlined in Section 03, we are required to consider whether the Council has put in place ‘proper arrangements’ to secure economy, efficiency and 
effectiveness on its use of resources and report a commentary on those arrangements. 

Scope of our audit

Our Audit Process and Strategy

P
age 88



27

Audit Process Overview

Our audit involves: 
• Identifying and understanding the key processes and internal controls; and

• Substantive tests of detail of transactions and amounts.

For 2021/22 we plan to follow a substantive approach to the audit as we have concluded this is the most efficient way to obtain the level of audit 
assurance required to conclude that the financial statements are not materially misstated. 

Analytics:
We will use our computer-based analytics tools to enable us to capture whole populations of your financial data, in particular journal entries. These 
tools:
• Help identify specific exceptions and anomalies which can then be subject to more traditional substantive audit tests; and 

• Give greater likelihood of identifying errors than random sampling techniques.

We will report the findings from our process and analytics work, including any significant weaknesses or inefficiencies identified and recommendations 
for improvement, to management and the Governance and Audit Committee. 

Internal audit:
We will review internal audit plans and the results of their work. We will reflect on these when designing our overall audit approach and when 
developing our detailed testing strategy. We may also reflect relevant findings from their work in our reporting, where it raises issues that could have 
a material impact on the financial statements.

Scope of our audit

Our Audit Process and Strategy (continued)

P
age 89



28

Group scoping

Our audit strategy for performing an audit of an entity with multiple locations is risk based. We identify components as:
1. Significant components: A component is significant when it is likely to include risks of material misstatement of the group financial statements, 

either because of its relative financial size to the group (quantitative criteria), or because of its specific nature or circumstances (qualitative criteria). 
We generally assign significant components a full or specific scope given their importance to the financial statements.

2. Not significant components: The number of additional components and extent of procedures performed depended primarily on: evidence from 
significant components, the effectiveness of group wide controls and the results of analytical procedures. 

For all other components we perform other procedures to confirm that there is no risk of material misstatement within those entity’s. These procedures 
are detailed below.

Scope of our audit

Scoping the group audit 

Scoping by Entity

Our preliminary audit scopes by number of locations we have 
adopted are set out below. We provide scope details for each 
component within Appendix A. 

Full Scope: South Holland District 
Council

Specific scope audit: Welland 
Homes

Review scope audits

Specified procedures

1 A

1 B

0 C

0 D

1 E
Other procedures: South 
Holland Local Housing CIC 

Scope definitions

Full scope: Entities where a full audit is performed to the materiality levels 
assigned by the Group audit team for purposes of the consolidated audit. 

Specific scope: Entities where the audit is limited to specific accounts or 
disclosures identified by the Group audit team based on the size and/or risk 
profile of those accounts. 

Review scope: Entities where procedures primarily consist of analytical 
procedures and inquiries of management. On-site or desk top reviews may be 
performed, according to our assessment of risk and the availability of 
information centrally.

Specified Procedures: Entities where the component team performs 
procedures specified by the Group audit team in order to respond to a risk 
identified.

Other procedures: For those component entities that we do not consider 
material to the Group financial statements in terms of size relative to the Group 
and risk, we perform other procedures to confirm that there is no risk of 
material misstatement within those locations. 

P
age 90



29

Scope of our audit

Scoping the group audit (continued) 
Coverage of Expenditure

We set audit scopes for each reporting unit which, when taken together, 
enable us to form an opinion on the group accounts. We take into account 
the size, risk profile, changes in the business environment, and other 
factors when assessing the level of work to be performed at each 
reporting unit.

Based on the group’s prior year results, our scoping is expected to achieve 
the following coverage of the group’s net cost of service expenditure.

Our audit approach is risk based and therefore the data above on 
coverage is provided for your information only.

of the Group’s expenditure will 
be covered by the audit of the 
Council (Single entity), with 
specific scope and other 
procedures providing the 
remaining coverage (0.3%).

99.7%Expenditure Details of specific scope and other procedures

Our approach to specific and other procedures is as follows:

• Direct testing of the material risk areas identified for Welland Homes 
Ltd (primarily investment properties, £6.6 million in 2020/21);

• Review of group wide entity level controls;

• Perform analytics review procedures;

• Test consolidation procedures and journals;

• Enquiry of management about unusual transactions; and

• Review of management’s reconciliation of local statutory accounts to 
the group accounts.

Key changes in scope from last year

At the time of writing this report we are awaiting further information to be 
able to conclude on our group scoping. However, based on our discussions 
with management and the provided scope assessment by the Council, and 
knowledge from the 2021/22 audit we anticipate there are no changes in 
the scope from the previous year. 

The Council, as single entity, remains as a full scope audit.

Welland Homes Ltd remains a ‘significant component’, categorised as 
Specific scope. 

South Holland Homes Community Interest Company remains an 
‘immaterial component’, categorised as ‘Other Procedures’ scope. P

age 91



30

Audit team06 01

P
age 92



31

Audit team

Audit team 

Audit team structure:

Mark Hodgson

Audit Partner

Dan Cooke

Audit Manager

Claire Sulam

Senior

We are working together with officers to 
identify continuing improvements in 
communication and processes for the 
2021/22 audit. 

We will continue to keep our audit approach 
under review to streamline it where possible.

Working together with the Council

EY Real 
Estates (EYRE)

PwC (consulting 
actuary) and EY 

Actuaries

Jacob McHugh

Audit Manager

P
age 93



32

Audit team

Use of specialists
When auditing key judgements, we are often required to use the input and advice provided by specialists who have qualifications and expertise not 
possessed by the core audit team. The areas where specialists are expected to provide input for the current year audit are:

In accordance with Auditing Standards, we will evaluate each specialist’s professional competence and objectivity, considering their qualifications, 
experience and available resources, together with the independence of the individuals performing the work.

We also consider the work performed by the specialist in light of our knowledge of the Council’s business and processes and our assessment of audit risk 
in the particular area. For example, we would typically perform the following procedures:

• Analyse source data and make inquiries as to the procedures used by the specialist to establish whether the source data is relevant and reliable;

• Assess the reasonableness of the assumptions and methods used; 

• Consider the appropriateness of the timing of when the specialist carried out the work; and

• Assess whether the substance of the specialist’s findings are properly reflected in the financial statements.

Area Specialists

Pensions disclosure
EY Actuaries

Barnett Waddingham – Actuary to Lincolnshire Pension Fund

Valuation of Land and Buildings & 
Investment Properties

Wilkes Head & Eve (Council’s HRA valuer)

Kier (Council’s PPE valuer)

EY Real Estates (in relation to assessing the Council’s valuers and otherwise required)

NDR Appeals Provision Analyse Local (management specialist)

Financial Instruments Link Assets Services (management specialist)

P
age 94



33

Developing the right Audit Culture

“A series of company collapses linked 
to unhealthy cultures…..have 

demonstrated why cultivating a 
healthy culture, underpinned by the 

right tone from the top, is 
fundamental to business success.”

Sir John Thompson
Chief Executive of the FRC

Our audit culture is the cement that binds together the
building blocks and foundation of our audit strategy. We have
been thoughtful in articulating a culture that is right for us:
one that recognises we are part of a wider, global firm and is
clear about whose interests our audits serve.

There are three elements underpinning our culture:

1. Our people are focused on a common purpose. It is vital
we foster and nurture the values, attitudes and
behaviours that lead our people to do the right thing.

2. The essential attributes of our audit business are: 

• Right resources — We team with competent people,
investing in audit technology, methodology and support

• Right first time — Our teams execute and review their 
work, consulting where required to meet the required 
standard

• Right reward — We align our reward and recognition to 
reinforce the right behaviours 

3. The six pillars of Sustainable Audit Quality are implemented.  

Tone at the top

The internal and external messages sent by EY
leadership, including audit partners, set a clear tone at
the top - they establish and encourage a commitment to
audit quality

Exceptional talent

Specific initiatives support EY auditors in devoting time to 
perform quality work, including recruitment, retention, 
development and workload management

Accountability

The systems and processes in place help EY people take 
responsibility for carrying out high-quality work at all times, 
including their reward and recognition

01

02

03

Audit technology and digital

The EY Digital Audit is evolving to set the standard for the 
digital-first way of approaching audit, combining leading-edge 
digital tools, stakeholder focus and a commitment to quality

Simplification and innovation

We are simplifying and standardising the approach used by EY 
auditors and embracing emerging technologies to improve the 
quality, consistency and efficiency of the audit

04

05

Enablement and quality support

How EY teams are internally supported to manage their 
responsibility to provide high audit quality

06

A critical part of this culture is that our people are encouraged and
empowered to challenge and exercise professional scepticism
across all our audits. However, we recognise that creating a culture
requires more than just words from leaders. It has to be reflected in
the lived experience of all our people each and every day enabling
them to challenge themselves and the companies we audit.

Each year we complete an audit quality culture assessment to obtain
feedback from our people on the values and behaviours they
experience, and those they consider to be fundamental to our audit
quality culture of the future. We action points that arise to ensure
our culture continues to evolve appropriately.

In July 2021, EY established a UK Audit Board (UKAB) with a
majority of independent Audit Non-Executives (ANEs). The
UKAB will support our focus on delivering high-quality audits
by strengthening governance and oversight over the culture
of the audit business. This focus is critical given that audit
quality starts with having the right culture embedded in the
business.

We bring our culture alive by investing in  
three priority workstreams:
• Audit Culture with a focus on 

professional scepticism 
• Adopting the digital audit
• Standardisation

This investment has led to a number of 
successful outputs covering training, tools, 
techniques and additional sources. Specific 
highlights include:
• Audit Purpose Barometer
• Active Scepticism Framework
• Increased access to external sector 

forecasts
• Forensic risk assessment pilots
• Refreshed PLOT training and support 

materials, including embedding in new 
hire and trainee courses

• Digital audit training for all ranks
• Increased hot file reviews and improved 

escalation processes
• New work programmes issued on auditing 

going concern, climate, impairment, 
expected credit losses, cashflow 
statements and conducting effective 
group oversight

• Development of bite size, available on 
demand, task specific tutorial videos

2021 Audit Culture Survey result
A cultural health score of 78%  (73%) was 

achieved for our UK Audit Business

P
age 95



34

Audit timeline07 01

P
age 96



35

Audit timeline

Below is a timetable showing the key stages of the audit and the deliverables we have agreed to provide to you through the audit cycle in 2021/22.

From time to time matters may arise that require immediate communication with the Governance and Audit Committee and we will discuss them with 
the Governance and Audit Committee Chair as appropriate. We will also provide updates on corporate governance and regulatory matters as 
necessary.

Timeline

Timetable of communication and deliverables

Audit phase Timetable
Governance and Audit 
Committee timetable

Deliverables

Planning:

Risk assessment and setting of scopes.

June – July 2022

Walkthrough of key systems and 
processes

July – August 2022 Governance and Audit Committee Audit Plan

Early testing procedures July – August 2022

Year end audit October - November 
2022

Governance and Audit Committee Audit Plan Update – VFM Risk Assessment

Audit Completion procedures November 2022 Governance and Audit Committee Audit Results Report

Audit opinion and completion certificates

December 2022 Auditor’s Annual Report

P
age 97



36

Independence08 01

P
age 98



37

Introduction

The FRC Ethical Standard and ISA (UK) 260 “Communication of audit matters with those charged with governance”, requires us to communicate with you 
on a timely basis on all significant facts and matters that bear upon our integrity, objectivity and independence. The Ethical Standard, as revised in 
December 2019, requires that we communicate formally both at the planning stage and at the conclusion of the audit, as well as during the course of the 
audit if appropriate.  The aim of these communications is to ensure full and fair disclosure by us to those charged with your governance on matters in which 
you have an interest.

In addition, during the course of the audit, we are required to communicate with you whenever any significant judgements are made about threats to 
objectivity and independence and the appropriateness of safeguards put in place, for example, when accepting an engagement to provide non-audit 
services.

We ensure that the total amount of fees that EY and our network firms have charged to you and your affiliates for the provision of services during the 
reporting period, analysed in appropriate categories, are disclosed.

Required communications

Planning stage Final stage

► The principal threats, if any, to objectivity 
and independence identified by Ernst & 
Young (EY) including consideration of all 
relationships between you, your affiliates 
and directors and us;

► The safeguards adopted and the reasons 
why they are considered to be effective, 
including any Engagement Quality review;

► The overall assessment of threats and 
safeguards;

► Information about the general policies 
and process within EY to maintain 
objectivity and independence.

► In order for you to assess the integrity, objectivity and independence of the firm and each covered 
person, we are required to provide a written disclosure of relationships (including the provision of non-
audit services) that may bear on our integrity, objectivity and independence. This is required to have 
regard to relationships with the entity, its directors and senior management, its affiliates, and its 
connected parties and the threats to integrity or objectivity, including those that could compromise 
independence that these create.  We are also required to disclose any safeguards that we have put in 
place and why they address such threats, together with any other information necessary to enable our 
objectivity and independence to be assessed;

► Details of non-audit/additional services provided and the fees charged in relation thereto;

► Written confirmation that the firm and each covered person is  independent and, if applicable, that any 
non-EY firms used in the group audit or external experts used have confirmed their independence to us;

► Details of any non-audit/additional services to a UK PIE audit client where there are differences of 
professional opinion concerning the engagement between the Ethics Partner and Engagement Partner 
and where the final conclusion differs from the professional opinion of the Ethics Partner

► Details of any inconsistencies between FRC Ethical Standard and your  policy for the supply of non-audit 
services by EY and any apparent breach of that policy; 

► Details of all breaches of the IESBA Code of Ethics, the FRC Ethical Standard and professional standards, 
and of any safeguards applied and actions taken by EY to address any threats to independence; and

► An opportunity to discuss auditor independence issues.

P
age 99



38

Relationships, services and related threats and safeguards

We highlight the following significant facts and matters that may be reasonably considered to bear upon our objectivity and independence, including the principal threats, 
if any.  We have adopted the safeguards noted below to mitigate these threats along with the reasons why they are considered to be effective. However we will only 
perform non –audit services if the service has been pre-approved in accordance with your policy.

Self interest threats

A self interest threat arises when EY has financial or other interests in the Council.  Examples include where we have an investment in the Council; where we receive 
significant fees in respect of non-audit services; where we need to recover long outstanding fees; or where we enter into a business relationship with you.  At the time of 
writing, there are no long outstanding fees. 

We believe that it is appropriate for us to undertake those permitted non-audit/additional services set out in Section 5.40 of the FRC Ethical Standard 2019 (FRC ES), 
and we will comply with the policies that you have approved.  

When the ratio of non-audit fees to audit fees exceeds 1:1, we are required to discuss this with our Ethics Partner, as set out by the FRC ES, and if necessary agree 
additional safeguards or not accept the non-audit engagement.  We will also discuss this with you. We do not plan to perform any non-audit work. No additional 
safeguards are required. 

A self interest threat may also arise if members of our audit engagement team have objectives or are rewarded in relation to sales of non-audit services to you.  We 
confirm that no member of our audit engagement team, including those from other service lines, has objectives or is rewarded in relation to sales to you, in compliance 
with Ethical Standard part 4.

There are no other self interest threats at the date of this report. 

Overall Assessment

Overall, we consider that the safeguards that have been adopted appropriately mitigate the principal threats identified and we therefore confirm that EY is independent 
and the objectivity and independence of Mark Hodgson, your audit Engagement Partner and the audit engagement team have not been compromised.

Self review threats

Self review threats arise when the results of a non-audit service performed by EY or others within the EY network are reflected in the amounts included or disclosed in 
the financial statements.

There are no self review threats at the date of this report. 

Management threats

Partners and employees of EY are prohibited from taking decisions on behalf of management of the Council.  Management threats may also arise during the provision of 
a non-audit service in relation to which management is required to make judgements or decision based on that work.

There are no management threats at the date of this report. 

Other threats

Other threats, such as advocacy, familiarity or intimidation, may arise.

There are no other threats at the date of this report. 

P
age 100



39

Other communications

EY Transparency Report 2021

Ernst & Young (EY) has policies and procedures that instil professional values as part of firm culture and ensure that the highest standards of objectivity, 
independence and integrity are maintained. Details of the key policies and processes in place within EY for maintaining objectivity and independence can be 
found in our annual Transparency Report which the firm is required to publish by law. The most recent version of this Report is for the year end 30 June 2021: 
https://www.ey.com/en_uk/about-us/transparency-report-2021

P
age 101

https://www.ey.com/en_uk/about-us/transparency-report-2021


40

Appendices09 01

P
age 102



41

Appendix A

Fees

Planned fee 
2021/22

Final Fee
2020/21

£’s £’s

Scale Fee – Code work 34,293 34,293

Determined Scale Fee Variation (Note 1) - 45,799

Baseline increase in Scale Fee from 2019/20 
(Note 2)

30,247
(Note 2)

Additional Audit Procedures (Note 3) TBC -

Total audit TBC 80,092

The duty to prescribe fees is a statutory function delegated to Public Sector Audit Appointments Ltd (PSAA) by the Secretary of State for Housing, 
Communities and Local Government.  

This is defined as the fee required by auditors to meet statutory responsibilities under the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 in accordance with the 
requirements of the Code of Audit Practice and supporting guidance published by the National Audit Office, the financial reporting requirements set out in 
the Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting published by CIPFA/LASAAC, and the professional standards applicable to auditors’ work.

All fees exclude VAT

In addition, we are driving greater innovation in the audit through the 
use of technology. The significant investment costs in this global 
technology continue to rise as we seek to provide enhanced assurance 
and insight in the audit. 

The agreed fee presented is based on the following assumptions:

➢ Officers meeting the agreed timetable of deliverables;

➢ Our accounts opinion and value for money conclusion being 
unqualified;

➢ Appropriate quality of documentation is provided by the Council; and

➢ The Council has an effective control environment.

If any of the above assumptions prove to be unfounded, we will seek a 
variation to the agreed fee. This will be discussed with the Council in 
advance.

Fees for the auditor’s consideration of correspondence from the public 
and formal objections will be charged in addition to the scale fee.

Note 1 – PSAA Ltd determined the Scale Fee Variation on the 30 June 2022.

Note 2 - For 2021/22 the scale fee has again been re-assessed to take into 
account the same recurring risk factors as in 2019/20 and 2020/21 and is 
subject to determination by PSAA Ltd – subject to annual price uplifts.

Note 3 - For 2021/22, the scale fee will be impacted by a range of factors 
which will result in additional work, including some of those that were 
present in the prior year – such as the impact of Covid-19. See Section 2 of 
this report for further areas that are likely to lead to additional fees such as 
the implementation of the new General Ledger system.
.

P
age 103



42

Our Reporting to you

Required communications What is reported? When and where

Terms of engagement Confirmation by the Governance and Audit Committee of acceptance of terms of 
engagement as written in the engagement letter signed by both parties.

The statement of responsibilities serves as the 
formal terms of engagement between the 
PSAA’s appointed auditors and audited bodies. 

Our responsibilities Reminder of our responsibilities as set out in the engagement letter The statement of responsibilities serves as the 
formal terms of engagement between the 
PSAA’s appointed auditors and audited bodies.

Planning and audit 
approach 

Communication of the planned scope and timing of the audit, any limitations and the 
significant risks identified.

When communicating key audit matters this includes the most significant risks of material 
misstatement (whether or not due to fraud) including those that have the greatest effect on 
the overall audit strategy, the allocation of resources in the audit and directing the efforts of 
the engagement team 

Audit Plan - July 2022 - Governance and Audit 
Committee

Significant findings from 
the audit 

• Our view about the significant qualitative aspects of accounting practices including 
accounting policies, accounting estimates and financial statement disclosures

• Significant difficulties, if any, encountered during the audit

• Significant matters, if any, arising from the audit that were discussed with management

• Written representations that we are seeking

• Expected modifications to the audit report

• Other matters if any, significant to the oversight of the financial reporting process

Audit Results Report - November 2022 -
Governance and Audit Committee; and

Auditor’s Annual Report - December 2022 –
Governance and Audit Committee

Appendix B

Required communications with the Governance and Audit Committee
We have detailed the communications that we must provide to the Governance and Audit Committee.

P
age 104



43

Appendix B

Required communications with the Governance and Audit Committee 
(continued)

Our Reporting to you

Required communications What is reported? When and where

Going concern Events or conditions identified that may cast significant doubt on the entity’s ability to 
continue as a going concern, including:

• Whether the events or conditions constitute a material uncertainty

• Whether the use of the going concern assumption is appropriate in the preparation and 
presentation of the financial statements

• The adequacy of related disclosures in the financial statements

Audit Results Report - November 2022 -
Governance and Audit Committee

Misstatements • Uncorrected misstatements and their effect on our audit opinion, unless prohibited by 
law or regulation 

• The effect of uncorrected misstatements related to prior periods 

• A request that any uncorrected misstatement be corrected 

• Material misstatements corrected by management 

Audit Results Report - November 2022 -
Governance and Audit Committee

Subsequent events • Enquiries of the Governance and Audit Committee where appropriate regarding whether 
any subsequent events have occurred that might affect the financial statements

Audit Results Report - November 2022 -
Governance and Audit Committee

Fraud • Enquiries of the Governance and Audit Committee to determine whether they have 
knowledge of any actual, suspected or alleged fraud affecting the entity

• Any fraud that we have identified or information we have obtained that indicates that a 
fraud may exist

• Unless all of those charged with governance are involved in managing the entity, any 
identified or suspected fraud involving:

a. Management; 

b. Employees who have significant roles in internal control; or 

c. Others where the fraud results in a material misstatement in the financial statements

• The nature, timing and extent of audit procedures necessary to complete the audit when 
fraud involving management is suspected

• Any other matters related to fraud, relevant to Governance and Audit Committee 
responsibility

Audit Results Report - November 2022 -
Governance and Audit Committee

P
age 105



44

Appendix B

Required communications with the Governance and Audit Committee 
(continued) Our Reporting to you

Required communications What is reported? When and where

Related parties • Significant matters arising during the audit in connection with the entity’s related parties 
including, when applicable:

• Non-disclosure by management 

• Inappropriate authorisation and approval of transactions 

• Disagreement over disclosures 

• Non-compliance with laws and regulations 

• Difficulty in identifying the party that ultimately controls the entity 

Audit Results Report - November 2022 -
Governance and Audit Committee

Independence Communication of all significant facts and matters that bear on EY’s, and all individuals 
involved in the audit, objectivity and independence

Communication of key elements of the audit engagement partner’s consideration of 
independence and objectivity such as:

• The principal threats

• Safeguards adopted and their effectiveness

• An overall assessment of threats and safeguards

• Information about the general policies and process within the firm to maintain objectivity 
and independence

Communication whenever significant judgements are made about threats to objectivity and 
independence and the appropriateness of safeguards put in place.

Audit Plan - July 2022 - Governance and Audit 
Committee; and

Audit Results Report - November 2022 -
Governance and Audit Committee

External confirmations • Management’s refusal for us to request confirmations 

• Inability to obtain relevant and reliable audit evidence from other procedures

Audit Results Report - November 2022 -
Governance and Audit Committee

Consideration of laws and 
regulations 

• Subject to compliance with applicable regulations, matters involving identified or 
suspected non-compliance with laws and regulations, other than those which are clearly 
inconsequential and the implications thereof. Instances of suspected non-compliance 
may also include those that are brought to our attention that are expected to occur 
imminently or for which there is reason to believe that they may occur

• Enquiry of the Governance and Audit Committee into possible instances of non-
compliance with laws and regulations that may have a material effect on the financial 
statements and that the Governance and Audit Committee may be aware of

Audit Results Report - November 2022 -
Governance and Audit Committee

P
age 106



45

Appendix B

Required communications with the Governance and Audit Committee 
(continued) Our Reporting to you

Required communications What is reported? When and where

Internal controls • Significant deficiencies in internal controls identified during the audit Audit Results Report - November 2022 -
Governance and Audit Committee

Group audits • An overview of the type of work to be performed on the financial information of the 
components

• An overview of the nature of the group audit team’s planned involvement in the work to 
be performed by the component auditors on the financial information of significant 
components

• Instances where the group audit team’s evaluation of the work of a component auditor 
gave rise to a concern about the quality of that auditor’s work

• Any limitations on the group audit, for example, where the group engagement team’s 
access to information may have been restricted

• Fraud or suspected fraud involving group management, component management, 
employees who have significant roles in group-wide controls or others where the fraud 
resulted in a material misstatement of the group financial statements

Audit Plan - July 2022 - Governance and Audit 
Committee; and

Audit Results Report - November 2022 -
Governance and Audit Committee

Representations Written representations we are requesting from management and/or those charged with 
governance

Audit Results Report - November 2022 -
Governance and Audit Committee

Material inconsistencies 
and misstatements

Material inconsistencies or misstatements of fact identified in other information which 
management has refused to revise

Audit Results Report - November 2022 -
Governance and Audit Committee

Auditors report • Any circumstances identified that affect the form and content of our auditor’s report Audit Results Report - November 2022 -
Governance and Audit Committee

Auditor’s Annual Report - December 2022

Fee Reporting • Breakdown of fee information when the  audit plan is agreed

• Breakdown of fee information at the completion of the audit

• Any non-audit work 

Audit Plan - July 2022 - Governance and Audit 
Committee; and

Audit Results Report - November 2022 -
Governance and Audit Committee

Value for Money • Risks of significant weakness identified in planning work

• Commentary against specified reporting criteria on the VFM arrangements, including 
any exception report on significant weaknesses. 

Audit Plan - July 2022 - Governance and Audit 
Committee;

Audit Results Report - November 2022 -
Governance and Audit Committee

Auditor’s Annual Report – April 2023

P
age 107



46

Appendix C

Additional audit information

Our responsibilities  required 
by auditing standards

• Identifying and assessing the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and 
perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis 
for our opinion. 

• Obtaining an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the 
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group and Council’s internal control.

• Evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures 
made by management.

• Concluding on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting. 

• Evaluating the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures, and whether the 
financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

• Obtaining sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or business activities within the 
Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. Reading other information contained in the financial 
statements, the Governance and Audit Committee reporting appropriately addresses matters communicated by us to the 
Governance and Audit Committee and reporting whether it is materially inconsistent with our understanding and the financial 
statements; and

• Maintaining auditor independence.

Other required procedures during the course of the audit

In addition to the key areas of audit focus outlined in section 2, we have to perform other procedures as required by auditing, ethical and independence standards and 
other regulations. We outline the procedures below that we will undertake during the course of our audit.

Objective of our audit

Our objective is to form an opinion on the Group’s consolidated financial statements under International Standards on Auditing (UK) as prepared by you in accordance 
with with International Financial Reporting Standards as adopted by the EU, and as interpreted and adapted by the Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting. 

Our responsibilities in relation to the financial statement audit are set out in the formal terms of engagement between the PSAA’s appointed auditors and audited bodies. 
We are responsible for forming and expressing an opinion on the financial statements that have been prepared by management with the oversight of the Governance and 
Audit Committee. The audit does not relieve management or the Governance and Audit Committee of their responsibilities.

P
age 108



47

Appendix C

Additional audit information (continued)

Purpose and evaluation of materiality 

For the purposes of determining whether the accounts are free from material error, we define materiality as the magnitude of an omission or misstatement that, 
individually or in the aggregate, in light of the surrounding circumstances, could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of the users of the financial 
statements. Our evaluation of it requires professional judgement and necessarily takes into account qualitative as well as quantitative considerations implicit in the 
definition. We would be happy to discuss with you your expectations regarding our detection of misstatements in the financial statements. 

Materiality determines the level of work performed on individual account balances and financial statement disclosures.

The amount we consider material at the end of the audit may differ from our initial determination. At this stage, however, it is not feasible to anticipate all of the 
circumstances that may ultimately influence our judgement about materiality. At the end of the audit we will form our final opinion by reference to all matters that could 
be significant to users of the accounts, including the total effect of the audit misstatements we identify, and our evaluation of materiality at that date.

Procedures required by the 
Audit Code 

• Reviewing, and reporting on as appropriate, other information published with the financial statements, including the Annual 
Governance Statement. 

• Examining and reporting on the consistency of consolidation schedules or returns with the Council’s audited financial statements
for the relevant reporting period (WGA Return).

Other procedures • We are required to discharge our statutory duties and responsibilities as established by the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 
and Code of Audit Practice.

We have included in Appendix B a list of matters that we are required to communicate to you under professional standards.

Other required procedures during the course of the audit (continued)

P
age 109



EY | Assurance | Tax | Transactions | Advisory

About EY
EY is a global leader in assurance, tax, transaction and advisory 
services. The insights and quality services we deliver help build 
trust and confidence in the capital markets and in economies the 
world over. We develop outstanding leaders who team to deliver 
on our promises to all of our stakeholders. In so doing, we play a 
critical role in building a better working world for our people, for 
our clients and for our communities.
EY refers to the global organization, and may refer to one or 
more, of the member firms of Ernst & Young Global Limited, each 
of which is a separate legal entity. Ernst & Young Global Limited, a 
UK company limited by guarantee, does not provide services to 
clients. For more information about our organization, please visit 
ey.com.

© 2019 EYGM Limited.
All Rights Reserved.

ED None

This material has been prepared for general informational purposes only and is not 
intended to be relied upon as accounting, tax, or other professional advice. Please refer 
to your advisors for specific advice.

ey.com

P
age 110



Eastern Internal Audit Services 

 

 
South Holland District Council 

Progress Report on Internal Audit Activity 

Period Covered: 9 March 2022 to 26 July 2022 

Responsible Officer: Faye Haywood – Head of Internal Audit for South Holland District 
Council 

 

CONTENTS 

1. INTRODUCTION ................................................................................................... 2 

2. SIGNIFICANT CHANGES TO THE APPROVED INTERNAL AUDIT PLAN .......... 2 

4.  THE OUTCOMES ARISING FROM OUR WORK .................................................. 3 

APPENDIX 1 – PROGRESS IN COMPLETING THE AGREED AUDIT WORK ......... 5 

APPENDIX 2 – AUDIT REPORT EXECUTIVE SUMMARIES .................................... 6 

 

  

Page 111

Agenda Item 7.



1. INTRODUCTION 

1.1 This report is issued to assist the Authority in discharging its responsibilities in relation 
to the internal audit activity.  

1.2 The Public Sector Internal Audit Standards also require the Chief Audit Executive to 
report to the Audit Committee on the performance of internal audit relative to its plan, 
including any significant risk exposures and control issues. The frequency of reporting 
and the specific content are for the Authority to determine. 

1.3 To comply with the above this report includes:  

• Any significant changes to the approved Audit Plan; 

• Progress made in delivering the agreed audits for the year; 

• Any significant outcomes arising from those audits; and 

• Performance Indicator outcomes to date. 

2. SIGNIFICANT CHANGES TO THE APPROVED INTERNAL AUDIT PLAN 

2.1 The Annual Internal Audit Plan was approved on 29 July 2021. Since its approval the 
following audits have been proposed for deferral into future audit years.  

Audit  Reason for deferral  

SH2207 Legal Services At the request of management, due to 
the service considering delivery options 
throughout the Partnership and no 
significant risks being raised, it is 
proposed this audit is deferred.  
 

SH2204 Budget Sustainability Savings This review has been postponed at the 
request of management to consider a co-
ordinated approach across the 
Partnership.  
 

SH2205 Digital Strategy This review has been postponed at the 
request of management to consider a co-
ordinated approach across the 
Partnership. 
 

3.  PROGRESS MADE IN DELIVERING THE AGREED AUDIT WORK 

3.1 Appendix 1 covers progress made against the 2021/22 internal audit plan. A total of 
163 days of work has been completed equating to 97% of the overall agreed Internal 
Audit Plan.  

Audit Lincolnshire’s coverage includes the testing of key financial systems managed 
by Public Sector Partnership Services on behalf of South Holland District Council.  The 
Head of Internal Audit places reliance on the work carried out by Audit Lincolnshire 
when concluding on the overall Internal Audit Opinion.  

The work on Key Controls has now concluded and the auditors report that a reasonable 
opinion is indicated for both Financial Services and Accountancy Services. We expect 
to receive draft reports outlining recommendations for management attention in due 
course.  

 

Page 112



4.  THE OUTCOMES ARISING FROM OUR WORK 

4.1 On completion of each individual audit an assurance level is awarded using the 
following definitions: 

 Substantial Assurance: Based upon the issues identified there is a robust series of 
suitably designed internal controls in place upon which the organisation relies to 
manage the risks to the continuous and effective achievement of the objectives of the 
process, and which at the time of our review were being consistently applied. 

 Reasonable Assurance: Based upon the issues identified there is a series of internal 
controls in place, however these could be strengthened to facilitate the organisation’s 
management of risks to the continuous and effective achievement of the objectives of 
the process. Improvements are required to enhance the controls to mitigate these 
risks. 

 Limited Assurance: Based upon the issues identified the controls in place are 
insufficient to ensure that the organisation can rely upon them to manage the risks to 
the continuous and effective achievement of the objectives of the process. Significant 
improvements are required to improve the adequacy and effectiveness of the controls 
to mitigate these risks. 

 No Assurance: Based upon the issues identified there is a fundamental breakdown 
or absence of core internal controls such that the organisation cannot rely upon them 
to manage risk to the continuous and effective achievement of the objectives of the 
process. Immediate action is required to improve the controls required to mitigate these 
risks. 

4.2 Recommendations made on completion of audit work are prioritised using the following 
definitions: 

 Urgent (priority one): Fundamental control issue on which action to implement should 
be taken within 1 month. 

 Important (priority two): Control issue on which action to implement should be taken 
within 3 months. 

 Needs attention (priority three): Control issue on which action to implement should 
be taken within 6 months. 

4.3 In addition, on completion of audit work “Operational Effectiveness Matters” are 
proposed, these set out matters identified during the assignment where there may be 
opportunities for service enhancements to be made to increase both the operational 
efficiency and enhance the delivery of value for money services. These are for 
management to consider and are not part of the follow up process. 

4.4 During the period covered by the report Internal Audit has issued four reports in final. 

 Audit Assurance P1 
 

P2 P3 

Housing needs, allocation, 
homelessness, housing register 

Reasonable 0 3 1 

Private Sector Housing DFGs Limited 3 5 2 

Human Resources Reasonable 0 3 2 

Corporate Health and Safety Limited 0 8 4 

Total  3 19 9 

Page 113



 The Executive Summaries of these reports are attached at Appendix 2, full copies can 
be requested by Members.  

4.5 As can be seen in the table above, as a result of these audits 31 recommendations 
have been raised and agreed by management.  

4.6 In addition, two Operational Effectiveness Matters have been proposed to 
management for consideration - one in regard to the Housing Needs audit, and one for 
the Human Resources audit. 

Page 114



 

   

 

APPENDIX 1 – PROGRESS IN COMPLETING THE AGREED AUDIT WORK  

 

 

P
age 115



 

   

 

APPENDIX 2 – AUDIT REPORT EXECUTIVE SUMMARIES 

Assurance Review of SH2210 Housing Needs, Allocations, Homelessness and Housing 

Register 

Executive Summary 
 

OVERALL ASSURANCE ASSESSMENT ACTION POINTS 

 

Control Area Urgent Important Needs Attention Operational 

Assessment of 

homelessness 

applications 

0 3 1 0 

Rent and deposit 

assistance scheme 

0 0 0 1 

Total 0 3 1 1 

No recommendations have been raised in respect of policies and procedures, housing 

register or temporary accommodation. 

SCOPE 

A reasonable assurance grading was given in this area in 2018/19, however a high scoring risk has been added to the Strategic Risk Register in response to 

pressures put on the service by the Covid-19 pandemic. The Housing Allocations policy has also recently been amended and approved. This review therefore 

provides assurance over the key controls for this service area to demonstrate that the Council is managing risks associated with preventing homelessness.  

 

 

P
age 116



 

   

 

RATIONALE 

 

• The systems and processes of internal control are, overall, deemed 'Reasonable Assurance' in managing the risks associated with the audit. The assurance 

opinion has been derived as a result of three 'important' and one 'needs attention' recommendations being raised upon the conclusion of our work. 

• The audit has also raised one 'operational effectiveness matter', which sets out matters identified during the assignment where there may be opportunities for 

service enhancements to be made to increase both the operational efficiency and enhance the delivery of value for money services. 

• The previous audit of Housing Needs (SH/19/15) was completed in April 2019 and also concluded in a ‘Reasonable’ assurance opinion, with three ‘important’ 

and three ‘needs attention’ recommendations being raised. This indicates that the level of control has not significantly changed. 

POSITIVE FINDINGS 

 

It is acknowledged there are areas where sound controls are in place and operating consistently: 

• A new Housing Allocations and Lettings Policy was approved in April 2021, to ensure that the Council is allocating housing in the fairest and most effective 

manner. 

• Applications to join the housing register are assessed for eligibility and banded according to their needs, to ensure that applicants with the greatest needs are 

prioritised. 

• The Council has different pathways for responding to emergency and non-emergency homelessness applications, to ensure that people at immediate risk of 

homelessness are assisted as a priority. 

• Temporary accommodation is used only for eligible applicants and the type of accommodation is matched to the applicant's needs. This helps to ensure the 

most effective use of the accommodation available, in terms of suitability and cost to the Council. 

• Homelessness grant awards are approved by a manager, in accordance with the Housing Assistance Policy, to ensure effective use of the funding available. 

 

 

 

 

P
age 117



 

   

 

ISSUES TO BE ADDRESSED 

 

The audit has highlighted the following areas where three 'important' recommendations have been made. 

Assessment of homelessness applications 

• Full assessments of homelessness applications be completed as soon as possible after the application is received. 

• All decision letters be retained and attached to the relevant case file. 

• Personal Housing Plans be created and updated regularly for all homelessness cases. 

The audit has also highlighted the following area where one 'needs attention' recommendation has been made. 

Assessment of homelessness applications 

• Cases be closed or moved on to the next stage promptly, when a duty expires. 

Operational Effectiveness Matters 

The operational effectiveness matter, for management to consider relates to the following: 

• Consideration be given to introducing formal documentation for homelessness grants. 

Previous audit recommendations 

The previous audit report on Housing Needs (SH/19/15) was issued in April 2019. A reasonable assurance grading was given, having raised three important and three 

needs attention recommendations. All six have since been confirmed as implemented.  

Other points noted 

A strategic risk has been recorded relating to the Council’s ability to meet the demands for support with homelessness and housing advice. As of March 2022, the risk 
is scored as 25 (5x5). Mitigations are in place to reduce the risk, including refocusing resources within the team to create defined job roles; moving the allocations 
function to a different team; transitioning to the Northgate system to allow more customer self-service; and working with the Change4Lincs project to support rough 
sleepers. 

 

 

P
age 118



 

   

 

Assurance Review of SH2211 Private Sector Housing  

Executive Summary 
 

OVERALL ASSURANCE ASSESSMENT ACTION POINTS 

 

Control Area Urgent Important Needs Attention Operational 

Disabled Facilities Grants 0 1 1 0 

Houses in Multiple 

Occupation 

2 0 0 0 

Caravan sites 0 2 0 0 

Empty Homes 1 2 1 0 

Total 3 5 2 0 

 

SCOPE: This audit followed up on all 28 internal audit recommendations originally raised in the Private Sector Housing (SH/20/02) report, issued in October 

2019, to ensure that continued progress can be demonstrated. 

 

 

 

 

 

P
age 119



 

   

 

RATIONALE 

 

• The systems and processes of internal control are, overall, deemed 'Limited Assurance' in managing the risks associated with the audit. The assurance opinion 

has been derived as a result of ten recommendations having been raised; three ‘Urgent’, five ‘Important’ and two ‘Needs attention’, on conclusion of our work.    

• The previous audit report on Private Sector Housing (SH/20/02), issued in October 2019, concluded, in a ‘No assurance’ opinion, having raised 16 urgent, six 

important and six needs attention recommendations. 

• All ten recommendations raised relate to further work required to fully implement the original recommendations. Despite this, there is clear evidence of 

significant improvements since the original review, including the introduction of Assure. This therefore demonstrates an improvement in the direction of travel 

since the previous review.   

POSITIVE FINDINGS 

 

It is acknowledged there are areas where sound controls are in place and operating consistently, in particular:   

• 19 of the 28 previous recommendations have been implemented since the original review, with no further action required.  

• The Council has introduced Assure, which is used for the majority of its private sector housing activity, albeit, that it sti ll requires further enhancements to 

improve overall effectiveness.  

• Handheld Tablets have been introduced that allow Private Sector Housing Officers to undertake inspections whilst on site and to upload details on to Assure 

remotely.  

• Minor works are now the responsibility of the Housing Repairs Team, thereby addressing previous control weakness around administration of these works. 

 

 

 

 

 

P
age 120



 

   

 

ISSUES TO BE ADDRESSED 

 

The audit has highlighted the following areas where three ‘Urgent’ recommendations have been made. 

Houses of Multiple Occupation (HMOs)  

• For a report to be designed in Assure that allows for a list to be produced of all HMOs showing a full audit trail of the inspection history and the date the next 

inspection is due. This report to be run regularly and reviewed by management to ensure all scheduled inspections are taking place.  Any outstanding inspections 

to be completed forthwith. 

• For a report to be designed in Assure that allows for a list to be produced of all HMOs subject to enforcement action including a full audit trail of the enforcement 

history, both past action and the date the next inspection is due. This report to be run regularly and reviewed by management to ensure all scheduled inspections 

are taking place.   

Empty Homes  

• For a report to be designed in Assure that allows for a list to be produced detailing the status of follow up action where an enforcement notice has been issued. 

This report to be run regularly and reviewed by management to ensure all scheduled inspections are taking place. 

The audit has also highlighted the following area where five 'Important' recommendations have been made. 

Disabled Facilities Grants (DFGs) 

• Quarterly budget reconciliations between the Council's main financial system and PSH system (Assure) to be subject to independent check by the Homelessness 

Reduction and Private Sector Improvement Manager, with evidence retained thereof, thereby ensuring accuracy over DFG expenditure. 

Caravans 

• To ensure that the Council complies with the 'Mobile Homes and Caravan Site Licensing and Fee Policy - Issued August 2021', including any subject to new 

planning applications, in respect of fee charging, where applicable. 

• To ensure all outstanding sites are licensed and the introduction of routine management reporting and oversight of caravan licensing activity. 

 

 

 

P
age 121



 

   

 

Empty Homes  

• The Council's PSH Team review its approach to overseeing administration of empty homes to align to the priorities within the Empty Homes Strategy whilst at 

the same time taking in to account the actual numbers of empty properties in the district and available resources. This could include looking to share resources 

with Boston BC and East Lindsey DC, through the new Alliance. 

• A procedure be produced that provides levels of delegation for officers assessing / approving financial assistance under the Housing Assistance Policy 

(current/new Policy) with evidence (audit trail) retained where independent approval is required. 

 

The audit has also highlighted the following area where two 'needs attention' recommendations have been made. 

Empty Homes  

• Quarterly reconciliations between Finance and PSH records for outstanding loans / new financial assistance, to be subject to independent checks by the 

Homelessness Reduction and Private Sector Improvement Manager, with evidence retained thereof.  

Disabled Facilities Grants (DFGs) 

• In addition to recording 'Time to process DFG Applications', the Council to introduce meaningful (SMART) performance measures that accurately measure all 

aspects of the processing of a DFG, from the point that it has assumed responsibility i.e., the date upon receipt of the recommendation from the OT, through to 

advising the applicant of their financial eligibility to a DFG, involvement of approved contractors and completion of the work.  

Operational Effectiveness Matters 

No operational effectiveness matters have been raised.  

Previous audit recommendations 

Refer to Rationale, above.  

Other points noted 

In accordance with a previous audit recommendation, the Council approved and adopted a new Housing Assistance Policy (Approved by Cabinet on 27/10/20).  This 

included ceasing the offer of new Decent Homes Assistance Loans, instead offering other types on financial support.  

Following the new Alliance with Boston BC and East Linsey DC, a new Lincolnshire Discretionary Housing Assistance Policy has been drafted and agreed by the 

Lincolnshire Health and Wellbeing Board. It still has to go through the formal adoption stage by all three Councils, although it had been put on hold until 

capacity/resources allow.  

 

P
age 122



 

   

 

Assurance Review of SH2202 Human Resources 

Executive Summary 

 

OVERALL ASSURANCE ASSESSMENT ACTION POINTS 

 

Control Area Urgent Important Needs Attention Operational 

Documented policies and 

procedures 

0 0 1 0 

Establishment and budget 

reconciliation 

0 1 0 0 

Turnover and sickness 

absence monitoring 

0 0 1 0 

Human Resources - Officers' 

and Members' Expenses 

0 1 0 0 

Performance and appraisals 

and DBS checks 

0 1 0 0 

E-learning training 0 0 0 1 

Total 0 3 2 1 

 

SCOPE 

Audit Lincolnshire provide assurance over the key controls within Payroll services managed by Public Sector Partnership Services (PSPS) and results of these 

reviews feed into the Head of Internal Audit's Annual Opinion. A full service review of HR was carried out by TIAA. A key area of review was the reconciliation 

between budgets and the establishment list following the HR system upgrade. The scope also included documented policies and procedures, turnover and 

sickness absence monitoring reporting, officers' and members' expenses, performance and appraisals and Disclosure and Barring Service (DBS) checks.  

 

P
age 123



 

   

 

RATIONALE 

 

• The systems and processes of internal control are, overall, deemed 'Reasonable Assurance' in managing the risks associated with the audit. The assurance 

opinion has been derived as a result of three 'important' and two 'needs attention' recommendations being raised upon the conclusion of our work. 

 

• The audit has also raised one 'operational effectiveness matter', which sets out matters identified during the assignment where there may be opportunities for 

service enhancements to be made to increase both the operational efficiency and enhance the delivery of value for money services. 

 

• This area has not been subject to previous audit scrutiny, hence no direction of travel is applicable. 

POSITIVE FINDINGS 

 

It is acknowledged there are areas where sound controls are in place and operating consistently: 

• The authorisation process for recruiting new starters, approval processes for establishment costs, as well as contract amendments, was clear with segregation 

of duties. The new starter approval and authorisation is processed effectively through the First4Recruitment system.  

 

• There are written and operational measures in place that allow monitoring of staff turnover and staff absence through sickness, including monthly management 

reports. The Employer Relations Team monitors staff absence and supports line management once there has been a trigger in longer term absence, in 

accordance with internal procedure. There are also built-in triggers within the Cipher system, for long terms sickness as well as a supporting Helpdesk whereby 

managers can raise queries regarding the sickness absence process if there are any uncertainties.   

 

• A review of the Absence Report confirmed that workforce data, sickness absence days lost, cost implications, departmental comparisons and year-to-date 

information, as well as other valuable data, is presented in a clear and well-structured format to senior management, on a monthly basis. 

 

• VAT receipts were provided for officers’ fuel expense claims, thereby justifying the tax element and allowing the Council to reclaim VAT from HMRC. Claims are 

rejected if a VAT receipt is not provided. Expense claims are verified, supported by relevant documentation and checked to prevent duplication. The system has 

a clear audit trail of all the approvals with clear segregation of duties in evidence. The requirement for a receipt was introduced with the new system (Cipher), 

P
age 124



 

   

 

with effect from January 2022. The Council does not reclaim VAT from Members’ fuel expenses. This is a historic arrangement on the basis of it not being cost 

effective.  

 

ISSUES TO BE ADDRESSED 

 

The audit has highlighted the following areas where three 'important' recommendations have been made. 

Establishment and budget reconciliation 

• To complete a reconciliation between establishment costs and assigned budgets. Establishment reports should be sent to senior managers to confirm that all 

employees have been verified and that HR/Payroll and Finance systems are aligned. For additional assurance add signature verification procedures for 

managers. 

Human Resources - Officers' and Members' Expenses 

• To ensure that all officers, whether new to the organisation or existing employees, using their vehicles for official Council business, have up to date car 

insurance that covers business use and evidence of road tax and MOT (where applicable).   

Performance and appraisals and DBS checks 

• To undertake Performance Development Reviews (PDRs) in accordance with agreed guidance / timescales, with evidence of outcomes retained accordingly.  

The audit has also highlighted the following areas where two 'needs attention' recommendations have been made. 

Documented policies and procedures 

• To ensure that the Disclosure and Barring Service (DBS) Procedure, the Sickness Management Procedure and the Expense Guidance, are reflective of correct 

practices with evidence retained of last and next review dates duly recorded. Additionally, the DBS Procedure to reflect the third-party provider arrangements.  

Turnover and sickness absence monitoring 

• To report sickness absence in greater detail, including a breakdown of absences over time, to enable line managers the capability and capacity to monitor and 

review sickness absence more effectively. 

 

P
age 125



 

   

 

Operational Effectiveness Matters 

The operational effectiveness matter, for management to consider relates to the following: 

• Develop the E-Learning platform and modules further to schedule annual programmes and refresher courses now that the initial implementation phase has 

passed.    

Previous audit recommendations 

• This area has not been subject to previous audit review, hence there are no previous audit recommendations to consider.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

P
age 126



 

   

 

Assurance Review of Health and Safety Arrangements 

Executive Summary 
 

OVERALL ASSURANCE ASSESSMENT ACTION POINTS 

 

Control Area Urgent Important Needs Attention Operational 

Roles and responsibilities 0 1 1 0 

Written guidance 0 4 1 0 

Inspection programme 0 3 0 0 

Management system  0 0 1 0 

Risk Management 0 0 1 0 

Total 0 8 4 0 

 

SCOPE 

An audit of Corporate Health and Safety (H&S) has been completed having been deferred from the 2020/21 plan to allow for Covid-19 coverage. The review 

covered arrangements for oversight of health and safety management including risk assessments. 

 

P
age 127



 

   

 

RATIONALE 

 

• The systems and processes of internal control are, overall, deemed 'Limited Assurance' in managing the risks associated with the audit. The assurance opinion 

has been derived as a result of eight 'important' and four 'needs attention' recommendations being raised upon the conclusion of our work. 

• As the previous audit of Corporate Health and Safety (H&S) was last undertaken in 2016/17 and was completed jointly with Breckland DC, a direction of travel 

is not considered appropriate.  

POSITIVE FINDINGS 

 

It is acknowledged there are areas where sound controls are in place and operating consistently: 

• The Council has recently purchased Halo software with a project currently underway to start the development with a view to an initial soft launch in Q1 2022/23. 

Halo offers the ability to provide a Service Request ticketing system, providing a “one-stop shop” in respect of all work requests reported to the Health & Safety 

Team.  

ISSUES TO BE ADDRESSED 

 

The audit has highlighted the following areas where eight 'important' recommendations have been made. 

Roles and responsibilities  

• To agree and implement a formal management structure for oversight of health and safety compliance at both strategic and operational levels including the 

production terms of reference along with the requirement for the Forum to monitor progress with the regime of programmed and reactive H&S inspections.  

 

 

 

P
age 128



 

   

 

Written guidance 

• The Council to adopt a policy/procedure that clearly demonstrates it is compliant with the requirements of the 'Regulatory Reform (Fire Safety) Order 2005' 

which came into force on the 01/10/06.  

• Written guidance to include reference to the risk assessment methodologies applied for undertaking planned audits/inspections and reactive inspections, along 

with timescales for undertaking visits. This to also include assessing timescales for any actions required to be follow up.  Template audit/inspection forms to be 

attached as appendices that are to be used that complies with the said risk assessment methodologies.   

• All policies and procedures relating to health and safety that have become overdue or are nearing their review date, to be subject to formal review, updated 

where applicable, approved and formally adopted, forthwith.  

• Written procedures be updated to include the differences between a H&S Inspections and a H&S Audit and the process/methodology for deciding which location 

is subject to which type of review. This to be linked with the guidance on risk assessments, which will help determine whether the location should be subject to 

an inspection or a more detailed audit and for risk assessing actions from outcomes of reactive inspections. 

Inspection programme 

• For all H&S visits to be completed and outcomes written up in accordance with set deadlines and for the ‘H and S Control Spreadsheet – Ongoing’ to be updated 

accordingly.  

• Fire Risk Assessments to be recorded on a separate tab on the 'H and S Control Spreadsheet - Ongoing' in order to allow the four-yearly cyclical requirement 

of inspections to be clearly defined so as to ensure it can be monitored more effectively.  

• Actions arising from H&S Audits / Inspections be recorded and followed up, through to conclusion. Progress to be monitored by the Forum and by either the 

Head of Public Protection and or the Public Protection through the introduction of a process that allows regular updates between the quarterly performance 

reporting and Forum meetings. 

The audit has also highlighted the following areas where four 'needs attention' recommendations have been made. 

Roles and responsibilities  

• Minutes of the Forum meetings to be enhanced to demonstrate that actions arising have been addressed.  

Written guidance  

• For the Council's 'Health & Safety Policy - General Statement of Intent & Arrangements' to be reviewed and updated where applicable, to reflect and be 

signed by, the new Chief Executive, the removal of references to coverage of Breckland DC and to include the date of the latest and next review.   

 

 

P
age 129



 

   

 

Management system  

• A process be introduced that allows the Council, as the designated Regulatory authority, to ascertain progress with H&S audits at any given time. This would 

allow for early detection should there be delays in agreed work programmes. Management have confirmed they have considered this recommendation but are 

content with the mechanism for quarterly performance reports to be provided at the H&S Group covering progress.   

Risk management 

• For service's H&S risks to form part of the H&S Audit / H&S Inspection regime in order to ensure they are being monitored accordingly.  

Updated position July 2022 

• Internal Audit can confirm that during the finalisation of this report, evidence was provided to support completion of all above mentioned recommendations 

with the following two exceptions. The important recommendation relating to ensuring actions arising from H&S Audits / Inspections are recorded and followed 

up, is partially completed. Progress is demonstrated by the H&S Planning Control Sheet now showing H&S Audit actions being actively managed. A further 

needs attention recommendation regarding strengthening the transparency of outstanding H&S Audit actions at the H&S group meeting has been rejected by 

management as it is felt this is not deemed necessary due to performance reporting already being in place.  

Operational Effectiveness Matters 

There are no operational effectiveness matters for management to consider. 

Previous audit recommendations 

An audit of Corporate Health and Safety was last undertaken in 2016/17 (jointly with Breckland DC). Three recommendations were raised, all of which subsequently 

confirmed as implemented.    

P
age 130



Eastern Internal Audit Services 

 

 
 

SOUTH HOLLAND DISTRICT COUNCIL 
 

Annual Report and Opinion 2021/22 

Responsible Officer: Faye Haywood – Head of Internal Audit for South Holland DC 

 
CONTENTS 

 

1. INTRODUCTION ....................................................................................................... 2 

2.  ANNUAL OPINION OF THE HEAD OF INTERNAL AUDIT .................................... 2 

2.2  The opinion itself .................................................................................................. 3 

3.  AUDIT WORK UNDERTAKEN DURING THE YEAR ............................................... 3 

4.  THIRD PARTY ASSURANCES ................................................................................ 5 

5.  ANNUAL REVIEW OF THE EFFECTIVENESS OF INTERNAL AUDIT ................... 6 

6.  Recommendations .................................................................................................. 8 

APPENDIX 1 – AUDIT WORK UNDERTAKEN DURING 2021/22 ............................... 9 

APPENDIX 2 - ASSURANCE CHART ........................................................................ 11 

APPENDIX 3 – STATUS OF AGREED INTERNAL AUDIT RECOMMENDATIONS.. 14 

APPENDIX 4 – OUTSTANDING INTERNAL AUDIT RECOMMENDATIONS ............ 15 

APPENDIX 5 – LIMITATIONS AND RESPONSIBILITIES .......................................... 16 

 

  

Page 131

Agenda Item 8.



1. INTRODUCTION 

1.1 The Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015 require that “a relevant authority must undertake 
an effective internal audit to evaluate the effectiveness of its risk management, control and 
governance processes, taking into account public sector internal auditing standards or 
guidance”. 

1.2 Those standards – the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards - require the Chief Audit 
Executive to provide a written report to those charged with governance (known in this context 
as Governance and Audit Committee) to support the Annual Governance Statement (AGS). 
This report must set out:  

• The opinion on the overall adequacy and effectiveness of the Council’s framework of 
governance, risk management and control during 2021/22, together with reasons if the 
opinion is unfavourable; 

• A summary of the internal audit work carried from which the opinion is derived, the 
follow up of management action taken to ensure implementation of agreed action as 
at financial year end and any reliance placed upon third party assurances; 

• Any issues that are deemed particularly relevant to the Annual Governance Statement 
(AGS); 

• The Annual Review of the Effectiveness of Internal Audit, which includes; the level of 
compliance with the PSIAS and the results of any quality assurance and improvement 
programme, the outcomes of the performance indicators and the degree of compliance 
with CIPFA’s Statement on the Role of the Head of Internal Audit. 

1.3 When considering this report, the statements made therein should be viewed as key items 
which need to be used to inform the organisation’s Annual Governance Statement, but there 
are also a number of other important sources to which the Governance and Audit Committee 
and statutory officers of the Council should be looking to gain assurance.   Moreover, in the 
course of developing overarching audit opinions for the authority, it should be noted that the 
assurances provided here, can never be absolute and therefore, only reasonable assurance 
can be provided that there are no major weaknesses in the processes subject to internal audit 
review. The annual opinion is thus subject to inherent limitations (covering both the control 
environment and the assurance over controls) and these are examined more fully at Appendix 
3. 

2.  ANNUAL OPINION OF THE HEAD OF INTERNAL AUDIT 

2.1  Roles and responsibilities 
 

• The Council is responsible for establishing and maintaining appropriate risk 
management processes, control systems, accounting records and governance 
arrangements. 

• The AGS is an annual statement by the Leader of the Council and the Chief Executive 
that records and publishes the Council’s governance arrangements. 

• An annual opinion is required on the overall adequacy and effectiveness of the 
Council’s framework of governance, risk management and control, based upon and 
limited to the audit work performed during the year. 
 

This is achieved through the delivery of the risk based Annual Internal Audit Plan discussed 
and approved with the Management Team and key stakeholders and then approved by 
Governance and Audit Committee. 

The Internal Audit plan was approved at the meeting held on 29 July 2021.  

Page 132



This opinion does not imply that internal audit has reviewed all risks and assurances, but it is 
one component to be considered during the preparation of the AGS.  

Governance and Audit Committee should consider this opinion, together with any assurances 
from management, its own knowledge of the Council and any assurances received throughout 
the year from other review bodies such as the external auditor.  

2.2  The opinion itself 

The overall opinion in relation to the framework of governance, risk management and control 
at South Holland District Council is Reasonable. This conclusion has been reached by 
considering the following points. 

During 2021/22 a total of 12 assurance reviews have been completed at South Holland District 
Council. Eight of these reports concluded in a positive assurance grading, with three of these 
resulting in Substantial assurance: 

• COVID-19 Business Grants 

• Licensing 

• Housing Benefit Subsidy 

The Private Sector Housing DFGs audit has received a limited assurance grading. It is 
important to note that the 2019/20 audit of this area resulted in a no assurance grading and a 
total of 16 urgent and six important recommendations were originally raised in. The 2021/22 
audit has indicated that progress has been made with a further three urgent and five important 
actions agreed to support the further work required to fully implement the original 
recommendations. A significant improvement in the control framework in this area is however 
indicated.  

The audit of Corporate Health and Safety, resulting in a Limited assurance grading. It is 
confirmed that seven of the eight medium priority recommendations relating to this review 
have now been resolved, the remaining recommendation has been reported as partially 
implemented. 

Audit Lincolnshire have concluded their testing of Key Financial Controls and have indicated 
a reasonable assurance overall. The draft report containing recommendations for 
management consideration is imminent.   

Section 3.4 of this report covers the areas which we recommend are referenced within the 
Councils Annual Governance Statement.  

This opinion has been discussed with the Section 151 Officer.  

3.  AUDIT WORK UNDERTAKEN DURING THE YEAR 

3.1 Appendix 1 records the internal audit work delivered during the year on which the opinion is 
based. In addition, Appendix 2 is attached which shows the assurances provided over 
previous financial years to provide an overall picture of the control environment. 

3.2 Internal audit work is divided into 4 broad categories: 

• Annual opinion audits;  

• Fundamental financial systems that underpin the Council’s financial processing and 
reporting; 

Page 133



• Service area audits identified as worthy of review by the risk assessment processes 
within internal audit; 

• Significant computer systems which provide the capability to administer and control 
the Council’s main activities. 

3.2 Summary of the internal audit work 

A total of 163 days of internal audit work has been delivered. A total of three reviews from the 
originally approved plan have been deferred. The audits of Performance Management, 
Corporate Policy and Business Planning, Change and Patch Management are in their final 
stages. The results are expected imminently.   Key controls work has concluded with a 
reasonable assurance opinion across areas of Accountancy Services and Financial Services 
overall.  

One position statement has also been issued this year by TIAA Ltd providing suggested 
actions and improvements for Operational Fleet.    

3.3 Follow up of management action 

In relation to the follow up of management actions to ensure that they have been effectively 
implemented, the position at year end is that of the 49 recommendations raised and agreed, 
15 are now complete, one important and one needs attention recommendations are 
outstanding, and 32 are within deadline.  

For 2020/21, two important recommendations remain outstanding for Asset Management; and 
one needs attention recommendation is outstanding for Accounts Receivable.  

Please refer to Appendix 3, which shows the details of the progress made to date in relation 
to the implementation of the agreed recommendations, and Appendix 4, which provides an 
update from management regarding important outstanding recommendations.  

3.4 Issues for inclusion in the Annual Governance Statement 

We recommend the following recommendations from the 2021/22 limited assurance 
reviews are referenced within the Council’s AGS until they are confirmed as complete.  

 
Private Sector Housing 
 
Urgent  
 

1. For a report to be designed in Assure that allows for a list to be produced of all HMOs 
showing a full audit trail of the inspection history and the date the next inspection is due. 
This report to be run regularly and reviewed by management to ensure all scheduled 
inspections are taking place.  Any outstanding inspections to be completed forthwith. 

2. For a report to be designed in Assure that allows for a list to be produced of all HMOs subject 

to enforcement action including a full audit trail of the enforcement history, both past action 

and the date the next inspection is due. This report to be run regularly and reviewed by 

management to ensure all scheduled inspections are taking place.   

 

3. For a report to be designed in Assure that allows for a list to be produced detailing the status 

of follow up action where an enforcement notice has been issued. This report to be run 

regularly and reviewed by management to ensure all scheduled inspections are taking place. 

 

Page 134



Important 

4. Quarterly budget reconciliations between the Council's main financial system and PSH system 

(Assure) to be subject to independent check by the Homelessness Reduction and Private Sector 

Improvement Manager, with evidence retained thereof, thereby ensuring accuracy over DFG 

expenditure. 

 

5. To ensure that the Council complies with the 'Mobile Homes and Caravan Site Licensing and 

Fee Policy - Issued August 2021', including any subject to new planning applications, in respect 

of fee charging, where applicable. 

 

6. To ensure all outstanding sites are licensed and the introduction of routine management 

reporting and oversight of caravan licensing activity. 

 

7. The Council's PSH Team review its approach to overseeing administration of empty homes to 

align to the priorities within the Empty Homes Strategy whilst at the same time taking in to 

account the actual numbers of empty properties in the district and available resources. This 

could include looking to share resources with Boston BC and East Lindsey DC, through the new 

Alliance. 

 
8. A procedure be produced that provides levels of delegation for officers assessing / approving 

financial assistance under the Housing Assistance Policy (current/new Policy) with evidence 

(audit trail) retained where independent approval is required. 

 
Health and Safety  

 

Important – Partially complete  

 

1. Actions arising from H&S Audits / Inspections be recorded and followed up, through to 

conclusion. Progress to be monitored by the Forum and by either the Head of Public Protection 

and or the Public Protection through the introduction of a process that allows regular updates 

between the quarterly performances reporting and Forum meetings. This to enhance oversight 

of H&S matters given that the Council is the regulatory body for health and safety matters even 

where oversight is passed to a third party.  

 
4.  THIRD PARTY ASSURANCES 

4.1 In arriving at the overall opinion reliance has been placed on third party assurances provided 
by Audit Lincolnshire, formally East Lindsay District Council. Protocols are in place to enable 
all audit work programmes to be shared with the Head of Internal Audit before the start of the 
audit and on conclusion of the audit, the summary working papers and draft report is also 
provided. This approach enables input into the scope of the audit to ensure that all pertinent 
areas are covered. It also enables a detailed review of the work that has been undertaken.  
We can therefore agree with the conclusions that are reached and the recommendations that 
are raised.   

 

 

 

 

Page 135



5.  ANNUAL REVIEW OF THE EFFECTIVENESS OF INTERNAL AUDIT 

5.1 Quality Assurance and Improvement Programme (QAIP) 

5.1.1 Internal Assessment 

A checklist for conformance with the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards (PSIAS) and the 
Local Government Application Note has been completed for 2021/22. This covers; the 
Definition of Internal Auditing, the Code of Ethics and the Standards themselves.  

The Attribute Standards address the characteristics of organisations and parties performing 
Internal Audit activities, in particular; Purpose, Authority and Responsibility, Independence and 
Objectivity, Proficiency and Due Professional Care, and Quality Assurance and Improvement 
Programme. 

The Performance Standards describe the nature of Internal Audit activities and provide quality 
criteria against which the performance of these services can be evaluated, in particular; 
Managing the Internal Audit Activity, Nature of Work, Engagement Planning, Performing the 
Engagement, Communicating Results, Monitoring Progress and Communicating the 
Acceptance of Risks. 

On conclusion of completion of the checklist conformance has been ascertained in relation to 
the Definition of Internal Auditing, the Code of Ethics and the Performance Standards. 

5.1.2 External Assessment 

In relation to the Attribute Standards it is recognised that to achieve full conformance an 
external assessment is needed. This is required to be completed every five years, with the 
first review having been completed in January 2017 and the next review scheduled for October 
2022. 

The external assessment was undertaken by the Institute of Internal Auditors in 2017 and it 
has concluded that “the internal audit service conforms to the professional standards 
and the work has been performed in accordance with the Internal Professional 
Practices Framework”. Thus, confirming conformance to the required standards. 

The external assessment report has previously been provided to the Section 151 Officer and 
the Committee. 

5.2 Performance Indicator outcomes EIAS (TIAA) 

5.2.1 Actual performance against these targets is outlined within the following table: 

Page 136



Area / Indicator Frequency Target Actual  Comments 

Audit Committee / Senior Management 
1. Audit Committee Satisfaction – 

measured annually 
2. Chief Finance Officer Satisfaction – 

measured quarterly 

 
Annual 
 
Annual  

 
Adequate 
 
Good 

 
Good 
 
TBC 

 
Exceeded 
 
Requested 

Internal Audit Process 
3. Each quarters audits completed to draft 

report within 10 working days of the end 
of the quarter 

 
4. Quarterly assurance reports to the 

Contract Manager within 15 working 
days of the end of each quarter 
 
 
 

5. An audit file supporting each review and 
showing clear evidence of quality control 
review shall be completed prior to the 
issue of the draft report (a sample of 
these will be subject to quality review by 
the Contract Manager) 
 

6. Compliance with Public Sector Internal 
Audit Standards 
 

7. Respond to the Contract Manager within 
3 working days where unsatisfactory 
feedback has been received. 

 
Quarterly 
 
 
 
Quarterly  

 
100% 
 
 
 
100% 
 
 
 
 
 
100% 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Generally 
conforms 
 
100% 
 
 
 

 
20% 
 
 
 
0% 
 
 
 
 
 
100% 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Generally 
conforms 
 
N/A 

 
Not achieved. 2/10 issued 
within deadline. 
 
 
Not achieved. Quarterly 
report received over the 
15 working day deadline 
in all cases. 
 
 
Achieved  
 
 
 
 
 
 
Achieved  
 
 
No unsatisfactory 
feedback received 
 
 

Clients 
8. Average feedback score received from 

key clients (auditees) 
 
 

9. Percentage of recommendations 
accepted by management 

  
Adequate 
 
 
 
90% 

 
Excellent 
 
 
 
100% 

 
Exceeded (2 out of 7 
responses received) 
 
 
Exceeded 

Innovations and Capabilities 
10. Percentage of qualified (including 

experienced) staff working on the 
contract each quarter 

11. Number of training hours per member of 
staff completed per quarter 

  
60% 
 
 
1 day 
 

 
60% 
 
 
1 day 

 
Achieved 
 
 
Achieved  

5.2.2 Performance has not been in line within the boundaries of our agreed targets in some areas 
during 2021/22 such as the issuing of draft reports 10 day after quarter end and performance 
reports being provided within a 15 working day window after quarter end.  

As reported to the Governance and Audit Committee throughout the year, Internal Audit 
performance has continued to be impacted in 2021/22 by the Covid-19 pandemic. The 
development and approval of the 2021/22 internal audit plan in quarter two had an impact on 
the profiling and resourcing of the internal audit plan. A period of adjustment was also required 
in response to prolonged remote working practices. Contractor resourcing and sickness were 
also a key challenge throughout the year.  

This performance result has been experienced across the internal audit consortium in 2021/22 
with other assurance providers also experiencing similar challenges.  Resourcing levels did 
settle in time to ensure the majority of the 2021/22 plan of work could be completed.  

Page 137



5.3  Effectiveness of the Head of Internal Audit (HIA) arrangements as measured against the 
CIPFA Role of the HIA 

5.3.1 This Statement sets out the five principles that define the core activities and behaviours that 
apply to the role of the Head of Internal Audit, and the organisational arrangements to support 
them. The Principles are: 

• Champion best practice in governance, objectively assessing the adequacy of 
governance and management of risks; 

• Give an objective and evidence based opinion on all aspects of governance, risk 
management and internal control; 

• Undertake regular and open engagement across the Authority, particularly with the 
Management Team and the Audit Committee; 

• Lead and direct an Internal Audit Service that is resourced to be fit for purpose; and 

• Head of Internal Audit to be professionally qualified and suitably experienced. 

Completion of the checklist confirms full compliance with the CIPFA guidance on the Role of 
the Head of Internal Audit in relation to the 5 principles set out within. 

The detailed checklist has been forwarded to the Section 151 Officer for independent scrutiny 
and verification. 

6.  Recommendations  
 
a) Receive and approve the contents of the Annual Report and Opinion of the Head of Internal 

Audit. 
b) Consider that a Reasonable audit opinion has been given in relation to governance, risk 

management and control for the year ended 31 March 2022. 
c) Note that the opinions expressed together with significant matters arising from internal audit 

work and contained within this report should be given due consideration, when developing and 
reviewing the Council’s Annual Governance Statement for 2021/22. 

d) Review the conclusions of the Review of the Effectiveness of Internal Audit. 
 

6.1 Reason for Recommendations  
 

The Governance and Audit Committee, in maintaining an overview as to the quality of systems 
of internal control in operation at the Council, is being requested to consider and approve the 
assurance opinion awarded, and confirm that key information provided is carried across to the 
Council’s Annual Governance Statement.  
 
The Governance and Audit Committee, in ensuring it fulfils its obligations is being requested 
to review the effectiveness of the Internal Audit service, and to consider and approve this 
report. 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 138



APPENDIX 1 – AUDIT WORK UNDERTAKEN DURING 2021/22 
 

Audit Area Assurance No of Recs Implemented P1 OS P2 OS P3 OS Not yet due 

Performance Management, 
Corporate Policy and Business 
Planning 

TBC       

Human Resources Reasonable 5 0 0 0 0 5 

Covid-19 Business Grants Substantial 2 2 0 0 0 0 

Corporate Health and Safety Limited  12 11 0 0 0 1 

Licensing Substantial 2 0 0 0 1 1 

Operational Fleet Review Position 
Statement 

      

Housing needs, allocation, 
homelessness, housing register 

Reasonable 4 0 0 0 0 4 

Private Sector Housing DFGs Limited 10 0 0 0 0 10 

IT audits 

Cyber Security Reasonable 11 0 0 0 0 11 

Problem and Change 
Management 

TBC       

PSPS audits  

Key Controls & Assurance 
(DRAFT) 

Reasonable       

Payroll Reasonable 3 2 0 1 0 0 

Housing Benefit Subsidy Substantial 0 0 0 0 0 0 

Total 49 15 0 1 1 32 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

P
age 139



Assurance level definitions Number 

Substantial Assurance Based upon the issues identified there is a robust series of suitably designed controls 
in place upon which the organisation relies to manage the risks to the continuous and 
effective achievement of the objectives of the process, and which at the time of our audit 
review were being consistently applied. 

3 

Reasonable Assurance Based upon the issues identified there is a series of internal controls in place, however 
these could be strengthened to facilitate the organisations management of risks to the 
continuous and effective achievement of the objectives of the process. Improvements 
are required to enhance the controls to mitigate these risks. 

5 

Limited Assurance Based upon the issues identified the controls in place are insufficient to ensure that the 
organisation can rely upon them to manage the risks to the continuous and effective 
achievement of the objectives of the process. Significant improvements are required to 
improve the adequacy and effectiveness of the controls to mitigate these risks. 

2 

No Assurance Based upon the issues identified there is a fundamental breakdown or absence of core 
internal controls such that the organisation cannot rely upon them to manage risk to the 
continuous and effective achievement of the objectives of the process. Immediate action 
is required to improve the controls required to mitigate these risks. 

0 

 
Urgent – Priority 1 Fundamental control issue on which action to implement should be taken within 1 month. 

Important Priority 2 Control issue on which action to implement should be taken within 3 months. 

Needs Attention – Priority 3 Control issue on which action to implement should be taken within 6 months. 

 
 
 
 

P
age 140



APPENDIX 2 - ASSURANCE CHART  
 

 

P
age 141



 
 
 
 

 
 
 

P
age 142



 

P
age 143



APPENDIX 3 – STATUS OF AGREED INTERNAL AUDIT RECOMMENDATIONS 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

P
age 144



 
APPENDIX 4 – OUTSTANDING INTERNAL AUDIT RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
2020/21 
 

Audit Area Responsible 
Officer 

Recommendations Priority Status 
Description 

Original 
Date  

Revised 
Date  

Number 
of times 
revised 

Latest Note 

SH2108 Asset 
Management 

Strategic and 
Operational Property 
Manager 

The Asset Management Strategy 

(AMS), Corporate Land and 

Property Policy, and the Land 

Sales Procedure be updated and 

merged as one document and be 

made available to relevant staff 

members. 

 

Medium  Outstanding 29/10/2021 16/09/2022 1 The Assistant Director for Assets is currently 
considering the approach to asset 
management across the Partnership, 
prompting a pause on the update and review 
of the existing policy.  

SH2108 Asset 
Management 

Strategic and 
Operational Property 
Manager 

Recommendation 3. A planned 

maintenance programme be 

developed and complied with, for 

the Council’s operational assets 

and this be subject to regular 

review. 

Medium  Outstanding 31/08/2021 30/12/2022 1 Capital enhancements to the Council’s 
operational assets have been identified and 
are individually going through the approval 
process. The next stage will be to work on 
developing the ongoing plan.    

 
2021/22 
 

Audit Area Responsible 
Officer 

Recommendations Priority Status 
Description 

Original 
Date  

Revised 
Date  

Number 
of times 
revised 

Latest Note 

PSPS Payroll HR Manager – 
Operations 

2.2 Intervention resolution should 

be reported as part of progress and 

performance to client as part of set 

milestones.  

Important Outstanding 31/03/2022 30/09/2022 1 PSPS have arranged meetings with key 
management at our software provider to 
develop a way forward to progress some of the 
issues identified in the audit.  At this stage we 
have created a detailed issue log identifying as 
critical areas where the system does not 
calculate pay and it has to be undertaken 
using external calculators.  we are at a stage 
where these issues have been identified and 
CIPHR have confirmed that they will look at 
resolutions to these issues.  we are now 
requesting further information as to what 
resolutions can be provided, and timescales 
for when these will be provided.  Once this has 
bene established, regular updates in the client 
meetings will be included to ensure they are 
made aware of the progress of the project. 

P
age 145



APPENDIX 5 – LIMITATIONS AND RESPONSIBILITIES 
 
Limitations inherent to the Internal Auditor’s work 
 
The Internal Audit Annual Report has been prepared and TIAA Ltd (the Internal Audit Services 
contractor) were engaged to undertake the agreed programme of work as approved by management 
and the Audit Committee, subject to the limitations outlined below. 
 
Opinions 
 
The opinions expressed are based solely on the work undertaken in delivering the approved 2021/22 
Annual Internal Audit Plan. The work addressed the risks and control objectives agreed for each 
individual planned assignment as set out in the corresponding audit planning memorandums (terms 
of reference) and reports. 
 
Internal Control  
 
The system of internal control is designed to manage risk to a reasonable level rather than to eliminate 
the risk of failure to achieve corporate/service policies, aims and objectives: it can therefore only 
provide reasonable and not absolute assurance of effectiveness.   Internal control systems essentially 
rely on an ongoing process of identifying and prioritising the risks to the achievement of the 
organisation’s policies, aims and objectives, evaluating the likelihood of those risks being realised and 
the impact should they be realised, and to manage them efficiently, effectively and economically.   
That said, internal control systems, no matter how well they have been constructed and operated, are 
affected by inherent limitations.   These include the possibility of poor judgement in decision-making, 
human error, control processes being deliberately circumvented by employees and others, 
management overriding controls and the occurrence of unforeseeable circumstances. 
 
Future Periods 
 
Internal Audit’s assessment of controls relating to South Holland District Council is for the year ended 
31 March 2022. Historic evaluation of effectiveness may not be relevant to future periods due to the 
risk that: 

• The design of controls may become inadequate because of changes in the operating 
environment, law, regulation or other matters; or, 

• The degree of compliance with policies and procedures may deteriorate. 
 
Responsibilities of Management and Internal Auditors 
 
It is management’s responsibility to develop and maintain sound systems of risk management, internal 
control and governance and for the prevention and detection of irregularities and fraud.   Internal Audit 
work should not be seen as a substitute for management’s responsibilities for the design and 
operation of these systems. 
 
The Head of Internal Audit, has sought to plan Internal Audit work, so that there is a reasonable 
expectation of detecting significant control weaknesses and, if detected, additional work will then be 
carried out which is directed towards identification of consequent fraud or other irregularities.   
However, internal audit procedures alone, even when carried out with due professional care, do not 
guarantee that fraud will be detected and TIAA’s examinations as the South Holland District Councils 
internal auditors should not be relied upon to disclose all fraud, defalcations or other irregularities 
which may exist. 
 
 
 
 

Page 146



1 
 

 

 
 

REPORT TO: Governance and Audit Committee 

DATE: 28th July 2022 

SUBJECT: Annual Treasury Management Review 2021/22 

KEY DECISION: 

  

PORTFOLIO HOLDER: 

N/A 

 

Cllr Peter Coupland, Portfolio Holder - Finance, Commercialisation & 

Partnerships 

REPORT AUTHOR: 

 

WARD(S) AFFECTED: 

Sean Howsam (Interim Treasury and Investments Manager (PSPS) 

 

N/A 

EXEMPT REPORT? No 

 

SUMMARY 

Attached at Appendix A is the Annual Treasury Management Review of the Council’s activities 

and actual prudential and treasury indicators for 2021/22. It covers the following areas; 

 • An economic update for the 2021/22 financial year;  

•  A review of the Council’s investment portfolio for 2021/22; 

 • A review of the Council’s borrowing strategy for 2021/22; 

 • Debt position;  

•  Compliance with Treasury and Prudential indicators.  

This Report refers to a key element of the Council’s Governance Framework and represents an 

important contribution to the evidence trail in support of the Annual Governance Statement 

2021/22. 

 

 

 

Page 147

Agenda Item 9.



2 
 

 

RECOMMENDATIONS  
That the Governance and Audit Committee scrutinise the Annual Treasury Management 
Review 2021/22 at Appendix A and to make any comments for consideration by Council when 
they consider this document for approval at their meeting on 28 September 2022. 

  

 

REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATIONS 

The Council is required to produce an Annual Treasury Management Review after the end of 

each financial year in accordance with the Chartered Institute of Public Finance and 

Accountancy’s Code of Practice on Treasury Management. 

 

OTHER OPTIONS CONSIDERED 

As this is an update report there are no other further options for consideration. 

 

REPORT 

The Council approved its Treasury Management Strategy for 2021/22 on 3rd March 2021. This 
report now provides the Annual Treasury Management Review 2021/22 (Appendix A) for 
Governance and Audit Committee to make any comments for consideration by Council when they 
consider this document for approval at their meeting on 28 September 2022. 
 
General Fund capital expenditure for 2021/22 was £10.9m which was financed by grants, internal 
resources and internal borrowing. 
 
Housing Revenue Account capital expenditure for 2021/22 was £5.1m for the General Fund which 
was financed by capital receipts and the major repairs reserve. 
 
As at 31 March 2022, treasury investment balances were £47.8m compared with £44.6m the 
previous year and non-treasury investment balances were £8.6m compared with £7.7m the 
previous year.  All treasury investments will mature in less than one year. The non treasury 
investments are long term equity investments in Welland Homes and loans to Welland Homes 
which are classified in the financial statements as long term debtors.   
 
A full review of the economy and interest rates is detailed in Section 8 of Appendix ‘A’ 
 
The rate of return on the Council’s investments averaged 0.39% for the 2021/22 financial year. 
Interest earned was £213k against a budget of £194k. This interest was split £193k to the General 
Fund and £20k to the HRA.   
 
The Council paid interest totalling £2.35m on its HRA borrowing for the year. 
 
The Council’s Investment Policy and Strategy is kept under constant review with the aim of 
balancing risk and reward. The investment criteria agreed for 2021/22 permitted investments with 

Page 148



3 
 

banks whose parent bank originates from a country with a sovereign rating of A+ or higher and 
meets Link Groups counterparty investment criteria. 
 
The Council is currently in the process of producing its accounts for 2021/22 which may result in 
some amendments to the figures being reported in this Annual Report. 
 
CONCLUSION 
 

This report provides a review of treasury management performance for the financial year 2021/22, 

to Members to ensure Best Practice is maintained as required by CIPFA Code of Practice for 

Treasury Management. 

 

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 
 
The financial implications are covered in detail in Appendix A to this report.  
 
By making the investment criteria relating to financial institutions stringent, the Council receives 
lower rates of return. The Council therefore aims to strike a balance between risk and reward 
when considering its portfolio of investments. Treasury Management is a key financial 
consideration for the Authority especially in respect of its investment returns and Capital 
Programme. 
 
Total interest received was £213k with £193k to the General Fund and £20k to the Housing 
Revenue Account. This was above the original budget and can be attributed to higher interest 
rates in the market during the second half of the financial year.  
 

 

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS 

The council is required to produce an Annual Treasury Management Review after the end of 

each financial year in accordance with the Chartered Institute of Public Finance and 

Accountancy’s Code of Practice on Treasury Management. 

 

CLIMATE CHANGE AND ENVIRONMENTAL IMPLICATIONS 

None 

 

EQUALITY AND SAFEGUARDING IMPLICATIONS 

None 

 

OTHER IMPLICATIONS 

Page 149



4 
 

Management of the Council’s investments portfolios can never be risk free but the risk 

mediation in place under policies and statements mitigates the exposure to medium risk. 

 

 

APPENDICES 

Appendix A - Annual Treasury Management Review 2021/22 

 

BACKGROUND PAPERS 

Background papers used in the production of this report are listed below: - 

Document title Where the document can be viewed 

Chartered Institute of Public Finance and 

Accountancy (CIPFA) Code of Practice on 

Treasury Management. 

CIPFA website 

 

CHRONOLOGICAL HISTORY OF THIS REPORT 

A report on this item has not been previously considered by a Council body for the current 

financial year. 

 

REPORT APPROVAL  

Report author: Sean Howsam – Interim Treasury & Investments 

Manager (PSPSL) Sean.Howsam@pspsl.co.uk 

Signed off by: Samantha Knowles, Assistant Director Finance 

SKnowles@sholland.gov.uk 

Approved for publication: Cllr Peter Coupland, Portfolio Holder - Finance, 

Commercialisation & Partnerships 

 

 

CONSULTATION 

The Portfolio Holder for Finance is briefed on treasury performance on a regular basis. 

Page 150

mailto:Sean.Howsam@pspsl.co.uk
mailto:SKnowles@sholland.gov


APPENDIX ‘A’ 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 
 

Annual Treasury Management Review 2021/22 

 

For scrutiny by Audit and Governance Committee  

on 28th July 2022 

 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 151



APPENDIX ‘A’ 
 

ANNUAL TREASURY MANAGEMENT REVIEW 2021/22 
 

  

1. INTRODUCTION 
 

This Council is required by regulations issued under the Local Government Act 
2003 to produce an annual treasury management review of activities and the 

actual prudential and treasury indicators for 2021/22.  This report meets the 
requirements of both the CIPFA Code of Practice on Treasury Management, (the 
Code), and the CIPFA Prudential Code for Capital Finance in Local Authorities, 

(the Prudential Code). 
 

During 2021/22 the following reports have been submitted: 

• an annual treasury strategy in advance of the year (Council 3rd March 2021)  

• a mid year (minimum) treasury update report (Governance and Audit 11th 

November 2021) 

• an annual review following the end of the year describing the activity 

compared to the strategy (this report)  

The regulatory environment places responsibility on members for the review and 
scrutiny of treasury management policy and activities.  This report is therefore 

important in that respect, as it provides details of the outturn position for 
treasury activities and highlights compliance with the Council’s policies previously 

approved by members. 
 

This Council also confirms that it has complied with the requirement under the 
Code to give prior scrutiny to all of the above treasury management reports by 
the Audit and Governance Committee.  Member training on treasury 

management has not been undertaken during the financial year. 
 

The Treasury Management function is administered by Public Sector Partnership 
Services Ltd on behalf of the Council.  
  

2. THE COUNCIL’S CAPITAL EXPENDITURE AND FINANCING 2021/22 
 

The Council undertakes capital expenditure on long-term assets.  These activities 
may either be: 

• financed immediately through the application of capital or revenue 

resources (capital receipts, capital grants, revenue contributions etc.), 
which has no resultant impact on the Council’s borrowing need; or 

• if insufficient financing is available, or a decision is taken not to apply 
resources, the capital expenditure will give rise to a borrowing need.   

 

The actual capital expenditure forms one of the required prudential indicators.  

  

Page 152



APPENDIX ‘A’ 
 

The following table summarises actual capital expenditure and how this was  
financed.  Full details of the 2021/22 expenditure can be found at Appendix 

‘A1’. 

 

£’000 General Fund 
2020/21 
Actual 

2021/22 
Approved 

Budget 

2021/22 
Actual 

Capital expenditure 7,661 4,643 10,946 

Financed in year (6,760) (3,376) (9,694) 

Unfinanced capital expenditure 901 1,267 1,252 

 

The large increase between the budget and actual was as a result of the £6.5m 
expenditure relating to the South Western Relief Road which was fully funded 

from grants. 

 

£’000 Housing Revenue Account 
(HRA) 

2020/21 
Actual 

2021/22 
Approved 

Budget 

2021/22 
Actual 

Capital expenditure 4,912 5,703 5,130 

Financed in year (4,912) (5,703) (5,130) 

Unfinanced capital expenditure - - - 

 

 
3. THE COUNCIL’S OVERALL BORROWING NEED 

 
The Council’s underlying need to borrow for capital expenditure is termed the 

Capital Financing Requirement (CFR).  This figure is a gauge of the Council’s 
indebtedness. The CFR results from the capital activity of the Council and 
resources used to pay for the capital spend.  It represents the 2021/22 

unfinanced capital expenditure (see above table), and prior years’ net or 
unfinanced capital expenditure which has not yet been paid for by revenue or 

other resources. 
 
Part of the Council’s treasury activities is to address the funding requirements for 

this borrowing need.  Depending on the capital expenditure programme, the 
treasury service organises the Council’s cash position to ensure that sufficient 

cash is available to meet the capital plans and cash flow requirements.  This may 
be sourced through borrowing from external bodies (such as the Government, 
through the Public Works Loan Board (PWLB) or the money markets), or utilising 

temporary cash resources within the Council. 
 

Reducing the CFR – the Council’s (nonHRA) underlying borrowing need (CFR) is 
not allowed to rise indefinitely.  Statutory controls are in place to ensure that 
capital assets are broadly charged to revenue over the life of the asset.  The 

Council is required to make an annual revenue charge, called the Minimum 
Page 153



APPENDIX ‘A’ 
 

Revenue Provision – MRP, to reduce the CFR.  This is effectively a repayment of 
the borrowing need (there is no statutory requirement to reduce the HRA CFR). 

This differs from the treasury management arrangements which ensure that cash 
is available to meet capital commitments.  External debt can also be borrowed or 
repaid at any time, but this does not change the CFR. 

 
The total CFR can also be reduced by: 

 
• the application of additional capital financing resources, (such as unapplied 

capital receipts); or  

• charging more than the statutory revenue charge (MRP) each year through a 
Voluntary Revenue Provision (VRP). 

  
The Council’s 2021/22 MRP Policy, (as required by Ministry of Housing, 
Communities and Local Government (MHCLG) Guidance), was approved as part 

of the Treasury Management Strategy Report for 2021/22 on 3rd March 2021. 
 

The Council’s CFR is shown below, and represents a key prudential indicator.   
 

CFR (£’000): General Fund 
31 March  

2021  
Actual 

31 March 
 2022  

Budget 

31 March 
 2022  
Actual 

Opening Balance  6,565 7,466 7,466 

Add unfinanced capital expenditure 
(as above) 

901 1,267 1,252 

Other adjustments - - - 

Closing Balance 7,466 8,733 8,718 

 
 

CFR (£’000): HRA 
31 March  

2021  
Actual 

31 March 

 2022  
Budget 

31 March 

 2022 
Actual 

Opening Balance  68,427 68,427 68,427 

Add unfinanced capital expenditure 

(as above) 
- - - 

Other adjustments - - - 

Closing Balance 68,427 68,427 68,427 

 

Borrowing activity is constrained by prudential indicators for gross borrowing and 
the CFR, and by the authorised limit. 

 
Gross borrowing and the CFR - in order to ensure that borrowing levels are 
prudent over the medium term and only for a capital purpose, the Council should 

ensure that its gross external borrowing does not, except in the short term, 
exceed the total of the capital financing requirement in the preceding year 

Page 154



APPENDIX ‘A’ 
 

(2020/21) plus the estimates of any additional capital financing requirement for 
the current (2021/22) and next two financial years.  This essentially means that 

the Council is not borrowing to support revenue expenditure.  This indicator 
allows the Council some flexibility to borrow in advance of its immediate capital 
needs in 2021/22.  The table below highlights the Council’s gross borrowing 

position against the CFR.  The Council has complied with this prudential indicator. 
 

 31 March 
2021  

Actual 
£000’s 

31 March 
2022  

Estimate 
£000’s 

31 March 
2022  

Actual 
£000’s 

Gross Borrowing Position  67,456 67,456 67,456 

CFR 75,893 77,160 77,145 

 
 

The authorised limit - the authorised limit is the “affordable borrowing limit” 
required by S3 of the Local Government Act 2003.  Once this has been set, the 
Council does not have the power to borrow above this level.  The table below 

demonstrates that during 2021/22 the Council has maintained gross borrowing 
within its authorised limit.  

 
The operational boundary – the operational boundary is the expected 
borrowing position of the Council during the year.  Periods where the actual 

position is either below or over the boundary is acceptable subject to the 
authorised limit not being breached.  

 
Actual financing costs as a proportion of net revenue stream - this 
indicator identifies the trend in the cost of capital (borrowing and other long term 

obligation costs net of investment income) against the net revenue stream. 
 

 2021/22 

Authorised limit £91m 

Maximum gross borrowing position £67.456m 

Operational boundary £87m 

Average gross borrowing position £67.456m 

Financing costs as a proportion of net revenue stream – Non HRA 
                                                                                 HRA 

-1.55% 
42.85% 

 
 

4. TREASURY POSITION AS AT 31 MARCH 2022 

 
The Council’s debt and investment position is organised by the treasury 

management service in order to ensure adequate liquidity for revenue and capital 
activities, security for investments and to manage risks within all treasury 
management activities. Procedures and controls to achieve these objectives are 

well established both through member reporting and through officer activity 
detailed in the Council’s Treasury Management Practices. At the beginning and 

the end of 2021/22 the Council’s treasury position including accrued interest was 
as follows: 

  

Page 155



APPENDIX ‘A’ 
 

 
 

Investments and Cash and Cash Equivalents held as at 31st March 2022 
including accrued interest were as follows: 

 

INVESTMENT 

PORTFOLIO 

Actual 

31/03/21 
£000’s 

Actual 

31/03/21 
% 

Actual 

31/03/22 
£000’s 

Actual 

31/03/22 
% 

Treasury Investments 

Banks 34,054 76 42,211 88 

Building Societies 2,000 5 0 0 

Local Authorities 5,027 11 0 0 

Total managed in house 41,081 92 42,211 88 

Money Market Funds 3,500 8 5,603 12 

Total managed 
externally 

3,500 8 5,603 12 

Total Treasury 
Investments 

44,581 100 47,814 100 

Non-Treasury Investments (at fair value) 

Equity 3,963 52 4,841 56 

Service Loans (long term 

debtors) 

3,710 48 3,738 44 

Total Non-Treasury 
Investments 

7,673 100 8,579 100 

 

 
31/3/21 
Amount 
£’000 

Rate/ 
Return 

% 

Average 
Life 

 

31/3/22 
Amount 
£’000 

Rate/ 
Return 

% 

Average 
Life 

 

Fixed rate funding 

    PWLB 
    Leases 

 

67,456 
- 

 

3.48 
n/a 

 

41 years 

 

67,456 
- 

 

3.48 
n/a 

 

40 years 
 

Total debt 67,456 3.48 41 years 67,456 3.48 40 years 

  CFR 75,893   77,145   

  Over/(under) borrowing (8,437)   (9,689)   

Cash and investments:  

  long term equity and   
  service loans 

(7,673) n/a n/a (8,579) n/a n/a 

  short term (34,524) 0.20 167 days (36,028) 0.66 127 days 

  instant access deposits (10,057) 0.01 1 day (11,786) 0.45 1 day 

Total cash and 
investments 

(52,254) 0.16 129 days (56,393) 0.61 96 days 

Net debt 15,202   11,063   

Page 156



APPENDIX ‘A’ 
 

SUMMARY Actual 
31/03/21 

£000’s 

Actual 
31/03/21 

% 

Actual 
31/03/22 

£000’s 

Actual 
31/03/22 

% 

Total Treasury 

Investments 

44,581 85 47,814 85 

Total Non-Treasury 

Investments 

7,673 15 8,579 15 

Total of all Investments 52,254 100 56,393 100 

 

The maturity structure of the investment portfolio was as follows: 

 

 2020/21 

Actual 
£’000 

2021/22 

Actual 
£’000 

Investments 
  Longer than 1 year 
  Under 1 year 

       Total 

 
7,673 
44,581 

52,254 

 
8,579 
47,814 

56,393 

 

The exposure to fixed and variable rates on investments was as follows: 

 

 31/3/21 
Actual 

£’000 

31/3/22 
Actual 

£’000 

Fixed rate  
33,240 

(64%) 

34,770 

(62%) 

Variable rate  
19,014 

(36%) 

21,623 

(38%) 

 

  

Page 157



APPENDIX ‘A’ 
 

 

5. THE STRATEGY FOR 2021/22 

 
5.1    Investment strategy and control of interest rate risk 
 

 
 
Investment returns remained close to zero for much of 2021/22.  Most local 

authority lending managed to avoid negative rates and one feature of the year 
was the continued growth of inter local authority lending.  The expectation for 
interest rates within the treasury management strategy for 2021/22 was that 

Bank Rate would remain at 0.1% until it was clear to the Bank of England that 
the emergency level of rates introduced at the start of the Covid-19 pandemic 

were no longer necessitated. 
 
The Bank of England and the Government also maintained various monetary and 

fiscal measures, supplying the banking system and the economy with massive 
amounts of cheap credit so that banks could help cash-starved businesses to 

survive the various lockdowns/negative impact on their cashflow. The 
Government also supplied huge amounts of finance to local authorities to pass on 
to businesses.  This meant that for most of the year there was much more 

liquidity in financial markets than there was demand to borrow, with the 
consequent effect that investment earnings rates remained low until towards the 

turn of the year when inflation concerns indicated central banks, not just the 
Bank of England, would need to lift interest rates to combat the second-round 
effects of growing levels of inflation (CPI was 6.2% in February).  

 
While the Council has taken a cautious approach to investing, it is also fully 

appreciative of changes to regulatory requirements for financial institutions in 
terms of additional capital and liquidity that came about in the aftermath of the 
financial crisis. These requirements have provided a far stronger basis for 

financial institutions, with annual stress tests by regulators evidencing how 

Page 158



APPENDIX ‘A’ 
 

institutions are now far more able to cope with extreme stressed market and 
economic conditions. 

 
Investment balances have been kept to a minimum through the agreed strategy 
of using reserves and balances to support internal borrowing, rather than 

borrowing externally from the financial markets. External borrowing would have 
incurred an additional cost, due to the differential between borrowing and 

investment rates as illustrated in the charts shown above and below. Such an 
approach has also provided benefits in terms of reducing counterparty risk 
exposure, by having fewer investments placed in the financial markets.  

 

5.2      Borrowing strategy and control of interest rate risk 
 

During 2021/22, the Council maintained an under-borrowed position.  This meant 

that the capital borrowing need, (the Capital Financing Requirement), was not 
fully funded with loan debt as cash supporting the Council’s reserves, balances 
and cash flow was used as an interim measure. This strategy was prudent as 

investment returns were very low and minimising counterparty risk on placing 
investments also needed to be considered. 

 
A cost of carry remained during the year on any new long-term borrowing that 
was not immediately used to finance capital expenditure, as it would have caused 

a temporary increase in cash balances; this would have incurred a revenue cost – 
the difference between (higher) borrowing costs and (lower) investment returns. 

 
The policy of avoiding new borrowing by running down spare cash balances has 
served well over the last few years.  However, this was kept under review to 

avoid incurring higher borrowing costs in the future when this authority may not 
be able to avoid new borrowing to finance capital expenditure and/or the 

refinancing of maturing debt. 
 
Against this background and the risks within the economic forecast, caution was 

adopted with the treasury operations. The Section 151 Officer therefore 
monitored interest rates in financial markets and adopted a pragmatic strategy 

based upon the following principles to manage interest rate risks: 
 

• if it had been felt that there was a significant risk of a sharp FALL in long 

and short term rates, (e.g. due to a marked increase of risks around 
relapse into recession or of risks of deflation), then long term borrowings 

would have been postponed, and potential rescheduling from fixed rate 
funding into short term borrowing would have been considered. 

 

• if it had been felt that there was a significant risk of a much sharper 
RISE in long and short term rates than initially expected, perhaps arising 

from an acceleration in the start date and in the rate of increase in 
central rates in the USA and UK, an increase in world economic activity 
or a sudden increase in inflation risks, then the portfolio position would 

have been re-appraised.  Most likely, fixed rate funding would have been 
drawn whilst interest rates were lower than they were projected to be in 

the next few years. 
 

Interest rate forecasts expected only gradual rises in medium and longer-term 
fixed borrowing rates during 2021/22 and the two subsequent financial years 
until the turn of the year, when inflation concerns increased significantly.  

Page 159



APPENDIX ‘A’ 
 

Internal, variable, or short-term rates, were expected to be the cheaper form of 
borrowing until well in to the second half of 2021/22.  

 
 
Interest rate forecasts in the table below expected only gradual rises in medium 

and longer term fixed borrowing rates during 2021/22 and the two subsequent 
financial years.  Variable, or short-term rates, were expected to be the cheaper 

form of borrowing over the period.  
 

 
 

 
 
 
PWLB rates are based on gilt (UK Government bonds) yields through 

H.M.Treasury determining a specified margin to add to gilt yields.  The main 
influences on gilt yields are Bank Rate, inflation expectations and movements in 

US treasury yields. Inflation targeting by the major central banks has been 
successful over the last 30 years in lowering inflation and the real equilibrium 
rate for central rates has fallen considerably due to the high level of borrowing by 

consumers: this means that central banks do not need to raise rates as much 
now to have a major impact on consumer spending, inflation, etc. This has pulled 

down the overall level of interest rates and bond yields in financial markets over 
the last 30 years.  We have seen, over the last two years, many bond yields up 
to 10 years in the Eurozone turn negative on expectations that the EU would 

Link Group Interest Rate View  7.2.22

Mar-22 Jun-22 Sep-22 Dec-22 Mar-23 Jun-23 Sep-23 Dec-23 Mar-24 Jun-24 Sep-24 Dec-24 Mar-25

BANK RATE 0.75 1.00 1.00 1.25 1.25 1.25 1.25 1.25 1.25 1.25 1.25 1.25 1.25

  3 month av. earnings 0.80 1.00 1.00 1.20 1.20 1.20 1.20 1.20 1.20 1.20 1.20 1.20 1.20

  6 month av. earnings 1.00 1.10 1.20 1.30 1.30 1.30 1.30 1.30 1.30 1.30 1.30 1.30 1.30

12 month av. earnings 1.40 1.50 1.60 1.70 1.70 1.60 1.60 1.50 1.40 1.40 1.40 1.40 1.40

5 yr   PWLB 2.20 2.30 2.30 2.30 2.30 2.30 2.30 2.30 2.30 2.30 2.30 2.30 2.30

10 yr PWLB 2.30 2.40 2.40 2.40 2.40 2.40 2.40 2.40 2.40 2.40 2.40 2.40 2.40

25 yr PWLB 2.40 2.50 2.50 2.60 2.60 2.60 2.60 2.60 2.60 2.60 2.60 2.60 2.60

50 yr PWLB 2.20 2.30 2.30 2.40 2.40 2.40 2.40 2.40 2.40 2.40 2.40 2.40 2.40

0.60%

0.80%

1.00%

1.20%

1.40%

1.60%

1.80%

2.00%

2.20%

2.40%

2.60%

2.80%

3.00%

PWLB Rates 1.4.21 - 31.03.22

1 Year 5 Year 10 Year 25 Year 50 Year 50 year target %

Page 160



APPENDIX ‘A’ 
 

struggle to get growth rates and inflation up from low levels. In addition, there 
has, at times, been an inversion of bond yields in the US whereby 10 year yields 

have fallen below shorter term yields. In the past, this has been a precursor of a 
recession.  Recently, yields have risen since the turn of the year on the back of 
global inflation concerns. 

 
Gilt yields fell sharply from the spring of 2021 through to September and then 

spiked back up before falling again through December.  However, by January 
sentiment had well and truly changed, as markets became focussed on the 
embedded nature of inflation, spurred on by a broader opening of economies post 

the pandemic, and rising commodity and food prices resulting from the Russian 
invasion of Ukraine. 

 
At the close of the day on 31 March 2022, all gilt yields from 1 to 5 years were 
between 1.11% – 1.45% while the 10-year and 25-year yields were at 1.63% 

and 1.84%.   
 

Regarding PWLB borrowing rates, the various margins attributed to their pricing 
are as follows: - 

 
• PWLB Standard Rate is gilt plus 100 basis points (G+100bps) 
• PWLB Certainty Rate is gilt plus 80 basis points (G+80bps) 

• PWLB HRA Standard Rate is gilt plus 100 basis points (G+100bps) 
• PWLB HRA Certainty Rate is gilt plus 80bps (G+80bps) 

• Local Infrastructure Rate is gilt plus 60bps (G+60bps) 
 
There is likely to be a further rise in short dated gilt yields and PWLB rates over 

the next three years as Bank Rate is forecast to rise from 0.75% in March 2022 
to 1.25% later this year, with upside risk likely if the economy proves resilient in 

the light of the cost-of-living squeeze.  Medium to long dated yields are driven 
primarily by inflation concerns but the Bank of England is also embarking on a 
process of Quantitative Tightening when Bank Rate hits 1%, whereby the Bank’s 

£895bn stock of gilt and corporate bonds will be sold back into the market over 
several years.  The impact this policy will have on the market pricing of gilts, 

while issuance is markedly increasing, is an unknown at the time of writing.  
 
 

6. Borrowing Outturn 
 

Treasury borrowing – The Council has not undertaken any new Treasury 
borrowing during the financial year 2021/22. 
 

The Council’s external borrowing from the PWLB at 31 March 2022 remained at 
£67.456m at a fixed rate of 3.48% and matures on 28 March 2062. 

 
Borrowing in Advance of Need - The Council has not borrowed more than, or 
in advance of its needs, purely in order to profit from the investment of the extra 

sums borrowed. 
 

Rescheduling – No rescheduling was done during the year as the average 1% 
differential between PWLB new borrowing rates and premature repayment rates 
made rescheduling unviable. 

 
 

Page 161



APPENDIX ‘A’ 
 

7. INVESTMENT OUTTURN FOR 2021/22 
 

Investment Policy – the Council’s investment policy is governed by DHLUC 
guidance, which was been implemented in the annual investment strategy 
approved by the Council on 3rd March 2021.  This policy sets out the approach 

for choosing investment counterparties, and is based on credit ratings provided 
by the three main credit rating agencies, supplemented by additional market data 

(such as rating outlooks, credit default swaps, bank share prices etc. 
 
The investment activity during the year conformed to the approved strategy, and 

the Council had no liquidity difficulties. 
 

Resources – the Council’s cash balances comprise revenue and capital resources 
and cash flow monies.  The Council’s core cash resources comprised as follows: 

 

Balance Sheet Resources (£’000) 31 March 2021 31 March 2022 

Balances 24,906 26,318 

Earmarked Reserves 11,615 9,737 

Major Repairs Reserve 4,356 3,790 

Capital Grants and Contributions 3,184 4,152 

Usable capital receipts 3,220 4,905 

Total 47,281 48,902 

 

The Council held average treasury investment balances of £51m which were 

internally managed, achieving an average rate of return of 0.167% compared 
with the average 3 Month Sterling Overnight Index Average (SONIA) rate of 

0.087%.  
 

The Council also held average non-treasury investment balances (excluding 
equity) of £3.7m. The Council has issued five loans totalling £3.7m to Welland 
Homes Limited, which is the Council’s wholly owned Housing Development 

Company. These are service loans (classified as long term debtors) and the 
Council receives interest of 3.5% on these loans which is payable on a quarterly 

basis. Total interest earned during the year was £130k. 
 
The combined rate of return on all investments averaged 0.39%. 

 
Actual investment interest earned during 2021/22 was £213k against a budget of 

£194k. This interest was split £193k to the General Fund and £20k to the HRA.  
This can be attributed to higher interest rates in the market during the second 
half of the financial year.  

 
 

8. THE ECONOMY AND INTEREST RATES (Commentary provided by Link 
Group) 

 

UK.  Economy. Over the last two years, the coronavirus outbreak has done huge 
economic damage to the UK and to economies around the world. After the Bank 

of England took emergency action in March 2020 to cut Bank Rate to 0.10%, it 

Page 162



APPENDIX ‘A’ 
 

left Bank Rate unchanged at its subsequent meetings until raising it to 0.25% at 
its meeting on 16th December 2021,  0.50% at its meeting of 4th February 2022 

and then to 0.75% in March 2022.  
 
The UK economy has endured several false dawns through 2021/22, but with 

most of the economy now opened up and nearly back to business-as-usual, the 
GDP numbers have been robust (9% y/y Q1 2022) and sufficient for the MPC to 

focus on tackling the second-round effects of inflation, now that the CPI measure 
has already risen to 6.2% and is likely to exceed 8% in April. 
 

Gilt yields fell towards the back end of 2021, but despite the war in Ukraine gilt 
yields have shot higher in early 2022.  At 1.38%, 2-year yields remain close to 

their recent 11-year high and 10-year yields of 1.65% are close to their recent 
six-year high. These rises have been part of a global trend as central banks have 
suggested they will continue to raise interest rates to contain inflation. 

 
Historically, a further rise in US Treasury yields will probably drag UK gilt yields 

higher.  There is a strong correlation between the two factors.   However, the 
squeeze on real household disposable incomes arising from the 54% leap in April 

utilities prices as well as rises in council tax, water prices and many phone 
contract prices, are strong headwinds for any economy to deal with.  In addition, 
from 1st April 2022, employees also pay 1.25% more in National Insurance tax.  

Consequently, inflation will be a bigger drag on real incomes in 2022 than in any 
year since records began in 1955.  

 
Average inflation targeting. This was the major change in 2020/21 adopted 
by the Bank of England in terms of implementing its inflation target of 2%.   The 

key addition to the Bank’s forward guidance in August 2020 was a new phrase in 
the policy statement, namely that “it does not intend to tighten monetary policy 

until there is clear evidence that significant progress is being made in eliminating 
spare capacity and achieving the 2% target sustainably”.  That mantra now 
seems very dated.  Inflation is the “genie” that has escaped the bottle, and a 

perfect storm of supply side shortages, labour shortages, commodity price 
inflation, the impact of Russia’s invasion of Ukraine and subsequent Western 

sanctions all point to inflation being at elevated levels until well into 2023. 
 
USA. The flurry of comments from Fed officials following the mid-March FOMC 

meeting – including from Chair Jerome Powell himself – hammering home the 
hawkish message from the mid-March meeting, has had markets pricing in a 

further 225bps of interest rate increases in 2022 on top of the initial move to an 
interest rate range of 0.25% - 0.5%. 
 

EU. With euro-zone inflation having jumped to 7.5% in March it seems 
increasingly likely that the ECB will accelerate its plans to tighten monetary 

policy. It is likely to end net asset purchases in June – i.e., earlier than the Q3 
date which the ECB targeted in March. And the market is now anticipating 
possibly three 25bp rate hikes later this year followed by more in 2023.  

Policymakers have also hinted strongly that they would re-start asset purchases 
if required. In a recent speech, Christine Lagarde said “we can design and deploy 

new instruments to secure monetary policy transmission as we move along the 
path of policy normalisation.”  
 

While inflation has hit the headlines recently, the risk of recession has also been 
rising. Among the bigger countries, Germany is most likely to experience a 

Page 163



APPENDIX ‘A’ 
 

“technical” recession because its GDP contracted in Q4 2021, and its 
performance has been subdued in Q1 2022. However, overall, Q1 2022 growth 

for the Eurozone is expected to be 0.3% q/q with the y/y figure posting a healthy 
5.2% gain.  Finishing on a bright note, unemployment fell to only 6.8% in 
February. 

 
China.  After a concerted effort to get on top of the virus outbreak in Q1 of 

2020, economic recovery was strong in the rest of the year; however, 2021 has 
seen the economy negatively impacted by political policies that have focussed on 
constraining digital services, restricting individual freedoms, and re-establishing 

the power of the One-Party state.  With the recent outbreak of Covid-19 in large 
cities, such as Shanghai, near-term economic performance is likely to be 

subdued. Official GDP numbers suggest growth of c4% y/y, but other data 
measures suggest this may be an overstatement. 
 

Japan. The Japanese economic performance through 2021/22 is best described 
as tepid.  With a succession of local lockdowns throughout the course of the year, 

GDP is expected to have risen only 0.5% y/y with Q4 seeing a minor contraction.  
The policy rate has remained at -0.1%, unemployment is currently only 2.7% 

and inflation is sub 1%, although cost pressures are mounting. 
 
World growth. World growth is estimated to have expanded 8.9% in 2021/22 

following a contraction of 6.6% in 2020/21. 
 

Deglobalisation. Until recent years, world growth has been boosted by 
increasing globalisation i.e. countries specialising in producing goods and 
commodities in which they have an economic advantage and which they then 

trade with the rest of the world. This has boosted worldwide productivity and 
growth, and, by lowering costs, has also depressed inflation. However, the rise of 

China as an economic superpower over the last 30 years, which now accounts for 
18% of total world GDP (the USA accounts for 24%), and Russia’s recent 
invasion of Ukraine, has unbalanced the world economy. In addition, after the 

pandemic exposed how frail extended supply lines were around the world, both 
factors are now likely to lead to a sharp retrenchment of economies into two 

blocs of western democracies v. autocracies. It is, therefore, likely that we are 
heading into a period where there will be a reversal of world globalisation and a 
decoupling of western countries from dependence on China (and to a much lesser 

extent Russia) to supply products and vice versa. This is likely to reduce world 
growth rates. 

 
Central banks’ monetary policy. During the pandemic, the governments of 
western countries have provided massive fiscal support to their economies which 

has resulted in a big increase in total government debt in each country. It is 
therefore very important that bond yields stay low while debt to GDP ratios 

slowly subside under the impact of economic growth. This provides governments 
with a good reason to amend the mandates given to central banks to allow 
higher average levels of inflation than we have generally seen over the last 

couple of decades. Both the Fed and Bank of England have already changed their 
policy towards implementing their existing mandates on inflation, (and full 

employment), to hitting an average level of inflation. Greater emphasis could 
also be placed on hitting subsidiary targets e.g. full employment before raising 
rates. Higher average rates of inflation would also help to erode the real value of 

government debt more quickly. 
 

Page 164



APPENDIX ‘A’ 
 

 

Table 6 - General Fund 2021/22 Capital Program and Outturn 

Service Area 

Revised 
Budget 

2021/22 £'000 

Outturn 
2021/22 
£’000 

Variance 
(Underspend)/ 

Overspend  
£'000 

ICT Infrastructure 85 100 15 

Public Protection Software 15 11 (4) 

South Holland Centre Projects 71 82 11 

Priory Road Projects - 21 21 

Swimming Pool Boiler 78 89 11 

Castle Sports Pool Fire Alarm 31 48 17 

West Marsh Road Fire Alarm 13 - (13) 

West Marsh Road Electrical Rewiring 43 - (43) 

Ayscoughfee Hall 186 146 (40) 

Temporary Accommodation 20 19 (1) 

Spalding Cemetery 159 159 - 

Peele Leisure Lighting 19 18 (1) 

NSAP Property Acquisitions 277 290 13 

RSAP Property Acquisitions 698 662 (36) 

Kings Road Land Acquisition 116 11 (105) 

Grants for Growth 703 673 (30) 

Food Enterprise Zone 2 6 4 

South Western Relief Road *  6,508 6,508 

Garden Waste 184 240 56 

Grounds Maintenance 25 16 (9) 

Environmental Services Operational 1,138 1,138 - 

Fleet Maintenance Vehicles 38 - (38) 

Disabled Facilities Grants 639 681 42 

Decent Homes 75 - (75) 

Welland Homes 28 28 - 

Total 4,643 10,946 6,303 

 
 

Table 6a - General Fund 2021/22 Capital Funding and Outturn 

Service Area 

Revised 
Budget 

2021/22 
£'000 

Outturn 
2021/22 

£'000 

Variance 
(Underspend)/ 

Overspend  
£'000 

Borrowing (1,267) (1,252) 15 

Grants & Contributions (1,419) (8,142) (6,723) 

Capital Reserves   (685) (685) 

Direct Revenue Financing (1,957) (867) 1,090 

Total (4,643) (10,946) (6,303) 

 
 

 
  

Page 165



APPENDIX ‘A’ 
 

Table 10 - HRA 2021/22 Capital Program and Outturn 

Service Area 

Revised 
Budget 

2021/22 £'000 
Outturn 

2021/22 £'000 

Variance 
(Underspend)/ 

Overspend  
£'000 

Central Heating 942 954 12 

Kitchen/Bathroom 1,191 1,167 (24) 

Renewable Energy 52 47 (5) 

Smoke Alarms 118 108 (10) 

Electrical Upgrade 90 115 25 

Roofs and Gutters 960 936 (24) 

Doors and Windows 7 -  (7) 

Chimneys 182 160 (22) 

Paths and Drives 43 50 7 

Boundary Walls 154 80 (74) 

Fees 233 233 - 

Sewerage Treatment Plant 33 -  (33) 

The Square 11 7 (4) 

ICT Strategy / Infrastructure 45 49 4 

Housing IT Systems Upgrade 168 168 - 

Major Adaptions 623 590 (33) 

Sheltered Alarm Upgrade 40 40 - 

Housing Repairs Vehicles 50 48 (2) 

Grounds Maintenance 7 9 2 

Weston Development Scheme 5 5 - 

Purchase of Units 6 4 (2) 

Wignals Gate S106 392 360 (32) 

Albion street Crowland 9 -  (9) 

Scheme Subject to detailed approval 342 -  (342) 

        

Total 5,703 5,130 (573) 

 
 
 

Table 10a - HRA 2021/22 Capital Funding and Outturn 

Service Area 

Revised 
Budget 

2021/22 £'000 
Outturn 

2021/22 £'000 

Variance 
(Underspend)/ 

Overspend  
£'000 

Capital Receipts (1,350) (457) 893 

Major Repairs Reserve (4,353) (4,673) (320) 

Direct Revenue Financing - - - 

      - 

Total (5,703) (5,130) 573 
 

Page 166



 

 

 

 

REPORT TO: Governance and Audit 

DATE: Wednesday 28th July 2022 

SUBJECT: 

PURPOSE:  

Q4 Risk Report 21/22 

To provide an update on the Councils strategic risks for the period 

1st January 2022 to 31st March 2022 

KEY DECISION: N/A 

PORTFOLIO HOLDER: Portfolio Holder Corporate & Communications, Cllr Jim Astill 

REPORT OF: 

REPORT AUTHOR: 

James Gilbert, Assistant Director - Corporate 

Corey Gooch, Senior Change, Improvement and Performance 

Business Partner 

WARD(S) AFFECTED: N/A 

EXEMPT REPORT? NO 

 

SUMMARY 

This report and detailed Appendix A seeks to present to Governance and Audit Committee an 

overview of the key risks that the council is exposed to, the action taking place to mitigate those 

risks, and an up to date assessment of their likelihood and impact. 

 

RECOMMENDATIONS 

That the panel gives consideration to both the covering report and Appendix A, which details 

the latest assessment of the council’s strategic risks 

 

REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATIONS 

To ensure council risks and management of risks are communicated and detailed  

 

OTHER OPTIONS CONSIDERED 

Do Nothing 

 

1.  BACKGROUND 
Page 167

Agenda Item 10.



 
By their very nature, strategic risks are those that have been identified as having the potential to 

cause organizational wide impact and will often cover a number of key services and departments. 

Strategic risks are captured within the council’s risk management system, which is available to the 

council’s management team and is reviewed on a regular basis. 

 

2. REPORT 

The report and associated identifies that there are currently 22 recorded strategic risks that the 

authority is monitoring. These 22 risks are captured, described, and scored in a Strategic Risk 

Register. This register is included in Appendix A for consideration by the Governance and Audit 

committee.     

 

In terms of methodology, the Council’s risk scoring mechanism is based on a 5x5 matrix and is 

comparable with best practice in other similar organizations. The risk matrix provides a 

comprehensive assessment and understanding of risk likelihood and impact. The matrix results in a 

numerical score which combines the impact of the risk occurring with the likelihood of it 

happening. The rating for individual risks ranges from highest (red) to lowest (green) with 

categories in between, depending on their rating, details of likelihood and impact scoring criteria 

are based on the council’s risk management policy and can be found below 

 

The spread of risk across the 24 recorded in the council’s latest Strategic Risk Register, following 

mitigation by services and the council’s management team, is as follows.  

 

Risk level Number of strategic risks by score 
(post-mitigation) 

High level (Red) 3 

Medium (Amber/Yellow) 15 

Low (Green) 3 

 

Within the strategic risk register included in Appendix A, each risk is ascribed a short narrative 

which seeks to cover the following 

• The risk title 

• A description of what the risk council entail 

• The approach to mitigation  

• The current score of the risk 

 

The risk register is presented for consideration by the Committee. Officers will be available at the 

meeting of the Committee to answer questions on the content of the register. 

 

Page 168



The strategic risk register in Appendix A will include details and rationale for any changes to risks 

since the previous quarter, an overview of changes can be found below. 

 

Risk Name Rationale/Commentary for change 
Change since 

last quarter 

Housing Team 

Resources and 

Support 

The Homeless Reduction Team has now a full complement of staff and are currently working 

through the current case load. Case numbers are higher than average with impacts from 

evictions post the Covid-19 moratorium, affordability of rents, reduction in numbers of 

properties within the private sector and more recently, connections to the cost-of-living crisis 

starting to take effect. The General Advice team continue to triage all incoming referrals and 

progress all cases that are not homeless or threatened with homelessness, with a focus on 

early intervention to prevent future homeless presentations. Other mitigations such as seeking 

new ways to engage and build strong relationships with landlords/letting agencies are 

currently being prepared.  

 

In addition, the Change4Lincs project, a jointly funded team, continue to provide South 

Holland along with other districts, support for people who are rough sleeping or at risk of 

rough sleeping. This includes for people the Council does not owe a statutory accommodation 

duty to. 

 

Parkwood 

Leisure 

Provision 

The LGA April 22 briefing note for Councils, listed factors around the ongoing recovery from 

the Pandemic and energy costs as its main concerns nationally.   

The note reported that national picture is varied, but recovery to about 70 per cent of the 

2019/20 participation levels are being achieved, as consumer confidence gradually returns. 

This improving position however has subsequently been tempered by significant increases in 

utility costs and the increasing cost of living pressures on households which is likely to have 

an adverse impact consumer confidence, throughput and participation rates going forward. 

 

Retention of 

staff 

Risk likelihood increased given the recruitment market likelihood will increase, any future 

recession if it hits may slow this down, appropriate to shift right for now.  In terms of impact – 

it’s not consistent - Impact is likely to be higher for certain roles as gaps are longer to fill 

leaving colleagues picking up backlogs – but we do not feel this is consistent enough across 

the whole organisation to shift this . 

 

 

 

3. CONCLUSION 
 
3.1 Overall, the register contained within Appendix 1 demonstrates that strategic risks are 

being proactively managed by the authority, with a series of mitigations in place to reduce 
and mitigate impact and likelihood across a number of key areas. 

 
4. EXPECTED BENEFITS TO THE PARTNERSHIP 

4.1 N/A 
 
5. IMPLICATIONS 

5.1 SOUTH AND EAST LINCOLNSHIRE COUNCIL’S PARTNERSHIP 

 N/A 

 Page 169



5.2 CORPORATE PRIORITIES 

The report presents risk management of key areas relating to the corporate priorities which 

highlight the areas of focus in council delivery of services. 

5.3 STAFFING 

 The report contains information on Council risk which does convey some information 

relating to staffing. 

5.4 CONSTITUTIONAL AND LEGAL IMPLICATIONS 

 None 

5.5 DATA PROTECTION 

None 

5.6 FINANCIAL 

None 
 
5.7 RISK MANAGEMENT 

 Issues may be subject to risk management measures to protect Council interests. 

5.8 STAKEHOLDER / CONSULTATION / TIMESCALES 

 N/A 

5.9 REPUTATION 

 Risk issues can cause some reputational consequence. It is the purpose of this report to 

highlight issues at an early stage. 

5.10 CONTRACTS 

 The report contains information on Council risk which does convey some information 

relating to contract matters. 

5.11 CRIME AND DISORDER 

 The report contains information on Council risk which does convey some information 

relating to crime. 

5.12 EQUALITY AND DIVERSITY/ HUMAN RIGHTS/ SAFEGUARDING 

 None 

5.13 HEALTH AND WELL BEING 

 The report contains information on Council risk which does convey some information 

relating to health and wellbeing. 

5.14  CLIMATE CHANGE AND ENVIRONMENTAL IMPLICATIONS 

 The report contains information on Council risk which does convey some information 

relating to environmental matters. 

 Page 170



6. ACRONYMS 

6.1 PSPS – Public Sector Partnerships Ltd 

LCC – Lincolnshire County Council 

CTS – Council Tax Support 

ICO – Information Commissioner’s Office 

LGO - Local Government & Social Care Ombudsman 

 

APPENDICES 

Appendices are listed below and attached to the back of the report: - 

APPENDIX A Q4 SHDC Risk Register 21-22 

 

BACKGROUND PAPERS 

No background papers as defined in Section 100D of the Local Government Act 1972 were used 

in the production of this report 

 

 

CHRONOLOGICAL HISTORY OF THIS REPORT 

Name of body Date 

 

REPORT APPROVAL  

Report author: Corey Gooch - Senior Change, Improvement and 

Performance Business Partner 

Signed off by: James Gilbert - Assistant Director - Corporate 

Approved for publication: Councillor Jim Astill – Portfolio Holder (Corporate 

and Communications) 

 

 

Page 171



This page is intentionally left blank



SHDC Strategic Risk Report 
 
 

 

Risk Name Description Controls/Mitigation 
Current Risk 
Score 

Trend 
Icon 

Assigned To 

Housing 
Team 
Resources 
and Support 

The council's ability to meet the 
demands for support with 
homelessness and housing advice, 
supporting residents in preventing 
homelessness before it occurs, and 
when it does occur supporting 
residents in securing 

The Homeless Reduction Team has now a full complement of staff and are 
currently working through the current case load. Case numbers are higher than 
average with impacts from evictions post the Covid-19 moratorium, affordability 
of rents, reduction in numbers of properties within the private sector and more 
recently, connections to the cost-of-living crisis starting to take effect. The 
General Advice team continue to triage all incoming referrals and progress all 
cases that are not homeless or threatened with homelessness, with a focus on 
early intervention to prevent future homeless presentations. Other mitigations 
such as seeking new ways to engage and build strong relationships with 
landlords/letting agencies are currently being prepared.  
 
In addition, the Change4Lincs project, a jointly funded team, continue to provide 
South Holland along with other districts, support for people who are rough 
sleeping or at risk of rough sleeping. This includes for people the Council does 
not owe a statutory accommodation duty to. 

20 

 

 Emily Spicer 

Cyber 
Incident 

The risk of the council's ICT 
infrastructure being severally impact 
as the result of a cyber incident, both 
in terms of downtime of systems and 
loss of data/information. The threat 
landscape across the UK is 
continuously increasing and appears 
on the national risk assessment. The 
Council need to constantly adapt in its 
security mitigation and training to 
ensure they are both prepared from a 
technical and from a people aspect 

There are a range of measures in place including firewalls, Mimecast and 
antivirus in order to protect the council's ICT systems. The ICT team play an 
active part in the East Midlands WARP which allow us to have early sight of 
issues being experienced across neighbouring Authorities and Agencies. ICT is 
also a member of the CISP formed by the National Cyber Security Centre, this 
allows us early awareness from the central agency responsible for cyber threats 
across the UK as well as allowing them to monitor our environment to a degree. 
These mitigations afford ICT awareness of emerging threats. 

20 

 

 
Jackie Wright 

P
age 173



Risk Name Description Controls/Mitigation 
Current Risk 
Score 

Trend 
Icon 

Assigned To 

Changes to 
the council’s 
strategic 
partnership 
arrangements 

Enabling and embedding changes to 
the organisation, linked to the new 
strategic partnership. 

Proactive management of risks and issues are undertaken at the programme 
management board. 

9 

 

 
Rob Barlow 

 

Parkwood 
Leisure 
Provision 

The council's ability to provide leisure 
services through its contract with 
Parkwood Leisure, including any 
financial risk exposure and service 
delivery issues as a result of the 
Covid-19 pandemic. Additional 
challenges from the increase in Energy 
costs and the impact this is having on 
centre budgets and users’ ability to 
continue to afford participation in 
leisure activities. 

Monthly Contract Meetings with senior Parkwood managers ensuring regular 
engagement with leisure operator to understand their situation and potential 
impacts on services/goods provided for the Councils. Utilising the advice of the 
council's Contracts and Procurement team, alongside external advisors, 
ensuring that we are protecting the contract.  
Additional support from leisure officers across the partnership with knowledge of 
the industry and its current challenges. 
Consider the potential for leisure providers under contract to the Councils, to 
purchase gas and electricity through the Councils’ own supplier to secure 
greater value for money.   
 

12 

 

 
Emily Holmes 

Phil Perry 

Local 
Economy 

The risk of the economy of South 
Holland as a whole experiencing a 
downturn, resulting in both 
employment and business closures, 
and having a consequential impact on 
a range of resident wellbeing. 

The council regularly monitors the impact of the local economy through regular 
engagement with businesses and partners. Engagement with business and the 
council remains high. A large proportion of the economy of South Holland is 
structured around the agriculture, food production and distribution, and 
horticultural sector which continues to be largely resilient to the effects of the 
pandemic on the wider economy from a demand-side perspective, but continues 
to grapple with supply-side constraints relating to access to labour, logistics 
capacity, carbon reduction and supply-chain challenges that impede growth. The 
council's longer term economic strategy of supporting innovation and productivity 
in the core agri-food sector to overcome some of these challenges is intended to 
further support this resilience, therefore supporting the wider supply chain and 
business cluster within the district. In terms of employment and redundancies, 
the council continues to work closely with the DWP and local businesses to 
minimise the potential impacts of large-scale redundancies if they arise. To 
support with Covid-19 recovery, the council has mobilised a ‘growth and 
recovery’ scheme to support local businesses that have a desire to grow, 
including businesses within the high street economy . The council is also closely 
monitoring the impact of the end of the UK/EU transition arrangement on local 
businesses. 

12 

 

 
Matthew Hogan 

P
age 174



Risk Name Description Controls/Mitigation 
Current Risk 
Score 

Trend 
Icon 

Assigned To 

Decision 
Making 

The risk of a reduction in council 
democratic decision making due to the 
Covid-19 pandemic or other significant 
event. 

Mobilisation of the use of technology for remote meetings. Provision made for 
emergency powers. Regular review of constitutional provisions. Back up 
delegations in place for absence of key members and officers. 

12 

 

 
John Medler 

Rhonda Booth 

Council 
Financial 
Positions 

The Council's medium term financial 
strategy has identified budget gaps in 
future years and this has been 
exacerbated by the Covid pandemic 
and its impact on income. Future 
funding is very uncertain and the future 
impact of covid on future income levels 
also unclear. Inflationary pressures in 
terms of fuel, power and pay are also 
being seen. 
It is a period of unprecedented 
uncertainty. 

We have developed a partnership delivery plan to look at future service and 
commercialisation opportunities.  
Reserves are at levels sufficient to accommodate short term issues whilst longer 
term plans are brought into place depending upon the size of the financial 
challenge. 

15 

 

 
Samantha Knowles 

Waste 
Collections 

The loss of staff due to sickness 
and/or the need to self-isolate could 
put our ability to deliver our mandatory 
collection services at risk. There is 
also a risk that our discretionary, paid 
for garden waste collections may also 
be impacted. Without proper 
communication to residents there 
could be a reputational as well as 
operational risk. 

We continue to monitor the risk assessments in place, which support the 
controls identified and implemented which mitigate this risk. We are working 
closely with partners across Lincolnshire and the waste sector, to learn lessons 
from others and continue to watch for guidance from experts such as WISH. 
With the removal of all guidance relating to Covid measures and isolation, we 
are monitoring to see what impact that may have on attendance levels, should 
an increase in sickness occur as a result. 

12 

 

 
Charlotte Paine 

Vulnerability 
risk 

That the council fails to ensure that 
vulnerable residents are supported, 
especially in response to the Covid-19 
pandemic 

During the pandemic there have been three 'groups' of vulnerable residents. 
'Clinically Extremely Vulnerable' (shielded) 'Clinically vulnerable' and 'other 
vulnerable'. There are clear methods in place to identify and support residents 
with targeted support pathways. For Clinically Extremely Vulnerable residents, 
this is being monitored through the Lincolnshire Resilience Forum framework 
and outcomes reported to central government. Funding and schemes are being 
responded to, to maximise the support to local residents. 

12 

 

 
Emily Holmes 

P
age 175



Risk Name Description Controls/Mitigation 
Current Risk 
Score 

Trend 
Icon 

Assigned To 

Technology 
infrastructure 
failure 

The loss of ICT impacting upon the 
organisation to operate effectively and 
deliver services to residents. The 
Council relies heavily on the ICT 
infrastructure for normal business 
operation. Whilst resilience is built into 
the environment, the loss of a service 
is always possible. Depending on the 
service lost, the impact could be 
severe 

The Council has a series of resilience arrangements in place through its service 
provider, PSPS. Work is continuous to ensure these are fit for purpose across a 
range of areas. 

10 

 

 
Jackie Wright 

Changes in 
legislation 
and policy in 
response to 
Covid19 

The risk of the council's ability to adapt 
to changes in legislation and policy, 
both in terms of pace and scale of 
change. The subsequent impact of the 
council in responding to both new 
statutory requirements and ensuring 
compliance through appropriate 
understanding and resourcing. 

Public protection monitor any emerging disease trends, legislative changes and 
guidance provided by PH/Government. Any significant changes highlighted to 
the Leadership Team and Members as needed. No current covid controls in 
place. 

3 

 

 
Donna Hall 

Performance 
of PSPS 
contract 

The risk being that the services 
provided to the council via its contract 
with PSPS fails to meet the needs and 
expectations of the council 

Daily and weekly PIs are provided to Management Team. A new contract has 
been completed. Contractual meetings are attended monthly with separate 
meetings as necessary. Performance is monitored closely. There remains a 
need for outstanding Service Level Agreements to be updated/agreed of which 
the client officer continues to work with PSPS closely to ensure the council and 
its partner work effectively together. 

12 

 

 
James Gilbert 

Emily Spicer 

 

Reductions in 
council 
performance 

A decline in the performance of service 
delivery as a consequence of the 
pandemic and other factors 

In recent months the council's internal performance monitoring framework has 
been reviewed. Monthly performance and intelligence indicators are shared with 
members and officers. The councils SLT will review performance monthly 
facilitated by the performance team. Performance is reported to PMP on a 
quarterly basis for scrutiny. Clear objectives and outcomes are set, reviewed and 
performance monitored by managers. Teams holding monthly meetings to 
support staff pastorally and operationally.  
 

12 

 

  
James Gilbert 

Corey Gooch 

P
age 176



Risk Name Description Controls/Mitigation 
Current Risk 
Score 

Trend 
Icon 

Assigned To 

Retention of 
staff 

The recruitment of new and retention 
of existing staff 

Across the partnership we currently have 10 roles we are actively recruiting to. 
None of those active are in the areas we find more challenging to recruit – being 
Environmental health; Planning (Dev Mgt); Project/Programme Management.  
However, These roles are challenging for all employers including other Local 
government employers. Our resourcing team are more networked locally and 
confirm that Other Lincolnshire Councils have reported similar issues with 
increased levels of turnover and struggling to recruit to core roles.   
 
The Great Resignation is not looking to slow, recent CIPD survey found that 
20% of workers surveyed would likely quit their current role in next 12 months, 
up from 16% in 2021.  Pay and incentives are part of the picture, but Harvard 
Business/Gallup and other notable research companies are looking at what 
employee’s value:  
• Flexibility 
• Outcomes over outputs – being able to see impact they have to 
organisation 
• Diverse and Inclusive employers 
• Learning & Development offering – ability to grow skills and develop 
• Stability/Security 
 
 
Risk likelihood increased given the recruitment market likelihood will increase, 
any future recession if it hits may slow this down, appropriate to shift right for 
now.  In terms of impact – it’s not consistent - Impact is likely to be higher for 
certain roles as gaps are longer to fill leaving colleagues picking up backlogs – 
but we do not feel this is consistent enough across the whole organisation to 
shift this . 

12 

 

 
James Gilbert 

External 
Reputation 

The council's external reputation is 
impacted negatively as a result of poor 
decision making, failures in service 
delivery, and/or a deterioration in 
external relationships 

The council's reputation is managed is a variety of ways throughout the 
organisation, including at director-level through to service manager level. An 
internal governance structure is in place to consider forthcoming decisions and 
political matters. The council's communication team play a key role in that 
internal governance structure to ensure that matters of external reputation are 
appropriately considered. 

8 

 

  
Rob Barlow 

P
age 177



Risk Name Description Controls/Mitigation 
Current Risk 
Score 

Trend 
Icon 

Assigned To 

Capacity to 
deal with 
more than 
one 
significant 
incident 

The ability and the capacity of the 
organisation to respond to and 
manage concurrent emergencies 
alongside responding to the current 
Covid-19 pandemic and delivering 
critical business as usual services 

SHDC has plans in place to deal with additional emergencies. The resources to 
deliver on those plans is kept under close review through service managers and 
the council's Management Team. Through the Lincolnshire Resilience Forum, 
the council remains involved in planning for concurrent exercises, including 
recent simulation exercises to test systems and processes. The Business 
Continuity plans of individual services reflect planning for dealing with more than 
one incident. 

6 

 

 
Christian Allen 

Clint Bell 

COVID-19 
Outbreak 
response 

The risk that the council does not 
respond effectively to local outbreaks, 
and that the council has insufficient 
competent and trained officers to deal 
with covid outbreak management, both 
in the community and also internally 

The Public Protection service continue to work with LCC and the other Districts 
to co-ordinate outbreak response in line with the County Outbreak Management 
Plan. The LCC OIRR (Outbreak Investigation and Rapid Response) Team 
monitor case data from contact tracing and share any trends or outbreak 
concerns.  
The Senior Manager also attends the LRF Outbreak Management Cell and the 
County Covid Health Protection Board. 
Funding from Government via LCC enables additional resource in the team to 
manage the additional workload, and this is expected to continue to April 2022. 
 

6 

 

  
Donna Hall 

Safeguarding 
That the council fails to meet its 
safeguarding responsibilities 

There are formal audit frameworks for Safeguarding Children and Safeguarding 
adults which are monitored for assurance through the Lincolnshire Safeguarding 
Children's Partnership and Safeguarding Adults Partnership which are statutory 
requirements. There are also emerging assessment frameworks for Domestic 
Abuse, PREVENT and modern day slavery through the Safer Lincolnshire 
Partnership. These audits and assessments provide key areas for meeting 
duties and obligations and predominantly focus on leadership, policies, training 
and appropriate case management from frontline officers. Internally, the actions 
from previous assessments are being reviewed and action plan being developed 
for any gaps. Frontline casework is monitored through direct supervision. 

6 

 

 
Emily Holmes 

Regulatory 
Compliance 

The risk of failing to comply with the 
Council’s general regulatory 
obligations due to the volume and 
pace of Covid-specific legislative 
change; new/amended guidance; and 
the diversion of resources into the 
Council’s emergency response. 

Management of these risks is spread across the authority – with many service 
areas having their own professional resources, systems, processes, and 
professional body membership with associated information resources. Daily 
updates on key policy and legislative matters is wider than just a Covid update. 
The Council’s Legal Team receive regular legal updates which are shared as 
appropriate. Officers in the Legal Team and across service areas have access to 
various short webinars, podcasts, and other online training (such as recent data 

6 

 

 
John Medler 

Rhonda Booth 

P
age 178



Risk Name Description Controls/Mitigation 
Current Risk 
Score 

Trend 
Icon 

Assigned To 

protection training rolled out to all staff). 

Internal 
communicati
ons 
breakdown 

Poor quality internal communication 
amongst and between the staff, 
management team and member 
cohort, impacting upon the function of 
the organisation 

The comms team currently lead on regular staff and member engagement and 
communications. This includes regular emails to staff, videos from the leader 
and senior managers, and regular all-member emails. In order to develop this 
further, the comms team will present a new detailed 'comms calendar', which will 
help inform staff, members and council partners on key messaging, campaigns 
and information. All service managers to update comms on a regular/weekly 
basis. 

4 

 

  
Shaun Gibbons 

External 
communicati
ons 
breakdown 

Poor quality external communication 
with stakeholders, residents and the 
wider public impacts upon the council's 
reputation and its ability to effectively 
deliver services 

External comms are quality checked by Comms to ensure that the messaging is 
effective and relevant to our residents. The team also gather statistics across a 
range of areas to understand how much interaction is being achieved through 
social media channels for example and adapt messages and channel shift to 
ensure messages are being heard and well received. To further mitigate this 
risk, training is being undertaken for both officers and members. By increasing 
the number and topics covered, the comms team will be able to in time create 
greater capacity and resilience and messaging will be even more effective. 

4 

 

  
Shaun Gibbons 

 
 

 

 

 

P
age 179



T
his page is intentionally left blank



 

REPORT TO: Governance and Audit Committee 

DATE: 28 July 2022 

SUBJECT: 

PURPOSE:  

Governance and Audit Committee Work Programme 

To set out the Work Programme of the Governance and Audit 

Committee 

KEY DECISION: N/A 

PORTFOLIO HOLDER: Portfolio Holder for Finance, Commercialisation & Partnerships 

REPORT OF: 

REPORT AUTHOR: 

Assistant Director – Finance – Samantha Knowles 

Andrea Tait – Democratic Services Officer 

WARD(S) AFFECTED: N/A  

EXEMPT REPORT? No 

 

SUMMARY 

This report sets out the Work Programme of the Governance and Audit Committee and 
recommends that the Committee considers the Work Programme and identifies any additional 
items to be added to the Programme. 

 

RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
That the Committee gives consideration to the content of this report and identifies any 
issues for discussion. 

 

REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATIONS 

To allow Committee members to feed into the Work Programme on a regular basis, to ensure 
that it stays relevant and up to date. 

 

OTHER OPTIONS CONSIDERED 

Do nothing 

 

Page 181

Agenda Item 11.



1. BACKGROUND 

 

1.1 The Governance and Audit Committee regularly considers a variety of reports from Internal 

Audit, External Audit and the Section 151 Officer. 

 

1.2 Many of these reports are considered at regular intervals, the majority being annually, half-

yearly or quarterly. 

 

1.3 In addition to these reports, the Committee also considers issues on an ad-hoc basis with 

some reports arising from consideration of items at previous meetings. 

 

 

2. REPORT 

 

2.1 Attached at Appendix A to this report is the Work Programme for the Governance and 

Audit Committee. It lays out the meeting dates for the 2022/23 municipal year. Alongside 

each of these meeting dates are issues considered by the Committee on a regular basis 

together with the author of the report, its purpose and whether it is mandatory, and the 

frequency with which it is considered. 

 

2.2 It has been agreed that this Work Programme be a regular item for consideration on the 

Committee’s agenda, thus creating a formal document laying out the work of the 

Committee in a clear, structured, and organised way. 

 

2.3 The attached document contains items considered on a regular basis, and also any ad hoc 

issues as and when they arise, for example, issues raised at a meeting to be covered at a 

future meeting, and any one-off issues.  

 

2.4 Attached at Appendix B is a schedule of training that has been undertaken since 2019, and a 

list of suggested future topics for training.  This was considered at the meeting of the 

Committee on 17 March 2022, and will continue to be attached to this report for 

information, and to monitor progress. 

 

3. CONCLUSION 

3.1 It is hoped, that in presenting the information to the Committee, and by having the report 

as a standing item on the agenda, it will allow Committee members to feed into the Work 

Programme on a regular basis, to ensure that it stays relevant and up to date. 

4. EXPECTED BENEFITS TO THE PARTNERSHIP 

4.1 The Work Programme is a formal document laying out the work of the Committee in a 
clear, structured, and organised way, thus providing members with up to date and relevant 
information. 

 

5.    IMPLICATIONS 

5.1  SOUTH AND EAST LINCOLNSHIRE COUNCILS PARTNERSHIP 

5.1.1  None Page 182



5.2  CORPORATE PRIORITIES 

5.2.1  None 

5.3  STAFFING 

5.3.1 None 

5.4  CONSTITUTIONAL AND LEGAL IMPLICATIONS 

5.4.1 Constitutional and Legal implications have been considered and in the opinion of the 

author, there are none arising from this report. However, the Work Programme should 

assist in providing a clear programme of work for the Governance and Audit Committee in 

line with the requirements laid out in the Council’s Constitution. 

5.5  DATA PROTECTION 

5.5.1  None 

5.6  FINANCIAL 

5.6.1 None 
 
5.7  RISK MANAGEMENT 

5.7.1 Risk Management implications have been considered and in the opinion of the author there 

are none. However, one of the roles of the Governance and Audit Committee is to monitor 

the effective development and operation of risk management and corporate governance in 

the Council, and the Work Programme should assist in keeping track of risk issues.  

5.8  STAKEHOLDER / CONSULTATION / TIMESCALES 

5.8.1 None 

5.9  REPUTATION 

5.9.1 None 

5.10  CONTRACTS 

5.10.1 None 

5.11  CRIME AND DISORDER 

5.11.1 None 

5.12 EQUALITY AND DIVERSITY/ HUMAN RIGHTS/ SAFEGUARDING 

5.12.1 None 

5.13  HEALTH AND WELL BEING 

5.13.1 None 

5.14  CLIMATE CHANGE AND ENVIRONMENTAL IMPLICATIONS 

5.14.1 None 

6. ACRONYMS 

6.1  None Page 183



APPENDICES 

Appendices are listed below and attached to the back of the report: - 

APPENDIX A 

 

APPENDIX B 

Work Programme for the Governance and Audit 

Committee 

 

Governance and Audit Committee training information 

 

BACKGROUND PAPERS 

No background papers as defined in Section 100D of the Local Government Act 1972 were used 
in the production of this report 

 

CHRONOLOGICAL HISTORY OF THIS REPORT 

A report on this item has not been previously considered by a Council body 

 

REPORT APPROVAL  

Report author: Andrea Tait, Democratic Services Officer 

atait@sholland.gov.uk   

Signed off by: Samantha Knowles, Assistant Director - Finance 

sknowles@sholland.gov.uk  

Approved for publication: N/A 

 

Page 184

mailto:atait@sholland.gov.uk
mailto:sknowles@sholland.gov.uk


 
APPENDIX A 

 
GOVERNANCE AND AUDIT – CALENDAR OF WORK PROGRAMME ITEMS 2022/23 

 
 

Date of Meeting Agenda item Author Purpose and whether mandatory Frequency 
 

28 July 2022 SHDC Annual Audit Letter 2020/21   
 

External Audit 
(Ernst & Young) 

Mandatory/Consultation requirement. 
To approve audit fees. 

Annual 

 Internal Audit – Audit Plan Progress 
Report 2022-23 

Internal Audit  To update Committee on progress of 
the plan. 
Not mandatory, but part of 
Governance role. 

To each 
meeting 

 Follow up report on Internal Audit 
recommendations  

Internal Audit Not mandatory, but part of 
Governance role. 
COMBINED WITH ANNUAL 
REPORT AND OPINION 2021-22 

To each 
meeting 
 

 Annual Report and Opinion (report on the 
past year) 2021-22  

Internal Audit Internal Audit opinion to support draft 
Annual Governance Statement 
Mandatory 
COMBINED WITH FOLLOW UP 
REPORT ON INTERNAL AUDIT 
RECOMMENDATIONS 

Annual 
 
 

 Annual Treasury Management Review 
 

Section 151 Officer To comply with Treasury 
Management Strategy. 
Mandatory 
 

Annual 

 Q4 2021-22 Risk Report  Corey Gooch Part of Governance role – not 
mandatory 
 

To each 
meeting 

 External Audit Plan 21/23 
 

External Audit 
(Ernst & Young) 
 

External Audit Plan – Mandatory 
Approval 
 
 

Annual 

P
age 185



Date of Meeting Agenda item Author Purpose and whether mandatory Frequency 
 

22 September 2022 Internal Audit – Audit Plan Progress 
Report 2022-23 

Internal Audit To update Committee on progress of 
the plan. 
Not mandatory, but part of 
Governance role. 

To each 
meeting 

 Follow up report on Internal Audit 
recommendations 

Internal Audit Not mandatory, but part of 
Governance role. 
 

To each 
meeting 

 Q1 2022-23 Risk Report Corey Gooch Part of Governance role – not 
mandatory 

To each 
meeting 

 Q1 2022-23 Treasury Report Section 151 Officer To comply with Treasury 
Management Strategy reporting 
requirements 

Quarterly 

 Unaudited financial statements 2021/22 
including Narrative Report and Annual 
Governance Statement  

Section 151 Officer To approve financial statements prior 
to release to External Audit. 
Mandatory 

Annual 
 
 
 

17 November 2022 Audit Results Report 21/22 
 

External Audit 
(Ernst & Young) 

Mandatory report to those charged 
with Governance 

Annual 
 
 

 Approval of Annual Governance 
Statement, for inclusion with the 
Council’s published financial statements 
and approval of the audited 21/22 
financial statements.   

Section 151 Officer Mandatory – approval required Annual 

 Internal Audit – Audit Plan Progress 
Report 2022-23 

Internal Audit To update Committee on progress of 
the plan. 
Not mandatory, but part of 
Governance role. 

To each 
meeting. 
 
 

 Follow up report on Internal Audit 
recommendations 

Internal Audit Not mandatory, but part of 
Governance role. 

To each 
meeting. 
 

 Governance and Audit Committee Self 
Assessment 

Internal Audit For confirmation. 
Good practice. 

Annual 
 

P
age 186



Date of Meeting Agenda item Author Purpose and whether mandatory Frequency 
 

 

 Mid Term Treasury Report 22/23 Section 151 Officer To comply with Treasury 
Management Strategy reporting 
requirements 

Half-yearly 

 Q2 2022-23 Risk Report Corey Gooch Part of Governance role – not 
mandatory 

To each 
meeting 

19 January 2023 Housing Benefit Grant Claims 21/22   External Audit 
(KPMG) 

External Audit Certification of Grant 
Claims – Mandatory Approval 

Annual 

 SHDC Annual Audit Letter 2021/22 
 

External Audit 
(Ernst & Young) 
 

Mandatory/Consultation requirement. 
To approve audit fees. 
 

Annual 

 Treasury Management Strategy 
Statement, Mnimum Revenue Provision 
Policy Statement and Annual Investment 
Strategy 2023/24  

Section 151 Officer Mandatory requirement. 
To review Treasury Managmenet 
Strategy and approve Prudential 
Indicators. 
 

Annual 

 Q3 2022-23 Risk Report Corey Gooch Part of Governance role – not 
mandatory 
 

To each 
meeting 

 Governance and Audit Committee 
Annual Report – consideration of 
requirements for content TBC 

Section 151 
Officer/Democratic 
Services 

Not mandatory 
Good practice 

Annually-
TBC 

16 March 2023 Audit Plan 22/23 External Audit 
(Ernst & Young) 
 

External Audit Plan – Mandatory 
Approval 
 

Annual 

 Internal Audit – Audit Plan Progress 
Report 2022-23 

Internal Audit  To update Committee on progress of 
the plan. 
Not mandatory, but part of 
Governance role. 
 

To each 
meeting 

 Strategic and Annual Internal Audit Plan 
2023/24 

Internal Audit 
 

Annual Internal Audit Workplan - 
Mandatory approval 

Annual 

P
age 187



Date of Meeting Agenda item Author Purpose and whether mandatory Frequency 
 

 

 Follow up report on Internal Audit 
recommendations 

Internal Audit Not mandatory, but part of 
Governance role. 
 

To each 
meeting 
 

 Financial Statements 2022/23 
Accounting Policies  

Section 151 Officer 
 

Not mandatory, but good practice. Annual 
 

 
The following item to be added to the Committee’s Work Programme on an ad hoc basis, where there is information to report: 
 

• March 2024 – Diarise to review the Counter Fraud, Corruption and Bribery Policy, and the Whistleblowing Policy (to be reviewed every 
three years, last reviewed March 2021 (Whistleblowing Policy) and 17 June 2021 (Counter Fraud, Corruption and Bribery Policy). 

P
age 188



APPENDIX B 

South Holland Governance & Audit Committee - Training Undertaken and Suggested Future Topics  
Title Format / Provider 

 
Date 

Introduction to Local Government Finance (as part of Induction) Chief Finance Officer May 2019 

Governance and Audit Committee training   
 

Dems/Finance Officers May 2019 

Governance, Code of Conduct, Committee Structure (as part of the Induction) Monitoring Officer May 2019 

Unaudited Financial Statements 
 

Sam Knowles & Ellie 

Stacey 

 22 Oct 2020 

 End of Year Accounts Sam Knowles & Ellie 
Stacey  

18 October 2021  
 

 

Future Topics* Plans for Delivery How and When 
 

Finance Section 151 Officer All Member Briefing 

Statement of Accounts Section 151 Officer Detailed session 

Audit Section 151 Officer Detailed session 

Treasury Management Section 151 Officer Detailed session 

Pensions Section 151 Officer Detailed session 

Governance Monitoring Officer All Member Briefing 

Ethics Monitoring Officer All Member Briefing 

Standards Monitoring Officer All Member Briefing 

Risk Management Monitoring Officer All Member Briefing 

Cyber Security Monitoring Officer All Member Briefing 

P
age 189



Regional Forum for Audit Committee Chairs – New Committee to be established 

by the end of March – North East Derbyshire will host for the East Midlands 

Jane Dethick – Lead Officer 

for the East Midlands 

Tuesday 22 March 1-2pm 

*could form part of the Induction programme following the 2023 election 

P
age 190


	Agenda
	3. Minutes
	4. Actions
	5. South Holland District Council - Auditor's Annual Report for year ended 31 March 2021
	6. South Holland District Council - Initial Audit Plan year ended 31 March 2022
	7. Progress Report on Internal Audit Activity
	8. Annual Report and Opinion 2021/22
	9. Annual Treasury Management Review 2021/22
	Appendix A for Annual Treasury Management Review 2021/22

	10. Q4 Risk Report 2021/22
	Appendix 1 for Q4 Strategic Risk Report

	11. Governance and Audit Committee Work Programme
	Appendix A
	Appendix B


